REGULAR BOARD MEETING
GONZALES COUNTY UNDERGROUND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District will meet in a public session
immediately following the public hearing for the District’s Draft Rules on August 13, 2024, scheduled at 5:30 p.m. at the
Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District Office located at 522 Saint Matthew Street, Gonzales, Texas.

Note: Members of the public wishing to comment must attend the meeting in-person. No participation or public
comments will be allowed via video or conference call. However, any person may view or listen to the meeting via
audio and video conference call. The Audio and Video Conference Opens 5 minutes before the 5:30 p.m. beginning of
the meeting,

—

o

% = o

15,

16.
17.

GCUWCD August 13, 2024, Public Hearing Draft Rules, and Regular Board Meeting
Aug 13, 2024, 5:30 — 7:00 PM (America/Chicago)

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.
https://meet.goto.com/180276653

You can also dial in using your phone. 7
Access Code: P OSTE D
180-276-653
United States (Toll Free): 1 877 309 2073
United States: +1 (646) 749-3129 - AUG 09 2024
Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts: 2 30 A\
https://meet.goto.com/install LONAACKMAN

CLERK, GONZALES COUNTY TEXAS
Call to Order, - DEPUTY

Public Comments. Limit to 3 minutes per person.
Consent Agenda (Note: These items may be considered and approved by one motion of the Board. Directors may
request to have any consent item removed from the consent agenda for consideration and possible action as a
separate agenda item): -
Approval of minutes of July 09, 2024, Regular Board Meeting,.
- Approval of the Financial Report.
Approval of the District’s bills to be paid.
Approval of the Mitigation Fund bills to be paid.
Approval of District Manager, Administrative Staff, Board Member, Field Technician, Mitigation Manager
Expenses. ‘
f.  Approval of Manager’s Report (monthly report, transporter usage, drought index).
g. Approval of Well Mitigation Manager’s Report (well mitigation progress).
h. Approval of Field Technician Report (monthly report).
Discuss and possibly take action on any item removed from Consent Agenda.
Discuss and possibly take action on Receipt of the Certification of 2023 Appraisal Rolls for Gonzales and
Caldwell Counties.
Discuss and possibly take action on revisions of the District’s fiscal year 2023-2024 budget.
Executive session pursuant to §551.074 Government Code for discussion of personnel matters.
Discussion and possibly take action on the District’s fiscal year 2024-2025 budget.
Discuss and possibly take action on setting Proposed Tax Rate for the District.

o e TP

. Discuss and possibly take action on the Western Mitigation Fund fiscal year 2024.2025 budget.
11.
1Z.
13,
14.

Discuss and possibly take action on the Eastern Mitigation Fund fiscal year 2024.2025 budget.

Discuss and possibly take action on renewal of CD #8549 at Sage Capital Bank expiring on August 14, 2024.
Discuss and possibly take action on adopting the GCUWCD draft rules.

Discuss and take action on a permit renewal for an irrigation well in the Carrizo Aquifer for well owners Ms.
Sally Ploeger, Mr. Mark Ploeger, and Mrs, Mary Ann Menning.

Discuss and take action on a permit renewal for Schertz-Seguin Local Government Corporation for Carrizo wells
#1-12.

Discuss and possibly take action on a Bank Resolution to update bank signatures.

Discuss and take action on a resolution adopting the revised Management Plan.



REGULAR BOARD MEETING
GONZALES COUNTY UNDERGROUND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

18. Presentation of legislative/legal updates from legal counsel.

19. Discussion of other items of interest by the Board and direction to management based on the items set forth
above.

20. Adjourn,

The above agenda schedule represents an estimate of the order for the indicated items and is subject to change at any time,
These public meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance to attend the
meeting, please call 830.672.1047 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting to coordinate any special physical access
arrangements.

At any time during the meeting and in compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Government Code,
Vernon’s Texas Codes, Annotated, the Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District Board may meet in
executive session on any of the above agenda items or other lawful items for consultation concerning attorney-client matters
(§ 551.071); deliberation regarding real property (§ 551.072); deliberation regarding prospective gift (§ 551.073); personnel
| matters (§ 551.074); and deliberation regarding security devices (§ 551.076). Any subject discussed in executive session
may be subject to action during an open meeting.

POSTED THIS THE 9 DAY OF AUGUST 2024 AT O’CLOCK by




Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District
Minutes of the Board of Directors
July 09, 2024
Board Meeting

Call to Order

The regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District
(the District) was called to order at 5:31 pm. Present for the meeting were directors: Mr. Michael St. John, Mr.
Barry Miller, Mr. Glenn Glass, and Mr. Bruce Tieken. Mr. Mark Ainsworth was not in attendance. Also present
for the meeting was GCUWCD General Manager Ms. Laura Martin, and legal counsel Gregory Ellis. Other
Attendees included: (See Attached List)

Public Comments, Limit to 3 minutes per person
Ms. Ted Boriack, landowner and Ms. Sally Ploeger, landowner, made public comments. A recording of the
board meeting and comments received are filed at the District office and on the District website.

Consent Agenda (Note: These items may be considered and approved by one motion of the Board.
Directors may request to have any consent item removed from the consent agenda for consideration and
possible action as a separate agenda item):

Approval of minutes of June 11, 2024, Regular Board Meeting,

Approval of the Financial Report.

Approval of the District’s bills to be paid.

Approval of the Mitigation Fund bills to be paid.

Approval of District Manager, Administrative Staff, Board Member, Field Technician, and

Mitigation Manager Expenses.

Approval of Manager’s Report (monthly report, transporter usage, drought index).

Approval of Well Mitigation Manager’s Report (well mitigation progress).

Approval of Field Technician’s Report (well registrations, water levels, water quality).
The Board of Directors acted on the Consent Agenda; Mr. Barry Miller made a motion to approve the Consent
Agenda as presented with the removal of Item C (District Bills to be Paid) for further discussion. Mr. Michael St.
John seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Discuss and possibly tale action on any item removed from Consent Agenda.
A motion was made by Mr. Michael St. John to approve the Consent Agenda with the exception to remove and
correct the District’s Bills to be Paid. Mr. Glenn Glass seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Discuss and possibly take action on the District’s June water level report.
Water level measurements for June 2024 were discussed with the Board of Directors and General Manager. No
action necessary.

Discuss and take action on setting a date for a Public Hearing for Rule Changes.

A motion was made by Mr. Miller to post notice for a Public Hearing for Rule Changes and a copy of the Draft
Rules on July 23, 2024, and the hearing will take place before the 5:30 pm Regular Board Meeting on August
13, 2024. Mr. Glass seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Discuss and take action on a resolution adopting the revised Management Plan.
No action taken.

Presentation of legislative/legal updates from legal counsel.
Greg Ellis discussed Litigation and Legislative changes.

Discussion of other items of interest by the board and direction to management based on the items set
forth above.



No action taken.
Adjourn
A motion was made by Mr. Miller to adjourn the meeting, and Mr. St. John seconded the motion. The motion

passed unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 6:13 p.m.

Approved By:

August 13, 2024

| HS




Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District

Investment Report
August 13, 2024

CD Information - District Funds

Purchase
Account Place Purchase Date Value Interest Rate Maturity Date As of Amount
CD #11 Sage Capital Bank 8/4/2023 $152,818.77 5.15% 21412025  7/31/2024 $179,869.14
CD #365 Randolph Brooks FCU 3/28/2023 $271,523.86 4.50% 9/28/2024  7/31/2024 $271,689.47
CD #49 Sage Capital Bank 8/14/2023 $250,000.00 5.15% 8/14/2024  7/31/2024 $281,862.94
Total CD's to Date $733,321.55
Market Comparisons
Tex Pool 5.32% 8/2/2024
6 Mo. Treasury Yield 4.91% 8/2/2024
Banking Information - District Funds
Account Place As of Amount
#59 Money Market Sage Capital Bank 7/31/2024  $1,443,447.23
#61 Operating Sage Capital Bank 713112024 $47,009.52
#356 Savings Randolph Brooks 7/31/2024 $1.00
Total Cash to Date $1,490,457.75
Banking Information - Western Mitigation Fund
Account Place As of Amount
#35 Money Market Sage Capital Bank 7/31/12024 $164,837.38
#70 Operating Sage Capital Bank 7/31/2024 $2,132.93
Total Cash to Date $166,970.31
Banking Information - Eastern Mitigation Fund
Account Place As of Amount
#64 Money Market Sage Capital Bank 7131/2024 $280,466.96
#98 Operating Sage Capital Bank 713112024 $2,134.03
Total Cash to Date $282,600.99
Weighted Average Maturity (WAM) $2,673,350.60
Using the Current Date and Maturity Date: Weighted Average Maturity (WAM) =
The overall sum of each security's par amount multiplied by its number of days to maturity, divided by the total of all investments.
Reprting
Security Description Investment Amount  CD Start Date  Period Date  Mat. Date  Mat. in Days (DTM) WAM CD Term
Sage Capital CD #11 $179,869.14 8/4/2023 713112024 2412025 188 46,113 18 mo
Randolph Brooks CD #365 $271,589.47 3/28/2023 713112024  9/28/2024 59 21.851 18 mo
|Sage Capital CD #49 $281,862.94 8/14/2023 7131/2024  8/14/2024 14 5.381 12 mo
CD Total $733,321.55 73.345
#59 Money Market $1,443,447.23 1 0.744
#61 Operating $47,009.52 1 0.024
#365 Savings $1.00 1 0.000
#35 Money Market $164,837.38 1 0.085
#70 Operating $2,132.93 1 0.001
#64 Money Market $280,466.96 1 0.145
#98 Operating $2,134.03 1 0.001
Fund Total $1,940,029.05 1.000
Grand Totals $2,673,350.60 WAM 74.345

The portfolio of the Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District is befieved to be in compliance with the District's Board approved
Investment Pglicy, State Jaw, and the Investment Strategy.

Dated:Ong_l ‘ Z,Dl‘-{’




GCUWCD BILLS TO BE PAID
August 13, 2024

GVTC (Local & Long Distance & Internet)-Paid $279.23
City of Gonzales (Utilities)-Paid $253.67
United States Treasury(IRS Payment) $706.08
Ricoh (Copier Rental)-Paid $217.75
State Office of Administrative Hearings (June-SOAH Fees)-Paid $7,328.48
United States Postal Service (Postage)-Paid $164.41
Walmart (Office Supplies)-Paid $127.70
DuBose Insurance Agency(Ainsworth, M. CNA Surety Ins. Renewal) $92.50
Dubose Tnsurance Agency (renew policy for employee dishonesty) $100.00
GoToMeeting (Annual Telephone Charge Fee)-Paid $144.00
GoToMeeting (June Monthly Telephone Charge)-Paid $2.00
GoToMeeting (July Monthly Telephone Charge)-Paid $1.92
HAR Service (Central A.C. Repair: Water Pump Replacement)-Paid ~ $589.46
Daniel B. Stephens & Associates, Inc. (GBRA Permit Amendment

Review & Expert Testimony-February)-Paid $825.00
Daniel B. Stephens & Associates, Inc. (GBRA Permit Amendment

Review & Expert Testimony-June) $12,480.41
Coastol Office Solutions (office supplies) $57.01
TWCA (Annual Memebership)-Paid $454.00
Synergisdic, LLC (IT Services) $802.00
Synergisdic, LLC (onsite network support) $375.00
Forestry Suppliers, Inc. (field technician supplies)-Paid $18.48
HACH (field technician supplies)-Paid $109.84
GM Ellis Law Firm PC (Legal Counsel January 2024-March 2024) $17,728.52
GM Ellis Law Firm PC (Legal Counsel April 2024-June 2024) $6,888.44
McElory Sullivan Miller & Weber LLP (SOAH Hearing Attorney) | $7,824.83
Amazon (new speaker/microphone for meetings)-Paid $148.28

TOTAL

$57,719.01




GCUWCD WMF BILLS TO BE PAID
August 13, 2024

TOTAL $0.00



GCUWCD EMF BILLS TO BE PAID
August 13, 2024

TOTAL $0.00



¥20z ‘el 1snbny :8jeq
:Ag panoiddy

00°0.% ang [elol #2027 ‘1€-1 AInp paIsro) pousd
00°0.% asuadx3 suoyd
00°0% [E10)qNS | @18y X dbes|iy
190 X 91y jusung
0 S9lN 1B10 |
0
0
0
0

S3a|ljNl 810l abea|I abealin ol wout4 aeq/dut] Jo ainjeN

Buipu3z Buluuibog

uoday asuadx3y

uipey "IN BIneT

101381 UOI}BAISSUOD 191 punoibiapun Ajunoo sajezuon




¥Z0Z ‘cL snbny e
:Ag peaosddy
FL-AAS ang [ejol #Z02 ‘L€ - L AN :palaAog poliad
sasusdxy
1S LVLS je1039ng abeajly
/90 X 3lEy Wwauny
L20) seli [eloL
0
¥ 812'92 9.1'9¢ '070) S8|BZUOY) [BJjUS)| SWOH 2u] POO.] SBWIOHMUILC 1E/L
6¥ yOL'76) GS0'¥6l "070) SO[EZUOS) |BAUS]| SWOH oA AeloaN/g-led-[ L2/.L
Z¥ 190'92 6810'92 "00) $O[BZUOS) [BUSD| SWOoH 1o AsleeN/g-ed-f 9z/L
£9 610°9Z 966'Ge '07) SO[EZUOL) [ejud)| SWOH g-leg-r 6z/l
99 756'GZ 988'GZ "07) SOjeZU0S) [ejua)| BWOoH OU| po04 SBWI0H/I8bIes) £7//
Gg a88'Ge 108’62 "07) SO[BZU0L) [euUa]| SUloH oU| poo- SawloH/ebieD) Z2/L
6¢ 1G1'GT rAWR 14 "07) S9|BZU0D) |BIJUSD| SWICH {pooMUBH)IBAA IPIWILOS LL/L
L AV T4 119'Ge '07) S9[EZUOY [BUDD] SWOH (poomuBH)|IRAA PIUYDS 81/2
G6 149'6Z 9/6'6Z ‘07) SO[BZUOL) [eUaD| SUIOH (poomiBH) DA IPIWLDS GL/L
GL 8/G'GZ £9¥'GZ ‘07) $8[eZUOD) [BfjUD] YUON| SWOoH (1ep|eep/POONIBL/UBLBINOI) SI8]IUp Bujoadsu| G1//
00} yiLy'Ge ylLe'sT ‘07) S3[BZUOS) [BIUBD YHON| SWOH J9pBEANPAA LEIINOWABUINDIRA uInd 21/2
92 Lie'se GET'ST "07) SO[EZUOL) [eAUSD YHON] SWOH 12pIPEAIIBAA UBIIHADINABUINTHIRA WilNg L/
£5 62262 9/1'6T *07) $9|BZUOL) |BAURD) YUON| SWOH 1epjeeA IS UBIIASIN/(BUNTHIRAA WING 6/2
Lz £88°c6l 29.'¢B1 XL ‘BUOIA| SWOH B98I USp|09)/BUOIA ¢/L
¥8 1G2'¢61 £L9°¢6] cyy WA/289L W4| SwoyH AAMSHRUIYS/YUNS L/L
SajIl |eIOoL abeoan obea|lil ol | woid ajeqydia] jo asnjeN
Buipug Buiuuibag
2aby yueld

jloday asuadxy
ueiuysa} pIstd
10LSIg UoljBAIaSUOD 19)ep punoibiepun Auno) sejezuon




Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District
Manager’s Report
July 2024

On July 9*, T met with members of the Rules Committee to discuss draft rules.
On July 239, 1 met with members of the Rules Committee to discuss draft rules and desired future conditions.
On July 29" [ met with panel members of the Texas Alliance of Groundwater District Summit panel presentation to

discuss the upcoming panel presentation on Emerging Management Issues for Large-scale Production Permits. An article
from the Texas Water Journal is attached.

AQUA’s June production was about 6.23 ac-ft which is about 4.65% of the monthly allowable production.

CRWA’s July production was about 646.95 ac-ft which is about 93.3% of the monthly allowable production.

GBRA’s July production was 59.66 ac-ft which is 4.77% of the monthly allowable production.

SAWS July production was about 1,046.84 ac-ft which is about 107.48% of the monthly allowable production.
SSLGC’s July production was about 1,176.58 ac-ft which is about 72.94% of the monthly allowable production,

The Palmer Drought Index, as of July 30, 2024, indicates that the District is currently under no drought conditions. The

fatest drought map shows overall improvement in drought conditions in South Central Texas in the week of August 08,
2024,



spuesnoly u suojeb,

yuow u:m.::..o 10} mBm__so__m >EEoE mo mmmy:mo._wm
140V u =o_wo=_u2n_ YJUOR ju2n9

14y Eol
«SUOJ[ED |EJOL

“laquueoa

18QUISACN

1990100

Jaquiaidag

ﬁmm:(

GZ'08L. . $ 000 S _ g
: T e T 000 QO I 0088s L > DOO,Nmﬂnomm..
9e'L8L $ 0C0 89'06Z'Y 99°/61°¢
000 000 . 00'098'G 000'¥68'786 o_‘._‘om w oo_‘ vmr mww Aep
S Coebop0lg i L eeeLYG S e e
6L°095'9 GE'EG6'S

000 _ 00'LLL'L 000'151'0.6 00759'9 00.'98G vLL
o 10§ KRR+ 04 OSSR S 00PER L 000'PLE'296 -
G ¥re $ 000 [AN W 29'LLY'D
- 000 00'892'8 000'0vL'vS6 0L'€6L'L 00£'€8€"19L Aeenuep
B -F BL ﬁoto%ce 1 obes - obesn 819N | pemodsueip - N T

Co ,M.&s uoNIH zawea e S

| ZANTA
abes - Buipeay 1919

uonelodion Aiddng 193epA VNOV

08//8  Q0B'iy0'98L . eunp

86'/8C

061z __ooomowomﬁ S dy

g0 000

y8'gee

‘001es'e i goswes' oL Aeniged

o |  poModsueiy




2016 Production
02017 Production
2018 Producticn
22019 Production
22020 Production
©12024 Production
£12022 Production
= 2023 Production
|2024 Production |

I~ "52015 Production

)
: re £
SR PR Y
1 L v
AT T P e ol L T L L L P L Pl ol = My e et e o
FFrFrrr IIIJ’IIIII/III///I/IIIIIIIIIIIIIII 89(0
%1y
4

| vl W aE R Ay P N N DD D Sl [k D VDD Iyl
] i I IL\\.\\X\\\\\‘L‘L\\\X\ @
FEL LT T T IIIIIII’II!III}III I!,{IIIJ 9(}
) OO
g n A o A L
PJ)I)D}))))))))))))IJD}JIJ}I)})}))’D))}))})J)})
R
V‘II’IIIIIIIIIII’I”I”IIIII GQQ,
9,
..... %
&
--c---'tll'1-|l‘-'|-----lln---l---- .\-‘,‘p

FF
el
O i i i 4 A A ”
prer] 2 5 &
Q
=
-8 | ETRTATAY Ny hva
L ] ] (] ]
o %,
o] LA £ £ f %
= TR AN A
e
o
=] 2 C R
= NN e
T '--'--‘-.'-J"--'-.'-.'-.'n.'n."-.'-.'-.'-.'-.'-.'s.'-.'-.l-,"- o
o ISSSRSKR SRS 5 N %
- PP PP PRI %
=
O' [T P
< 1 [ | i [ !
T R I L L L T N L L T L L T L
’o@'
2
& 5 =, 99
..... %
1. | | ] [ ! T
[
m— "’V *’V’VMV"A’R VAW'V*A.‘VA
stf-r««(««t“t«fta«t-rca«r«««(««t««c««
_“
e ’G@
o
3 G
T I ] T T 1 ]
! f } : f } }
o 0 o 10 o ') < re) o o) =) 0 =t
© Irs) 3] B <+ © © o &~ - -

(1oa)-219€) NOILONAON

June 2024



157282
95026

iBligsr.
866.YL

spuesnow) Ut suoyen ,

8’60
seseel

8905

SARIN)
reazel

tioganpoid

og'es

59K 70

mgo__m.h_ﬁ:.o:._‘ 10 abrjuaslag
HOHONPOId YO JU3LINg

ol

) :
SUOJ[ES) {2301

23Q
AON
15 1o
ydag
989°LL 9¥0'68 1PE'Ee 650°C2 SPy'0Z gZLLL ZB8'LY
9EV'6.5 ZOE'9LE'L 8zL'554't ¥ZLTLO Z8rEvTs Z8£'068 £04'8L0') 8Y2'952'C . ZolL'gee'L zos'szy' L Anp
Boygl SRR [--'v) S S |essEE T et O T teegiog - T kg L
T zgaLes ToLe'Lg'L R K- VAT K - A GLE'0GO' L Eev'BLE L CigeeoR L ngeseatL gzLegzE | oLE e | CpgppLytL. | aunp
Lt 6L5'%T Zvi'el Sv2'5l Tl 229G T Ll
£57'265 665'988'L §LL'80L') 88220+ Lo L6L') 998'873 ery'3Es’L ELE'GLZ'E  soveEdL| 046'86¢'L fepy
yzogl n o leerg T (eve0g S el (eeetay T LooTel T gl 9k R
Tl ggLlies | I YAV VAN AR 851'F80'L Jerena't | el L Eo T Lz eRe T [ T Log' e S gge'geliE| gea'LLg Lt CLLppgelL 5 udy
¥25'zh Ove've 9z¢'sl Z00'02 892'81 gog'sl 040'9L 8r8'sl
851'czg $00'082'L 8yZ'c90'L 614’685 51g'85L' L . SELLLB 008'509'L ROV LLL'E 268'965'L SOT'0LE'L
orELL R TR Tl - P S E T aey L zeely Y7 A AR [7-1o%- | SRR |- V-3 A TSN R R LemTiiinn
S pegtEe| T gL zzo'eya'l “eggiegs | guermelL | zeeeeL | ZepeRg | 080'BSHE T 7Eg'elst S uvtese'L
906°CL £0L'48 gcL'6L ¥9g'12 LEY'5L ZeS'sl ¥rL'6L 9189l
907’105 £86'£59'L £98'09z0'L 088'/%6 LPE'0eL'E GEE'9LL 9L'vISL 8LLTPL'E #hr5a5"L PEE'PYE L
- obesn . Jeley . . ebesn - AN obes[... 1819w - 8besn) ... Jejel . sbesSn . A9psN aBesn . Jo)e - ebesry 19BN ebesn L ARIa ~abesn . 1RRI: " abesqy T IelelN
_jseguensuyn . JSEIPUOE L JSBANUBHSMUD . - ISBRAPUOE. ol PIRUSIRI . ASNOK UBYIMD 1 [PM SAWWeL - [toA 2SNOH dwes = 19 PISLE [2)Sec) S5V e deagng
S QMENSM L SR LR TP T LB S B IRM S# IIBM ARS8 L) SR CUEHIRAC L LR I o me
Uoger A1 ) o 061 ORI T ’ /LT - S80d £20d T ggod : g20d
$202

abesqy - Buipesy SIS JAIBAA YoUEY S|I9A
Ausoyny Jajep jeuoiboy uokued




CRWA Monthly Production

@ 2015 Production
#2016 Production
2017 Production
02018 Production
32019 Production
12020 Production

H2021 Production

m2022 Production
B 2023 Production
r. 2024 Production

T TV T T T T T T T T T T T T T

A A

F A Y A A Y S A I A S A A Y K

rzsurs

7, 2

PN 1A LY L L LTI AL AT
B 300 AT AR NN,
e

A A o PA I

VW ;\\\\\\

£y L )J‘H'K £ o
B I TR TR Y

n\j \\\\\\\\\\\\‘I

R G B

T TR LI L LI T T
Lo

300

700

o [=3 )
o (=] Q
© in <

(joe)-040e) uopanpold

300
200
100 +

Juiy 2024



coee

¥56'0L

spuesnoy} ui suo|eb

STl rpak J0y poad 40 % A X AR

Li'Y "o JUa1INY 10} mEm_.so:m >_5:0E uo $
99'65 Hoe uy :o:u:vo._n_ "oy JuBLNY
S g T e L el T e g e “3or =m0
B5L'G €518 0L9'c 092'G P9’ ¥6.L'G *mcom_mw [e101

880

£Zr'9

S Tee

SR B _o_m.o

AON

po

ydeg

| eny

0162 508'
Anp

080°€"

S aunp

0S _ 997"
Aep

€49 0

0

..mm|mﬂ:. ..hﬂm_a ~ ol I8N
| SHIOM _ SHIGM

: .mmww:

¥e0c
abesq - Buipesay] J9}ol
Auoyny JaAry osuejg-adnjepno




GBRA NMonthly Production

Production
Production
Production

©2022
& 2023
22024

N N O
Y

NN

70.00

AR

SN

§

8

3 8 8 8 8 8 8

o o o < o =] o
© Yt < @ ™~ -

{(1984-2408) NOILONAOYL

July 2024



spuesno w suopeh

12119188 sseloq (eIok (4 B S seek Jofpead 30 % R ST 1 gaLpe o Jeak 101 WD (101
¥ I0L YIUOLY JUBLIND 10} SIGBMO|IR AfLjrOL JO %
¥8'9%01 /98 Ul UORINPOI YIUOW JBLND
VOB T e R aOpeL ST ek ZRSEE L pOr g b SGPEE T GG ABE T e yoe [eel
895 LIL'E GER'OEE 699'941 90Z'6ET STZ L6 891'0) 004'1§ 296'30L LB0'SZE 9ZO'0LE LSUOJ[ED) [EJOL
-y
AON
1°0
dog
: RO : = o . ..Bhy
S1'ASE'9S 61845 £28'6Z £68'22
62T'0L8'Y L06'BZZ'E - Z0S'LYE'Y SOV IEV'Y S pgmieee L LFLEE | Amp
PLSEP'ES CEYGE R o BT EIRR |74+ SR : R Cogteg R R f0g T s L
S CBIB'TELY L YBLE6IE T 8L9'98G SIPSLY'S T GAN'eBE Rt YE6'E8T'E | £ ¥25'98T'e | aunp
9602’88 Sr'8Y 2T'vE [RAN74 LbL'eS
£ETTTLE LESZBLE 15210 LI3'0LT'Y . 669°2GE'Y ¥55'662'E wee'aze's | Aew
Y LEEEE Ylveeteg i 14 RS SIATS I |19 3 Pl SRR 714" ) BRI TR R SRS
BRI o e 88L'E59'C : gL0'PEL'E’ 0Tty T L 9GEEET Y : BSEETE Y - | LGB POSTLLL'E T | Ay
¥6'58.'98 oLL'PS 6¥Z ¥
YOR'eLe" 000'S0L'Y 1ZE'TLL'E $08'88E LBE'GET'Y LO9'6v5 '9zey
Y8 L0828 ovEYS i DR R <1 14 SR ERE RO BRI 1o ¥ 4 VR : L 1669'95 1 ST
: I ELBLGE T8G9 T L p86'Ze0's: FEERER - 1+10 > HEl C BEL'GET Y S 199'6PG LOPSBZER [ SN 0LG e R0E
£0°10L'LS 1069 PSE'HS Zer'ss € AT TA SLI'ES ozy'ey
£16'625'E 9LE'GHY Y 0SO'Sr0'E 912'9:2 SEL'GET Y S5¥'825 £ZY'9EE'Y 151'080'S 118'486' uer
a3, FETET E TS T TR TSN aBESH) T sbesn TARRRIN : abesy RFEFET] abesqn BT T R T abesq. Cdelep . aled
: DM IIPM : L .

CETOMHBM SO 131

GLOMNBM FEOM oM
: 8 . £rod-

- awod

ov0d’ -

LALA
abesq - Buipeay 1918IN
wWSAS 133Bp) OlUOIUY UBS




©12017 Preduction
2 2018 Production
[201% Praduction
£ 2020 Production
2021 Production
[E 2022 Production
32023 Production
r12024 Production

O A TA TR O T

[MAATEETERR R LR

LA LR

ASAAESEASEAEEEAG AL EAEEE

July 2024

SAWS Monthly Production

1208.00
1000.00 -

@ @
[193)-2408) UCHINPOLE




spuesnoy Ul suojeh

SESPE'LeS SIelog [BIOL £L'6E " Jeak sog -poad §o % 69768, JAI04HIE 1RI0L
e ZTL "W JUININD 10§ I|GeMO||B Ayjdow Jo 94
a5elll 3{2E U BONANPOI4 "o Juany
69°769L 86'6LL oeLeeT goupL T T yLESLE CUPEESE 9L0pg T T DBELS L QZpeT T 9GEEE i £8'998 T QU K FELGY Woe [e10),
0L9'805°2 9G1'¥5Z 865'08 ZEQ'EPT 191188 £rEOLE Z96'ELT 707 Ve 79856 169'501) SPOGLE o SLEESL ,SUojjED [BJ0L
23Q
AON
PO
dag
29'26£'6%- s} £OP'er 820'L9 9595 86908 Z08'28 0EL'2 ] SIT'LY 0 00L'ES
) o LWL LELY 889'82TE £LL6rS'T rLGEZ'e 0/1'618 591 58S 515'884 | LTTBLE 168'82F 9/2'804 FEELOT Aop
90ZER'6S o T gog'gel T N [+171) - SRR a8e'lg ERSRSURESE (W7 SRNRIREERN [- ¥ RS -1 k4 Clepglap Y0 e
R Ea A LpL'ELY 49T'G8LE [T AR T vLLyiLe | ple'ers apses [ eleeeL [ FLIVYIN REERERI )t CULE0'e Tt T pRGIASE B-ViA1) sunp
STEFEES . (420'8 {ISL0L Sl LYY 808y L26'Sy SLE'eS 08E'FE brL'E 9LESY o 9EE'PT
: Wiiely LSTBGL'E BLPLOF'T POL'GOL'E SZL'ZBL cre'esy Zy6'E8s ZEEVLE Leg'oey EIFEL $EG LB 9g7 128 Aepy
5526088 [Zue josstes T ety T T g gegny. e eegegl T I gos'og e egeey T aeeel T e T E o [ KR Liepgg
S pes'ezey | EeEerl'e wpe'gips Lo ops'orD'e | Jax41 7} ZLETEY CUTO4E00RS | TiETOpE Cigveer [ 180196 | vES'L8T 00l'268 ady
£LL46'L8  |ivl's |wig'ey 209'L 1ok LY see'ay 86Y'Ly 6291 1L SEFEy 0 9
08L'899'F QLYERHE 900'268'C ZIL'ZBE'T BLE'B0L 882207 990'L8E £F1'G8Z ESG'ELY B¥0'926 7EG' (8T £50°L68 12N
SLZLYLS | LIE'S (68129 ERRERE [+ : Tesggg T geey iogg'gr =L or AR [ IR AR [+ REE NN -V 1R ogey 0 B £ e L
A T B0E'Ble'Y apsiste |- l0g'sge's’ [ peeiye'e U pnoee | e LesE T [T LS | 219482 lep'eLE | plgEee b peg'ige [ gL0'Le8 -~ | God
gLoes'ss  {2TeL  [STLvL 0 £0LEY SIEEr yI0EY P0L LL6'98 6027 o6t'Se AR o fors3-1A
LLL/GEY grLlSL'E Y0EBPE T 955'868'2 LBE'LLD 052'1EE 080 4¥5 TIG 48T z0L'58E PP/ '9EB $ES' LB 056068 uep
Sagg Mg ebesp - J3JBN - @PES{ ~.eBESM. . a8l - sbesn - - JORI 9BES(l - JaRW . obEs[ - JOPN - B T OBES - 4313 .. abes TN aed]
B CZLRUOM ) : L OLR M S GEIMN S L e - R 1L S WM
veod o ze0d ROt =1 T EILES hed 8004 pad - .
¥ZoT

abesn « Buipeay Jalal
uonesodicy JuswIBAsg (8207 winBag-aueydg




SSLGC Monthly Production

C O C LK g s £ g
S g 2 o &6 9 b O
T B T §@ 8 6 ¢ B
3 3 092 3 3 3 5 3
9 T W a9 9 9 T
g 2 g g £ 9 g ¢
o oo a o0 a4 n
M~ @ D e N
- = v N o NNy
o o 0O 0 0o C o 9
NN NN NN
g m oo R B O
........................... (9({?
[ANRRNASEE i
T s %,
MITETT] LLELELLLLLL i
e M A S SN,
4,
DA Ty DA A LA Dl T T DA A T A LA DA T DA T T A T ER T TR TR 5
....................... ;,
: x Q/%
e T Y T I T L EE T AN TR E L L L L ETTET ]
‘Io( S I 4 ’«a
’C@
et e a e FaFa i Fadu et ta e bu e Ba Tp Fu o Ha 0 Uu 2 By /:)
i
%,
[REEE i
A
%
e
T T T T 1
[ o o < (a3 Qo o o [ o
S =) S = S S = S =) =
< (] Qo o o Q (w3 Q o (]
[ ] o «Q o] [ (w8 (=] o
o @ 3 «, S 5] © < I
b — — L R

(1085-0498) NOILLONQAOH

July 2024



npa‘jun-iojiuowlybnolip

&

1{ua) cozmm_u,__\/_ Em:o.hn_ |euclleN

uosuyor Aespur

-oginy

xdse noqy/npae jun-oyuowlyBnoip//:sdyy o} 0b Uoyuop wybnoug

ayj Uo uojeULIOUl alow 40 Aiea Aew suogpUod (8307
“SUOIPUOD 8[BIS-PRO.IG UO S8SM04 JOJUON JYBnoiq 8yl

wbnoiq jeuondsox3 +Q l Bnoiq sresepoi LA _H_
ybnoiq swenx3 €Q l fig Alewsouqy 0d _H_

wbnoig esenes za [ | BUON _H_

TSI

£202-10-80

90'L | 18 | 9z6L | 60725 | 0882 | 0212 | 0By seap suo

£202-9¢-60
89zL | 90'c | 9965 | ¥908 | 26796 | €0'€ | JEOA 431EM
j0 uB}S
$202-20-L0
890 | 89 | 8221 | Lv6e | 0v°09 | 09°6€ | 4B2A JBPUSIED
j0 uB}S

#202-0€-¥0
oby syjuop £

000 | soz |oveEL | Lyl | CCLiv | 8LCS

$202-€2-£0

0c0 | 1ve | 6221 |921T | 882r | 2L | yaopiseq

0£0 | 9c¢ | 88°LL | BE0Z | §8'L¥ | SL'8S usungy

JaiEJaBlall 70-2d | ¥d-1d | #0-00 | SUON

(Bauy Jusdiad) suonipuo ybnoig

103 'wre g pleA
(#20z ‘L "Bny ‘Aepsiny pases|ay)

y20z ‘0s AInr

TS A4
LY
BT

Y
Vg, o
L

sexa|
Jojuopy 3ybnouq ‘s'n



Water Weekly

For the week of 07/29/24

Water conditions

The latest drought map for conditions

as of July 23 shows improvement |
in large areas of Central Texas and T |
scattered areas of both improvement T
and degradation in the Panhandle and

West Texas. Overall, the area of the state
impacted by drought fell to its smallest I g
extent since mid-February. Vool W S B

Jh

Drought conditions Intensity \
21% now [ ] DO none
25% a week ago [ D1 abnormally dry

D2 moderate drought
" D3 severe drought
I D4 extreme drought
I D5 exceptional drought

289% three months ago
49% a year ago

TEXAS WATER

EVELOPMENT BOARD

Map courtesy of the
U.S. Drought Monitor

Statewide reservoir storage

Statewide water supply storage usually declines during July. This year, cooler and wetter than normal conditions
have allowed us to maintain storage at about 77 percent of capacity. That’s four percentage points above last

year, but still more than six percentage points lower than normal for this time of year.

— = Min/Max (1990-2023)
-+ = Median (1990-2023)

—— 2024 —i— 2023 —o 2022 —¥— 2011

E
L
4
c
]
=
4]
o
’_.‘._-..-..'.--'-'--‘.-""""‘i.., : "“.._.-._._'i
i = : r f ‘ i ? , ]
R N N S T . L G L
TWDB chart
By Dr. Mark Wentzel, Hydrologist, Office of Water Science and Conservation www.twdb.texas.gov

Kellen McMurry, Government Relations | Kellen.McMurry@twdb.texas.gov | 512-475-1589
Media Relations | MediaRelations@twdb.texas.gov | 512-463-5129

OX0Oo0Mn




Water Weekly

For the week of 08/05/24

Water conditions

The latest drought map for conditions

as of July 30 shows improvements in
Central Texas and a mix of improvements
and degradations in the Panhandle and
North Texas. Overall, drought contracted
one percentage point and now covers
one-fifth of the state, its smallest extent

since October 2021.

Drought conditions
20% now

21% a week ago

27% three months ago
529% a year ago

(¢

Intensity

[] DO none
[ ] D1 abnormally dry
D2 moderate drought
D3 severe drought
I D4 extreme drought
B D5 exceptional drought

< TEXAS WATER

DEVELOPMENT BOARD

Map courtesy of the
U.S. Drought Monitor

Drought change
in the last month

The area of the state impacted
by drought contracted more
than five percentage points in
the last month, the fifth largest
contraction in July in the last
25 years.

But drought
intensified in
West Texas, where
exceptional drought
re-emerged in the state
after a nearly seven-
month absence.

Map courtesy of the U.S, Drought Monitor

Key

- 5 Class Degradation
- 4 Class Degradation
l 3 Class Degradation

2 Class Degradation

1 Class Degradation

' No Change

1 Class Improvement
| 2 Class Improvement
B 3 ciass Improvement
B 2 class Improvement

- 5 Class Improvement

By Dr. Mark Wentzel, Hydrologist, Office of Water Science and Conservation

Kellen McMurry, Government Relations | Kellen.McMurry@twdb.texas.gov | 512-475-1589
Media Relations | MediaRelations@twdb.texas.gov | 512-463-5129

www.twdb.texas.gov

OXOoMn




Journal

ume 15 Number 1 | 2024




+ 'Texas!

Journal

Volume 15, Number 1

ISSN 2160-5319

rexaswaterjournal.org

THE TEXAS WATER JOURNAL is an online, peer-reviewed, and indexed journal devoted to the timely consideration

of Texas water resources management, research, and policy issues. The journal provides in-depth analysis of Texas water
resoltrces management and policics from a mul[idisciplinnry perspective that integrares science, engineering, law, planning,
and other disciplines. It also provides updates on key state legislation and policy changes by Texas adminiscrarive agencies.

For more information on the Texas Water Journal as well as our policies and submission guidclines, please visit

texaswateriournal.org. As a 501(c)(3)

nonprafit arganization, the Texas Water Journal needs your support to provide Texas

with an open-accessed, pccr»mvicwcd publication that focuses on Texas water. Dlease consider donating,

Editor-in-Chief
Todd H. Voreeler, Ph.D.
Collaborative Warter Resolurion LLC

Managing Editor
Vacant
Layout Editor
Sarah L. Richardson

Texas Water Resources Institute

Editorial Board
Kathy A. Alexander, PhL.D.

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

Gabricl B. Collins, §.D.
Raker Institure for Public Policy
Nelun Fernando, Ph.D,

Texas Water Development Board

Ken Kramer, PL.D.
Lone Sear Chapter of the Sierra Club

Dorina Murgulet, Ph.DD.
Texas A&M University-Corpus Chrisd
Ken A. Rainwarer, Ph.D.
Texas Tech University
Rosario F Sanchez, Ph.D.
Texas Water Resources Institute

Michael H. Young, Ph.D.
The University of Texas at Austin

4,

Texas Water
Resources Institute

methe veery diafy cont

= BUREAU OF
- FcoNnOoMIC
GEOLOGY

The Texas Warer Journal is published in cooperation with

the Texas Water Resources Institute, part of Texas A&M
Agrilife Rescarch, the Texas A&M Agrilife Extension
Service, and the College of Agriculture and Life Sciences
at Texas A&M University and the Burcau of Economic
Geology in the Jackson School of Geosciences at The
University of Texas at Austin.

DOAJ
seal

The Texas Water Journal is indexed by Scopus, Google

Scholar, and the Directory of Open Access Journals.

Cover photo:
The Narrows on the Blance River.
©2020 Erich Ross Schlegel, Texas Water Foundation.



Texas Water Journal
Volume 15, Number 1, March 19, 2024
Pages 34-54

Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues
at the Forefront of Large-scale Production from
a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

Steven C. Young!*, Carlos Rubinstein?, and Russell Johnson?

Abstract: Continuing population growth, increasing demands for warer, and declining warer availability are starewide water
concerns in Texas, The development and movement of water from where it is located to where it is needed entails benefits to the
receiving area and concerns for the area of ovigin. The Visea Ridge Project serves as an on-point example and case study of issucs
that will be revisited with furure large water projects across Texas. Warer level declines in existing wells caused by production from
the Vista Ridge well field was a focus of significant public discussion in 2022, including Texas House and Senate interim session
hearings. This paper spotlights groundwarer management issues related to the Vista Ridge Project, including well mitigation;
impacts from groundwater production across groundwater conservation districe boundarics; meaningful consideration of nine
factors in Texas Water Code § 36.108 (d): achiceving the balance berween groundwater production and conservation in Texas
Water Code § 36.108 (d-2); protection of properey rights; and the need for both good science and good science communication
during the joint«plmming process.

Keywords: Mitigation, property rights, fair share, modeled available groundwater, Groundwater Management Area 12, Post
Oalk Savannah GCD, Lost Pines GCD, Vista Ridge, socioeconomic impacts, desired furure conditions

1 Principal Geoscientist, INTERA Incarporated, Austin, TX
2 Principal of RSAH,0, LLC and a former Chairman of the Texas Water Development Board and Commissioner of the Texas Commission
on Environmental Quality

s Of Counsel, MeGinnis Lochridge, Austin, TX

* Corresponding author: syoung@intera.com

Received 14 June 2023, Accepted 20 December 2023, Published enline 19 March 2024.

Cirarion: Young $C, Rubinstein C, and Johnson R. 2024. Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large scale
Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project. Texas Water Journal, 15(1):34-54. Available from: hieps://doi.org/10.21423/
wi.v13il.7161.

© 2024 Steven C. Young, Carlos Rubinstein, and Russell Johnson. This work is licensed under the Creative Commons Attrbution 4.0
International License. To view a copy of this license, visit https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/ ar visit the TW] website.

b W

I S
FIAREERIS 3 [N B



Terms used in paper

Acronym/Initialism

Descriptive Name

affyr

acre-feet per year

bgs below ground surface

BVGCD Brazos Valley Groundwater Conservation District
DFC{s) desired future condition(s)

ft feet

fit/day square feet per day

GAM(s) groundwater availability modei(s)

GCD(s) groundwater conservation district(s)

GMA{s) groundwater management area(s)

GULF Gulf Coast Land Subsidence and Groundwater-Flow
GWAP Groundwater Assistance Program

HB House Bill

LPGCD Lost Pines Groundwater Congervation District
MAG(s) modeled available groundwater(s)

PDL protective drawdown fimits

POSGCD Post Oak Savannah Groundwater Conservation District
SAWS San Antonio Water System

TCEQ Texas Commission on Environmentai Quality

TWC Texas Water Code

TWDB Texas Water Development Board

Usc United States Code




36

Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

INTRODUCTION

The 2022 Texas state water plan predicts that Texas’s popu-
lacion will increase 73% beeween 2020 and 2070 (Texas Water
Development RBoard [TWDBI. 2022}, During this 50-year

period, the demand for municipal warer will increase 66%,

or upproximatcly 3.3 million acre-fect per year {affyr). The
existing supply of water is projected to decline by 18% over
the same period, pri marily due to statewide aquifer depletion
(TWDE, 2022). More than 25% of the growth in water usage

is pmjcctcd o occur in four Texas reglonal water planning

groups. The warer demand for these four regional warer plan-
ning groups, which encompass the cities of Dallas, Fort Worth,
Houston, San Antonio, and Austin, is projected to increase 2.5
million aflyr from 2020 w 2070 (TWDRB, 202}).

The complexity of moving water 1o where it is needed will be

a kcy factor in mecting Texas's unprcccdcnted economic and
population groweh. Projects that move water from where it is
located to where it is needed have socioeconomic impacts to
both the receiving area as well as the arca of origin. Updat-
ed groundwater modeling and proper construction of these
models are indispensable to properly consider the benefits and
impacts from such projects.

This paper presents a case study of the Vista Ridge Proj-
CL

a large groundwarer export project in Burleson Coun-
ty—that illustrates the controvessics, uncertainties, impacis,
and expenses associated with moving large volumes of ground-
warer o where it is needed in Texas and spotlights issues that
will likely be of concern related to other Texas groundwater
development projects in the near future, These issues include:
» The potential importance of a fair share docuine to
the protection of property rights, the production of
groundwater, and the conscrvation of groundwater in

place (see scerion elaborating on this topic);

« Consideration of permirced production as a factor when
developing desired Future conditions (DFCs) {ree section
claborating on this topic):

. ) - . . -
o Consideration of focal socioeconomic impacts from the

gmundwatc‘r':s area of origin when developing DFCs (ser

scction claborating on this topic);
e Datential benefits from presenting spatial and temporal
distributions of drawdowns and water levels generated by
groundwarer availability model (GAM) simulations used

to develop DFCs (see secdon elaborating on this topich
s Recognirion of uncertainty in GAM predictions of

drawdown and DFCs (see section claborating on this
tapic): and

o Understanding, the limitations of modcled available
groundwater (MAG) as an indicator for assessing the
achieverment of a DEC (see scetion claborating on this
topic).

ey jour

Given that groundwater water supply projects filee the Vism
Ridge Project are being considered across Texas, groundwaser
decision makers would benefic from a familiarization with the
groundwater issucs, science, modeling, and mitigating facrors
associated with the Vista Ridge Project. Additionally, now thar
the 88th Texas Legislature has passed bitls partly informed by
the experiences and acrions to mirigate impacts from ground-
water  production for rransport—such as the Vista Ridge
Project—this case study should assist GCDs with developing
thitigation policics and accomplishing their groundsvarer man-
agement goals.

The case study is arganized into five additional sections.
Section [} provides informadon on the hydrogeology and
production associated with the Vista Ridge well ficld and on
the Post Oak Savannah Groundwater Conservation District
(POSGCD) management strategics most relevant to permit-
ting and regularing Vista Ridge. Section 11 discusses several of
the complex issues associated with the Vista Ridge Project from
the perspectives associated with the responsibilities assigned to
(GCDs and groundwater management areas (GMAs). Section
IV provides recommendations for improving the management
of the joint planning process for adopting DFCs. Section V
provides references, and Section VI provides the atrtachment.

GENERAL INFORMATION
Vista Ridge Project

The Visra Ridge Project is in western Burleson Couney with-
in a few miles of the Lee Counry border. In 2020, the Vista
Ridge Project began producing 50,000-55,000 affyr from the
Carrizo-Wilcox Aquifer and transporting it through a 142-mile
pipeline to San Antonio. Because of impacts on the water levels
in existing wells, the Vista Ridge Praject was a facus of signif-
jcant public discussion in 2022, including Texas House and
Senate interim session hearings, front-page newspaper articles,
GMA 12 meerings, and GCD meetings. These discussions
and concerns led to consideration of several bills attempting
to address the issues during the B8ch Texas legislative session.

H)fdrageofagim[ Conditions

Vista Ridge production occurs fram the deep confined por-
tion of the Carrizo-Wilcox Aquifer. The Carrizo-Wilcox Aqui-
fer is composed of four geologic units, which from youngest to
oldest (or from shallowest to deepest) arc the Carrivo, Calvert
Bluft, Simshoro, and Hooper aquifers. The Visea Ridge wells
arc completed in the Carrizo and Simsboro aquifers.

Figure 1 shows the locations of the Vista Ridge well field and
areas where the four geologic unirs outcrop at ground surface.
Figure 2 shows a vertical cross section of the Carrizo-Wilcox
Aquifer along a transect that begins in Milam County and

Yosln




Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project 37

Mites

W Vel

Hrazos

Y i

g

0 Bl

Al

I~

Hooper Outcrop m Vista Ridge Well Field

Simsboro Quterop || Vista Ridge Lease Area
i Calvert Bluff Outcrop — Cross Section Transect
! Carrizo Qutcrop

Figure 1. Location of the Vista Ridge well field and the cutcrops of the four geolegic
units that comprise the Carrizo-Wilcox Aquifer (outcrop is where the aguifer intersects
the ground sueface}.

1000
NW 4 - MHam County | Burleson County % aq SE
" R land surface
0 Rt ezl
Vetlyin
- 4 Quifey,
-

-1000 ]
. b4
kT3 B0
£ .2000 = b
s - Carrizo Water Level 2019 £
E o« Carrizo Waterlevel 2022 S
_:_J -3000 -~ Simshoro Water Level 2019

---- simshoro Water Level 2022
4000 * yista Ridge well field is tocated
24 - 25 miles down dip. Py
Casriro wells: 15,000 ALY Oty
on
5000 simshioro wells: 40,835 AFY
0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35
Distance Down Dip {miles)
I—

Figure 2. Vertical cross section along Transect A-A" in Figure 1 showing the four geological units that comprise the
Carrizo-Wilcox Aquifer, the locations of several geologic faults, the Vista Ridge wells, and the Carrizo and Simsboro aquifer
water levels in 2019 and 2022,




38

Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

passes through the Vista Ridge well field in Burleson County.
The cross section shows that the Carrizo-Wilcox Aquifer dips
roward the southeast and accurs at increasingly decper depths
coward the Gulf Coast. At the Visea Ridge well field, che tops
of the Carrizo and the Simsboro aquifers occur ac approximate-
ty 800 and 2,000 feet (ft) below ground surface (bgs), respec-
tively. Also shown in Figure 2 arc 2019 and 2022 water fevel
surfaces for the Carrizo and Simsboro aquifers. A water fevel
surface represents the height that water will sise in a well as
a result of the hydraulic pressute in the aquifer. Water level
is recorded relarive to sea level and has the units of feer above
mean sea level,

Aquifer systems can be categorized as cither unconfined or
confined. Unconfined aquifer conditions exist where the water
fevel in a well occurs below the top of the aquifer, typically ar
aquifcr autcrops. Conlined aquifcr conditions cxist where the
water level in a well occurs above the top of the aquifer. In an
unconfined aquifer a decline in a well’s water level represents
1 reduction in the saturated thickness of the aquifer caused
by removal af water from the pore spaces hetween the aqui-
for sands and clays. In a confined aquifer, a decline in a well’s
water level represents a change in the hydeaulic pressure of the
groundwater in a fully-saturated aquifer. [F sufficient draw-
down occurs, a confined aquifer system will transition from a
confined aquifer info an unconfined aguiter.

The water levels in Figure 2 show that despite drawdowns of
hundreds of feer in both the Carrizo and Simsboro aquifers in
2022, both aquifess remain fully saturated with water levels in
the production wells oceurring several hundred feet above the
top of their respective aquifer.

Operation Permits, Wells, and Groundwater
Production

The Vista Ridge production permit is associared with 29,026
acres of leased water rights, which under POSGCD rudes allow
a maximum annual production of 58,052 atfyr. The Vista
Ridge permit has an annaal production cap of 59,835 affyr,
which consists of 15,000 affyr from the Carrizo Aquifer and
40,835 affyr from the Simsboro Aquifer.

Vista Ridge began testing the well field and transmission sys-
rem in late 2019, Delivery of groundwarer to the San Anronio
Water System (SAWS) started in April 2020. Groundwarter
production occurs from 18 wells: nine wells pump the Carriro
Aquifer, and anather nine wells pump the Simsboro Aquifer.
The ninc Carrizo Aquifer wells have screened intervals thiar
span the interval fram about 800 to 1,250 fr bgs. The nine
Simshoro Aquifer wells have screened incervals thar span the
interval from about 2,200 ro 2,700 ft bgs. Through the end of
2022, the maximum pcrmirtcd pumping rates for the Carrizo
Aquifer and Simsboro Aquifer wells were 1,200 and 3,000 gal-

lons per minu, l'cspcctivciy.

Faver Jowmal

Drawdotwns Genevated from 2 Years of Vista Ridge
Production

Figures 3 and 4 show drawdowns for the first 2 years of Vista
Ridge production in the Carrizo and Simisharo aquifers, respee-
tively. The drasvdown contours were generated by interpolating
water level changes {drnwdown) berween water fevels measu red
prior to Vista Ridges 2020 production and in carly 2022,
Within the well fcld, the drawdowns are appmximarciy 400
and 300 fr in the Carrizo and Simsboro aquifers, respectively.
The cones of depression created by the Vista Ridge pumping
in the Cartizo and Simshoro aquifers extend approximately 15
and 25 miles into Lee County, respectively.

Post Oak Savannah Groundwater Conservation
District

Groundwater production from the Vista Ridge Project is per-
mitred by the POSGCD. The POSGCD was creared in Milam
and Burleson counties by House Bill (HB) 1784 in 2001 and a
local confirmation clection in November 2002, The POSGCD
is 1 member of GMA 12, which sets DFCs for the Carrizo and
Simsboro aquifers. POSGCD is baedered by two other GCDs
that are members of GMA 12: Lost Pines GCD (LPGCD)
to the southwest and Brazos Valley GCD (BVGCD) to the
northeast, This scetion discusses several POSGCD manage-
ment strategics and programs relevant o addressing impacts
from large production projects such as the Vista Ridge Project.

Management Strategy: Management Zones and
Mairagement Areas

The POSGCD allaws production up tw a total of 2 alfyr
for each acre tied to the permic application. This maximum
production is allowed until changes in aquifer conditions or
groundwarter levels mandate curtailment of permitted pro-
duction. Allecations of water per acre are not uncommon in
water management and permitting, For evaluating and man-
aging groundwater resources, POSGCD has assigned cach of
its aquifers to a separate management Zone and has subdivided
the management zones into Management areas. POSGCD has
adapted DFCs for the Carrizo and Simsboro aquifers that are
in Table 1. The DFCs represent the average predicted draw-
down across the entire aquifer from January 2011 to January
2070, The protective drawdown limiss (PDLs) in Table 1 were
derived using the same methodology and GAM simulations
used to determine DFCs, except the management arcas cov-
er only a portion of the aquifer instead of the entire aquifer.

POSGCD creared the PDLs to address concerns about poten-

tial problems with enforcing DFC compliance caused by the
absence of monitoring wells across large areas of the aquifer.

CNumber |




Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale 19
Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

L[ vista Ridge Well Field |

Confined Carrizo Aquiler
2022 Monitoring Wells
X GWAP Well
s Drawdown Conlour
| —— Cross Section Transect

? J TR .
- s o
- . @, -
" Braves
[,

ftans

Williapson

Hurlagis ‘ e
g 0o
]‘[ o (L_W

- fab iasii
o ! ‘¢ Yazhingio
Bastrop \ . . o Q ¥ tar
Vi - .‘

Figure 3. Contours of drawdown in the Carrizo Aquifer that oceurred
from 2019 to 2022 based on interpolation of measured water level
data. Also shown are the location of 92 Carrizo Aquifer wells that Post
Oak Savannah Groundwater Conservation District assisted through its
Groundwater Assistance Program {GWAP).

1

=1 {7} Vista Ridge Well Field
i simsbaro Qutcrop
‘Confined Simshoro Aqguifer
e 2022 Monitoring Wells
®  GWAP Well
e Cipawdown Contour
—— Cross Section Transect

Brazog

T

Washingtan

' t o . Al v
% L B £

Figure 4. Contours of drawdown in the Simsboro Aquifer that occurred
from 2019 to 2022 based on interpolation of measured water level data.

Fiwn ey booanal, Valioe B8 Blonsbe i




40 Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale
Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

Table 1. Post Oak Savannah Groundwater Conservation District desired future conditions (DFCs)
and protective drawdown limits (PDLs) for the Carrizo and Simsboro aquifers.

Milam

Bastrop

Aquifer Average drawdown January 2011-December 2069 T
management DFC for PDL for PDL for
zone entire aquifer Management Area 1 | Management Area 2
Carriza 146 75 175
Simshoro 278 g1 335
0 ~+ Monitoring Wells

F [ vista Ridge Well Field

+ Exempt Wells
» Permitted Wells
Carrizo Aguifer
: Management Area 1
‘Management Area 2

¢

Brazos

Washinglon

Figure 5. Areal extend of the Carrizo Aguifer and two management areas
associated with Post Oak Savannah Groundwater Conservation District
desired future conditions and protective drawdown limits.

Figure 9 shows the management arcas associated with the owo
PDLs for the Carrizo Aquifer. Borh management areas have
monitoring wells spatially distribured throughout the entire

ared,
Management Strategy: Curtailment of Production

POSGCD rules that govera reductions in permittcd produc-
tion are summarized as follows:

o Preventing DFCs or PDLs exceedances: POSGCD has
three threshold levels (1, 2, and 3) to gage compliance

o DFECs and PDLs. Each increasing threshold level
provides for an increased level of response. POSGCD has
rules ta authorize the development of plans for reducing
permitced production when threshold level 3 has been

Toeas Wher Townal

exceeded. Threshold level 3 is reached when 75% of a
DFEC ara PDL has been achieved.

Restoration of aquifer conditions after an naveasonable
imiperct: Before granting or denying a permit, Texas
Warer Code (TWC) § 36.113 (d) (2) requires GCDs to
consider if the permitted production would unreasonably
affect existing groundwarer and surface water resources or
existing permit holders. POSGCD defines unreasonable
impacts  in their Rule 16.4.6 (POSGCD. 2023a).
POSGCD considers the impacrs from an aggregate

of wells associated with one or more permits t be
unreasonable if pumping from the aggregated wells by
themselves and not part of the aggregate of pcrmitted
wells caused by any one of several conditions. Far the
confined aquifer condirions occurring at the Vista Ridge

Vesline 19, MNispber



Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

41

Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

Project, POSGCD Rule 16.4.6 states unrcasonable
impacts to groundwater are defined as more than a 100-
foot reduction and more than a 40% reduction in water
level above the top of the aquifer being pumped along any
part of the boundary of the permit’s property,

Gronndwater Assistance Program

POSGCD began developing its Groundwarer Assistance
Program {GWAD) in carly 2016, received public comment
throughout 2017, and adopred the program an January %,
2018, The primary objective of {FWAP is to predice and pro-
vide corrective action for landowners whose wells experience
water level declines below the pump duc to regional pumping
in GMA 12. Corrective actions provided by GWAD include,
bur are not limited to, lowering a pump in a well, modifying
the construction of an existing well, or drilling a new well. In
imost cases, these actions result in the pump being setaca depth
chat is below the anticipated 30-year water tevel decline. Te be
eligible for funding u nder GWAD, a well miust be a low capacity
non-cxempt well or an exempt well, Anocher eligibility require-
ment For GWAD assistance is that the landowner commits to
the well becoming a part of the POSGCD mositoring pro-
gram. As of December 2022, GWAT had addressed 100 wells.
Out of these 100 wells, 92 are Carrizo Aquifer wells, the loca-
tions of which ase shown in Figure 3.

TEXAS WATER CODE § 36.0015 (b)
REQUIREMENTS OF GROUNDWATER
CONSERVATION DISTRICTS

Per TWC § 36.0015 (b), GCDs have the responsibility “to
protect property rights, balance the conservation and develop-
ment of gmundwatm' to meet the needs of this state, and use

the best available science in the conservation and development

rights is the evolution of case law regarding aroundwarer as a
property right. For that reason, this paper includes Artachment
A, which provides a historical account of case law on the own-
ership of groundwater in Texas.

Property Right Issues Raised by Well Owners Affecred
by Vista Ridge Production

The Vista Ridge Project gained increased seatewide atren-
tion with an August 2021 Texas Tribune article entitled Cen-
tnid Tesas Landowners Blame SAWS Vista Ridge Pipeline for Dry
Wells (Douglas, 2021). The article stares that dozens of land-
aowners in LPGCD have lowered their water pumps because of
declines in water Jevels attributed w the Vista Ridge Project.
Public hearings were conducted by the Texas House Commit-
ree on Natural Resources on August 24, 2022, and by the Texas
Senate Committee on Water, Agriculture & Rural Affairs on
November 16, 2022, During both hearings, rural landowners
from LPGCD voiced complaints over the Vista Ridge Proj-
cet. The complaints included a loss of property rights caused
by lower water levels, the financial burden of lowering pumps,
e access to a well assistance program similar o POSGCD’s
GWAP, no cvaluation of local sociceconomic impacts of Vista
Ridge permits as part of the DFC process, and the injustice of
watcr marketers profiting ar the expense of rural landowners.

During the 2022 House interim session hearing, the LPG-
CD president’s concern regarding the impacts of the Vista
Ridge Projeet on Lec County was conveyed in the testimony:
“One option is for us [ic, LPGCD to file a petition with
TCEQ) asserting that Post Oak is not properly managing their
groundwater, not considering uneasonable impacts, nor bal-
ancing groundwater production with conservation as required
by starure. Though Chaprer 36 is a great tool ro assist disericts
in managing, their groundwater resources in a fair and equitable

s . . n -
manne, i'!“i{?h 15 opch o ll]tCI'Pi'Ctﬂl‘lO!l (TCX’&S HO[IS"C Com-

mitree on Naoural Resources, 2022, 4:34:42).

of groundwater through rules” (TWC § 36, 2023, 8 36.0015
(b)), Per TWC § 36.108 {d-2), within a GMA, GCDs are
requited to adopt DFCs thar “provide a balance bherween the
highest practicable level of groundwater production and the
conservation, preservarion, protection, recharging, and preven-
tion of waste of groundwater and control of subsidence in the

management area” (TWC § 36, 2023, § 36.0018 (d-2)).

Protect Property Rights

TWC § 36.002 recognizes that landowners own the ground-
water below the surface of their land as real property. The TWC
also authorizes GCDs to regulate the drilling and operation
of wells within their jusisdiction. Despite assigning the GCD
responsibilitics to protect property rights, the TWC does not
clearly articulare what thar protection entails, much less how it
should be 1mpicmcntcd. Relevant ro any discussion of property

33 \ F Eo
Vo S fooraal, Wolooe 1)

Potential Importance of a Fair Share Doctrine to

the Protection of Praperty Rights, the Produnction of
Groundwater, and the Couservation of Groundwater
in Place

Fair share is relevanc to the discussion of the protection of
propesty rights since che opinion in Fdwards Aquifer Authority
# Day (2012). Case law has established that groundwarer is a
vested right and regulation cannot unreasonably deprive tand-
owners of their vested groundwater rights withour just com-
pensation. However, because fair share has not been explicitly
applicd in evaluating GCD regulations and is not defined in
TWC § 36, the application of fair share to permit decisions
remains unexplained by the courts, Conscquently, a landown-
er’s property right to preserve, profect, and produce ground-

Poprrbeer




42

Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

water is for all practical purposes determined by the rules of
capture or the groundwater rules of a GCI or of a conserva-
tion district.

Per TWC § 36.0015, GCDs are required ro use the best
available science ro develop rules associated with conservation
and development of groundwarer (TWC § 3G, 2023). A sen-
sible assumption for TWC § 36.0015 is w promote similar

and reasonable groundwater rules and by extension similar
protection of property rights for landowners sharing the same
aquifer but located in adjacent GCDs. Yer the rules developed
by POSGCD and LPGCD to regulate production from the
Carrizo-Wilcox Aquifer in Burleson and Lee counties have sub-
scantial differences. The differences in LPGCD and POSGCD
rules and policies concerning, the protection of property and a
fair share doctrine would scemingly be the basis for the con-
cerns raised by the LPGCD president during the 2022 Legis-
lacure interim hearings (Texas House Commircee_on Narural
Resources, 2022, 4:34:42).

The decisions of the courts discussed in Artachment A sug-

gest that the fair share doctrine applicable to mineral owner-
ship and development, if applied to groundwarer, will need to
be modified to account for how groundwarer differs from oil/
aas in both its source and uses. Policies regarding a fair share
docirine for groundwater property rights should therefore con-
sider, among other facrars, the following: {1} historic use M
provisions for future use because unlike oil and gas, it is replen-
ished; (3) consequences caused by the use of groundwater, such
as environmental impacts or land subsidence; {4) prevention
of waste; (3) considerations for groundwater’s many uses from
irrigation and industry o drinking and recreation; and (0) just
compensation for a possible raking, Both POSGCD and LPG-
CD have comparable rules thar address several of these items,
including well spacing, achicvement of the DFCs, the preven-
dion of waste, consideration of environmental impact, and land
subsidence. For this paper, we have focused on noticeable dif-
ferences between the POSGCD and LPGCD rules as related
to protection and production of groundwarer. The comparisan
is based on GCD rules that were in existence at the time of
the legislative interim hearings in 2022, Since that time, LPG-
CD, POSGCD and BYGCD have adopred and are consider-
ing additional rule changes (BYGCD, 2023 LPGCD, 2023;
POSGCD, 202:

1. Historieal wse: POSGCD rules recognize historical pro-

a).

duction and provide greater protection than do the rules
for non-historical production permicted since the cre-
ation of POSGCD. LPGCD rules do not provide for
permitting of historic use.

2. Fair opportunity to extyact groundwater: POSGCD rules
recognize a carrelative right of 2 atlyr per acre assigned
o the permit o as the maximum annual production
associated with a permit. The 2 affyr/ac production rate
was adopted by POSGCD primarily to accommodate

frrigation needs for agricultural use but extends o all
types of permisted use w provide the same property right
regardless of usage. LPGCD does not use a correlative
right approach in its rules or permitting decisions. LIPG-
CD requires the applicant o prove the amount needed
for the intended use. The applicant then negotiates with
district staff to agree on a permit amount. If accepted,
the application is then sene to the LPGCD board for
approval, or the applicant, if unsatished, can request a
contested case hearing,

3. Reductions in authorized production to prevent wnredson-
able impacts: POSGCD adopted rules regarding unrea-
sonable impacts to help proweer and protect the ground-
water levels at the property boundary near large capacity
well fields. These rules augment POSGCD well spacing
rules and are intended to discourage a permistee from
clisproportionatcly concentrating pmduction wirthin a
small pordon of the permitted acreage near the property
boundary.

4. Well assistancelmitigation: Throughourt Texas, some per-
mit appiicants have volunrarily created mitigation pro-
grams to address impacts to existing wells. In POSGCD,
mitigation programs wirh a specifically targeted ser of
landowners were created and executed by the permirrees
for the Vista Ridge, Blue Warter 130, and Sandow Lakes
Properties Projects. As previously discussed, POSCCD
began using these funds to establish GWAP in 2018, In
LPGCD, Recharge Water LP agreed that the issued per-
mits would require funding a well mitigation program
that can be accessed after Recharge Water LP begins
production. During the House testimony, the LPGCD
president explained that LPGCI had searted a program
to reimburse well owners for their mitigation cfforts but
had terminated it after being threatencd with lirigation
by an atrorney. At the time of the hearing, LPGCD had
no mirigation program simifar to POSGCDs GWAPDP
(Texas House Committee on Narural Resources, 2022,
4:29:40).

The comparison of the two sers of GCD rules illustrates the

significant differences in how POSGCD and LPGCD were

managing and regularing groundwater resources in 2022. The

differences occurred despire the ewo GCDs overlying the same
aquifers and the TWC requirements o use best available sci-
ence in rulemaking and to protect properry rights. The notable
differences in rules heeween the two GCDs likely causes fand-
owners in both GCDs to question whether their GCD is appro-
priaccly protecting their property rights when a large well ficld
is permitted near their well(s). In the case of the Visma Ridge
well field, a disproportionate number of LPGCD landowners
as compared to POSGCD landowners vacalized their discon-
tentment with the Vista Ridge Project, Based on testimonics,
the LPGCD president’s and LPGCD landowners’ concerns go

i N B
Volirae 15, Mumber |



Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

43

Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

beyond the lack of a well assistance program like POSCCD
and includes several of the components of a fair share doctrine

for groundwater that have been previously discussed.
Emerging Issues

As the demand for groundwater in central Texas increases,
the question of how to balance property rights and manage
groundwater production and protection will grow increasingly
more contentious. The evolution of starutes and rules eelated
to protecting property rights could address a number of issues,
including the following:

» Whether the coures will apply the Fair share doctrine
to their evaluations of production authorizarions and
permits;

e What role the Legislature will play in outlining the
authority of groundwater disericts to regulate; and

s How GCD rules will evolve to strike an appropriate

the
groundwatcr with appropriate consideration for the

balance between  producing, and  protecting
pmrection of historical use, current use, and future
wse, while recognizing, the vested property rights of the
landowners and a responsibility to mecrt the nceds of the

state.

Balance the Conservation and Development of
Groundwater to Meet the Needs of the State

TWC § 36.0015 (b) casks GCDs with the responsibility to
hatance the conservation and development of groundwater to
meet the needs of the stare of Texas. This responsibility overlaps
with responsibilicies in TWC § 36,108 (d-2), which requires
GMAs to adopt DFCs that “must provide a balance between
the highest practicable level of groundwater production and
the conservation, preservagion, protection, recharging, and
prevention of waste of groundwater and control of subsidence
in the management area” (TWC § 36, 2023, § 36,108 (d-2)).

This scction discusses some of the challenges faced by GMAs

and GCDs when achieving these balancing requirements,
Overview of the Joiut Planning Process

The joint planning process requires GMAs to adopt DFCs
every 5 years. TWC § 36.001 defines DFCs as a “quantirative
deseription, adopted in accordance with Section 36.108, of the
desired condition of the groundwater resaurces in a manage-
ment area at one or more specified furure times” (ITWC § 36,
2023, §.36.001 (30). TWDB equates a DEC as a representa-

tion of “a management goal that caprures the philoso ohy and
g piy

policics addressing how an aguifer will be managed” (Mace et

al., 2000, p. 3; Mace et al,, 2008, p. 3}, Aftera GMA adopts

its DFCs, TWC § 36.1084 (b) requires TWDB to determine a

el

MAG for cach management arca thae che districts have adoprad
2 DFC (TWC § 36, 2023). A MAG is defined as “the amount

of water that may be produced on an average annual basis o

achieve a desired furure condition established under Seerion
36.108” (TWC § 36, 2023, § 36.001 (25)). The MAGs are

then incorporated into regional water plans and used o deter-

mine future available water and as part of the evaluation to
determine iF a water project is cligible for financial assistance

from the Stare Water Implementation Fund for Texas (SWIFT).

Consideration of Permitted Production as a Factor

When Developing DFCs

Like many other GMAs, GMA 12 used GAM simulations to
predict drawdown impacts caused by different future pumping,
scenarios to help evaluate DECs. After 20 GAM simulations,
GMA 12 selected Run S-19 in November 2021 for developing,
and justifying DFCs {Danicl B. Stephens & Assouiates et al.,
2022: POSGCD. 2623b). Most of the GMA 12 future pump-

ing scenarios, including Run §-19, were based on a combina-

tion of permitted and anticipated pumping.

Prior to adopting GAM Run S-19, POSGCD discovered
that GAM simulations that incorporated Visra Ridge’s full per-
mitted production of 15,000 aflyr from the Carrizo Aquifer
predicted what TOSGCD deemed as an undesirable amount
of drawdown in about 140 Carrize Aquifer wells in Burleson
County (INTERA Incorporated. 2020, INTERA Incorporat-
ed, 2021a, 2021b; POSGCD, 2021b, 2021¢; Wise, 2021, To

reduce the Vista Ridge pumping to a level that would achieve

a balance beoween development and conservarion, POSGCD
proposed to GMA 12 thar Vista Ridge reduce Vista Ridge max-
imum production in the Carrizo Aquifer from 15,000 affyr to
about 9,000 affyr, in the GAM, so that the maximum total
Casrizo Aquifer producrion in POSGCD would be reduced
from 18,200 aflyr to abour 12,000 affyr (INTERA Incorporat-
ed, 2021a). During cheir meeting on January 153, 2021, GMA
12 voted 4-1 (with POSGCD opposing) o nat only to main-
tain Carrizo Aquifer pumping rate in the GAM simulations
ac 15,000 affyr for the Vista Ridge Project but to keep that
pumping rate untit 2070, which is 18 years beyond when the
40-year Vista Ridge permit expires (GMA 12, 2021).

To justify their request to represent Vista Ridge Carrizo
Aquiter production as 9,000 affyr in the GAM simulations
instead of the permitred production of 15,000 af/yr, POSGCDH
(20213, 2021b) argued chat: (1) therc are no requirements in
the TWC to include all permitted production in the GAM
DFC simulations; (2) POSGCD had developed DFCs for the

Carrizo-Wilcox Aquifer primarily using spreadsheet calcula-

tions with minimal reliance on GAM simulations and permit-
ted production amounts in previous joint plzmning cycics: (3
the GAM simulations predicted thar Vista Ridge’s production
of 15,000 aflyr from the Carvizo Aquifer would lower water

PRI
s bbb



44

Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

fevels below pump clevations in an objectionable number of
exempt wells; and (4) a reduction in the drawdowns simulated
from a Vista Ridge production amount of 15,000 affyr from
the Carrizo Aquifer is warranted in order to achicve the balance
required in TWC § 36.108 (d-2) (POSGCD, 2021b, 2021¢;
Wisc. 2021).

During 2020 and 2021, GMA 12 had mu!tiplc discussions
abour whether all of Vista Ridge Project permitted production
in the Carrizo Aquiter should be included in GAM DFC simu-
lations. Several GCDs voiced concerns about legal action from
Vista Ridge if GMA 12 did not include the full Vista Ridge
production. Both BVGED (2021) and Vista Ridge Blue Water
(Terrill & Waldrop, 2020) sent letters to POSGCD to explain
the rationale for keeping the Vista Ridge Carrizo Aquiker pro-
duction ar 15,000 affyr in the GAM simulations. Below are

éxcerpts from their letters:

“To thart end, it is cssential thar the 15,000 acre-feer of
known, pci‘mittcd Carrizo Aquifcr pi'csduc{ion for the
Vista Ridee Mrojecrbe included in the model inpucin this

ge o} ¥
DFC/MAG planning cycle ro comply with the legal re-
quirements of Chapter 36" (Terrilt & Waldrop, 2020).
“The desired future conditions {{DFCs’) adopred un-

! 3
der Section 36.108 of the Texas Warer Code, are a
joint pl:mning rool of the managemenr area thar mustc

include in its planning numbers the groundwarer
permits issued by each groundwater diserice thar are
currentdly in effect, as well as known production. ...
The request of Posr Oale Groundwarer Conservation
District (POSGCD) 1o use a Groundwater Availabilicy
Model (“GAM™) run chat does not include all known
permicting and production in all districts is not only
troubling For transparency and accuracy issues, but also
for the precedence that it scts in the GMA of not ac-
knowledging cach district’s local permitting, Although
POSGCD this time is voluntarily asking GMA 12 ro
disregard permits thar it has issued, it is concemning
that the precedent would be set for the permits issued
by the constiruent distriets to be involuntarily disre-

garded by the GMA in the future”™ (BVGCD, 2021).

Consideration of Local Sociocconomic Impacts from
the Groundwater’s Area of Origin When Developing
DFCs

The TWC lists two key requirements for developing DFCs.
TWC § 36.108 (d) stares char the districes shall consider ninc
factars when developing the DECs, and TWC § 36.108 (d-2)
states that DFCs “must provide a balance between the highest
practicable level of groundwarer production and the conserva-
tion, preservation, prorection, recharging, and prevention of

waste of groundwarer and controb of subsidence” {(EWC § 36
2023, § 36.108 (d-2)).

During the House and Senate public hearings concerning
Vista Ridge and during GMA 12 meetings, LPGCD land-

owners expressed concerns that GMA 12 was not adequately

considering the nine factors. A specific concern was an alleged
inadequate consideration of the sociocconomic lmpact to exist-
ing exempt wells and specifically chosc wells near Vista Ridge.
As discussed in a recent Environment Defense Fund report
{Rubinstein & Puig-Williams, 2023), GMA 12 and most ather
GMAs mer the TWC requirement for considering the socio-

cconomic impacts by presenting the TWDB sociocconomic
impacts for regional water planning groups, which focusecs on
the impacts of not meeting the identified water needs in their
regional water plans.

A criticism of using the TWDB sociveconomic analysis is
thar it does nor address the saciceconomic impacts associat-
ed with declining aquifer levels from increased groundwarer
pumping and drought, which can result in local sncioeconomic
consequences, such as impaces to groundwater wells or aquifer
{nreractions with surface water. As a result, the TWIDB analysis
is not directly applicable for evaluating the differences in socio-
economic impacts assaciared with different DFCs, including
impacts to existing wells. An alternative or supplement to using
the TWDB sociocconomic analysis is one rhat considers local-
scale impacts tesulting from the water level changes predicred
by the DEC GAM simulation. One such approach is discussed
by Thompson et al. (2020), who desceibe a methodology that
includes evaluating the increased costs associated with lower-
ing pumps, replacing purmnps, and operating pumps as water
levels in existing wells decline over time because of regional
pumping. When POSCCD (POQSGCD, 2021b, 2021¢) pre-
sented their case to GMA 12 o reduce the Vista Ridge Carrizo
Aquifes pumping in the GAM simulations, their evaluation
was similar to that of Thompson ct al. (2020). POSGCD pre-
dicted drawdowns at existing wells and identificd wells where

pumps would require lowering to maintain the productivity of
the well. The approaches used by Thompson et al. (2020% and
POSGCD for assessing local-scale drawdown-related socioeco-
nomic impacts at individual wells is straightforward and pro-
vides the type of informarion that well owners can understand.

Put another way, the socioccanomic impact analysis cur-
rently undertaken by GMA 12 and ather GMAs thus far is
a one-way consideration of how insuthcicne additional warter
supply development impacts the area of need. As reflected in
this paper, and certainly a cenrral consideration, the impacts
to the area of the groundwa‘:cr origin nust be t’ccognizcd and
quantified as part of a proper assessmene of overall sacioeco-

nomic impacts. Alchough not comprehensive, the evaluations
conducted by POSGCD and Thompson et al. (2020) provide
a mechanism to help recognize local-scale impacts that have

been largely ignored by GMA 12 and other GMAs,




Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

45

Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

Emerging Issues

Among the emerging questions ar the forefront of ground-
watcr nlanagement issues with TWC § 36.108 (d-2) are:

« What are reasonable criteria [or defining a “highest
pracricable level of groundwater production”?

o Whar are reasonable criteria for evaluating whether DECs
pravide a balance between the opposing objectives of
production and proection of groundwater?

e Should the evaluation of the balance requirement be
determined piccemeal by each GCD or globally by the
GMA?

Possible drivers in evaluating balance requirements in ™WC
§ 36.108 {d-2) are considerations for the nine factors per TWC
§ 36.108 (d), a fair share doctrine applicable 1o groundwater,
and mitigation programs. The last issue may be fast approach-
ing some GMAs, including GMA 12, Within 5-10 ycars,
GMA 12 may have ar least three additional well fields besides
the Vista Ridge’s well fickd that are within a fow miles of a
GCD boundary, exporting groundwater outside of GMA 12,
These three known projects will export groundwater to a Sam-
sung plant in Taylor, Texas, and to the cities of Georgetown,
Hutto, and Manor. The transport permits for all four water
supply projects will fikely exceed 110,000 affyr—thus, the fees
associated with the passage of HB 3059 during the 88th fegis-
Jative session could be substancial. HB 3059 authorizes a GCDh
to use fees collected from the export of water to matntain the
operability of wells significantly affected by groundwater devel-
opment, develop and distribure aleernative water supplies, or
conduct aquifer monitoring, dara colleetion, or science {(Kirkle

cral, 2023). An emerging issue that will impact the function-
ality among GCDs in a GMA is how the GCDs decide to share
fees authorized by HB 3059 with their neighboring GCDs and
whether well owners believe that their GCDs are adequately
funding the mitigagion of impacted wells.

During the thivd joint p]mming cycle thar was conlpicrcd in
January 2022, subtle bur significant changes oceurred in how
GMA 12 developed itss GAM simularion for DFC ¢valuations
compared to previous joint planning cycles. One change was a
greater emphasis on representing pcrmittcd production in the
CAM simulation for evaluating and developing DFCs. Anoth-
er change was to not allow POSGCD to determine how to
represent its permitted production in the GAM simulations.
During the hist two joine planning cycles, GMA 12 allowed
alt GCDs o anilaterally determine how to represent their per-
mitted production in the GAM simulations. Although we can
only speculate why these two changes oceurred, the GMA 12
meetings provide ample evidence that a motivation for these
two changes were concerns of a takings claim by the Vista
Ridge Project and other water supply projects if their permit-

ted production were not adequarely accounted for in the MAG

values determined by TWDDB. The use of GAM Run 5-19 w
develop DYCs for GMA 12 raises several questions about the
joint planning process, which include:

» [s there a point where the DFC process can become
over-reliant on GAM simulations given the inherent
limitations and deficiencies of GAMs?

¢ Under whar circumstances, if any, should individual
production permits be treated differently in generating
future pumping scenarios used in GAM simuladions to
develop DFCs?

o« Was GMA 125

[11a] CEL’.ETCP reseit

veta  of POSGCDYs

Vista Ridge Aquifer
production in the GAM simularions appropriate given
the requirements in TWC § 36,108 (d) and TWC §
36G.108 (d-2)?

request 1o

the Carrizo

Communicating the Use of Best Available Science

During the 2022 Senace and House interim hearings, there
were several inferences that bad science may have contributed
to some well owners being caught off guard by the large draw-
downs associated with Vista Ridge producrion. This section
discusses the science relevant o DFCs, MAGs, impacts caused
by Vista Ridge production in GMA 12, uncertainty associated
with the GAM predictions, and the importance of good com-
munication of the science to policy malers and the public.

Potential Benefits from Presenting the Spatial and
Temporal Distributions of Simulated Drawdotwns and
Water Levels Associated with GAM Simulations Used
to Develop DFCs

In GMA 12, as in some other GMAs, creating DECs has
evolved into a process where the pumping rates used in GAM
simulation for DFC evaluations are based on existing and
;mticipatcd ﬂpcmtional permits. Because they incorporate
AUMEroUs permits across a GMA, the output from chese simu-
lations, if analyzed and visualized properly, could provide valu-
able information for arcas with the greatest adverse impacts to
groundwarer levels and surface warer flows, The Vista Ridge
Project is included in most of GMA 12 GAM simulations,
inctuding Run §-19. Run $-19 thercfore contains informa-
tion about the spatial and temporal distributions of simulated
drawdowns that is potentially uscful for planning and anrici-
pating future impacts to existing wells.

Figares 6-9 have been generated to show how much grearer
and quicker drawdowns can occur in the localized aren around
the Vista Ridge Project compared ro the timingand magnitude
of a DFC at a regional scale. Figure 6 shows the contours of
drawdowns that are predicted to occur in 20112070 in the
Carrizo and Simsboro aquifers wirhin abour 35 miles of the

s 35, Misher |



46 Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale
Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

; " Gartizo Aquifer
{7 vista Ridge Well Field,
L. Simulaled Drawdown 5
(2011 - 2070)

,,,,, [ETE R W

Simsboro Aguifer !
T1vista Ridge Well Fietd’
 Simulated Drawdown |

{2011 - 2070} :

-~

' -

fipsdes N
5,

e

Figure 6. Contours of simulated draw
based on Groundwater Availability Model Run $-19.

Vista Ridge well ficld. The contours indicare that drawdowns
greater than 300 and 450 ft accur in the Carrizo and Sims-
boro aquifers, respeciively. Figure 7 displays charts of the Sims-
boro Aquiter spatial distribution of drawdown as a functon
of aquifer area distributions for POSGCD and LPGCD. For
both POSGCD and LPGCD, charts show: (1) only 15% of
the Simsboro Aquifer area has predicted drawdowns within 50
fe of the DFCs; (2) more than 33% of the Simsboro Aquifer
area has drawdowns greater than 100 ft than the DFCs; and (3)
drawdowns greater than 500 ft occur in both POSGCD and
LPGCD. Figure 8 shows that after 4 years of Vista Ridge pro-
duction, more than one-third (33%) of the Simsboro and Car-
rizo aquifers’ DFCs would be “achieved” in Lee and Burleson
countics. This means that 33% ol the average drawdown that
was planned to occur in 59 years would oceur in only 4 years,
2020-2023. Figure 9 shows that approximarely 180 Carrizo
Aquifer wells and 30 Simshoro Aquiter wells would experience
more than 100 fr of drawdown after 3 years of Vista Ridge
pumping.

If these types of figures were regularly discussed in GMA 12,
landowners in Lee County would have known thar the large
drawdowns they experienced in 2021 and 2022 were predicted
by the GAM simulations. Besides providing information that
could help atrract well owners to the DFC process, illustrations
of spatial and remporal discributions of predicted drawdown
could provide information to better assist gencral managers
and board members of GCDs to manage, plan, and regulate

the gl’OLEﬂd’\V'&tCE‘ Pl‘OdllC[iOH '&I\d mi[igatc \VCH EEHP‘ACIS.

down from January 2011 to January 2070 for the Carrizo and Simsboro aguifers

Recognition of Uncertainty in GAM Predictions of
Drawdowns and DFCs

Because of the farge size of many GAMs (for instance, the
GAM for the central portion of the Carrizo-Wilcox Aquifer
covers more than 26,000 square miles), GAMs often have a
wide variation in the types, quality, and amount of data used
to develop and calibrate different modeled areas. As a result,
a GAM’s predictions of water Jevel change will often contain
different degrees of uncertainty and error for different areas of
interest.

The GAM currendy being used by GMA 12 for the Car-
rizo-Wilcox Aquifer was developed in 2020 (Young ct_al.,
2020}, This GAM was developed in response to concerns by
GMA 12 about the suitability of using a GAM (Young ct al.,
2018) that was developed in 2018 prior to any data regarding
the impacts that the farge production from Vista Ridge would
have on groundwater resources, These concerns included: (1)
historical water levels from only one Simsboro Aquifer well in
Burfeson County was used in calibrating the model; (2) the
maximum annual production from the Simsboro Aquifer in
Burleson Counry during the GAM calibration period was only
140 affye, which is roo low a production rate validate the
GAM’s capability to predice drawdown caused by production
of 35,000 affyr; and (3) the GAM calibration did not incor-
porate the simularion of the nine Simsboro Aquifer pumping
tests conducted by Vista Ridge. As a result of these concerns,
GMA 12 performed a recalibration of the 2018 GAM w create

hd i
' 1\}@5;115}\‘3‘ |



Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale a7
Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

~ a) POSGCD

DFC =278

1%

3%

2%

%

Percentage of Simboro Coverage

0% @ : : :
1] 100 200 300 400 500 600
Drawdown (it}
6%
b) LPGCD
5%

4%

3%

DFC = 240

2%

1%

percentage of Simboro Coverage

0% - :
0 100 200 300 400 500 600
Drawdown {ft)

Figure 7. Distributions of the $imsboro Aquifer drawdowns simulated by Run S-19 that are used to
determine the desired future conditions for Post Oak Savannah Groundwater Conservation District
(POSGCD) and Lost Pines Groundwater Conservation District (LPGCD). Note the bin size for the
x-axis is 10 feet {ft).




48

Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale
Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

600
500
F 400
=
2
(=]
O
2 300
T
O
200 ¢ e T e T T T
, Lee Simshoro
ra I )
100 Lee Cairizo
- Burleson Simshoro
- Burleson Carrizo
2010 2020 2030 2040 2050 2060 20740

Figure 8. Evolution of the average drawdown calculated from Run 5-19 for the
Simsboro and Carrizo aquifers in Burleson and Lee counties.

) an ' " Carrizo Aquifer Simsboro Aquifer
PN rals {Vista Ridge Welt Field L[ Vista Ridge Wall Field:
S ¢ Simulaled Drawdown i Simulated Drawdown
| (2019 -2022)

(2019 - 2622}

! B Carizo i & Simsboro

flidnas

ey
m/ “yﬁ{“f{é
{%géﬁ{ "
S
7 5/ j
et &
dasieopg B -

- B
.
et = R S

Figure 9. Contours of drawdewns simulated from Run 5-19 from December 2019 to December 2022 superimposed on

the locations of exempt wells in the Lost Pines and Post Oak groundwater conservation districts database for the Carrizo
and Simshoro aquifers,




Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

49

Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

Table 2. Comparison of the average drawdown predicted in Lost Pines Groundwater Conservation District (LPGCD) and Post Oak

Savannah Groundwater Conservation District

(POSGCO) from 2011 to 2070 based on Groundwater Availability Model (GAM) Run $-19

and on a GAM simulation with the same annual pumping equally distributed across the groundwater conservation districts {GCDs)

by aquifer,
MAG? Average drawdown (feet) 2011—-2070 based on pumping distribution
GCD Aquifer acre” Based on distributin ing f R
feet per year " g pumping from Run
per year) Based on Run 5-19 §-19 across the entire aquifer by county
Carrizo 12,980 134 49
LPGCD -
Simsboro 79,945 238 61
Carrizo 18,206 146 56
POSGCD ,
Simsboro 79,422 236 87

che 2020 GAM. The 2020 GAM was developed using both
a regional-scale calibration using historical water levels from
1930 to 2010 across the enrire model domain and a series of
local-scale calibrations using 36-hour pumping tests performed
at each of the nine Simshoro Aquifer wells. A major change
effected by the recalibration was doubling the Simsboro Aqui-
fer cransmissivity values from about 7,000 square fecr per day
(fr2/day) ro about 15,000 fr2/day in the vicinity of the well ficld
for the Vista Ridge Project (Danict B. Stephens & Associates
et al., 2020}

Realizing the importance of calibrating GAMs at both tocal
and regional scales for improved GAM predictions, POSGCD

has an ongoing program to improve the calibration for the

central portion of the Carrizo-Aquifer GAM by using the cal-
ibration sofrware called PEST++ (White er al., 2020), which
helps quansify uncerrainty in predictions of drawdowns. Figure
10 shows the uncertainty in the predicdon of the POSGCD
DFECs for the Simsboro Aquifer using GMA Run 5-12, which
preceded Run §-19 afrer the GAM recalibrarion had been
expanded to include simulating the evolution of the drawdawn
cone case by Vista Ridge production from 2020 o 2021, The
deawdown resules in Figure 10 were gencrated from the statis-

ties of 100 runs and average 292 fu wich standard deviaton of
about 11 fr (Young ¢t al.. 2021). The prudent application of
PEST++ offers considerable promise in helping GCDs under-

stand predictive uncertainty and how to reduce it. An example
of applying PEST++ to quantify predictive uncertaingy is pro-
vided by Ellis et al. (2023), who document the development
and application of the Gulf Coast Land Subsidence and Ground-
water-Flaw {GULF) groundwater model for GMA 14,

v S Jouraal, Vo

Understanding the Limitations of Modeled Available
Groundwater as an Indicator for Assessing the
Achicventent of Desived Future Conditions

After the Vista Ridge Project began pumping in 2020, sev-
erab landowners in POSGCD became concerned that the per-
mitted production and the actual production volumes from
the Carrizo and Simsboro aquifers in POSGCD were greac-
er than the respective MAG for each aquifer. These concerns
were expressed during GMA 12 mectings and were part of an
inquiry submitted to the Texas Commission on Environmental
Quality (TCEQ).

Table 2 shows the importance of pumping location to
achieving a DFC. This demonstration involves performing
a variation of Run $-19 by reatlocating the annual pumping
so that the rotal annual pumping in each GCD is distributed
cvenly across the entire GCD by aquifer. The reatlocation was
achieved by determining the annual amount of pumping per
square mile per aquifer for cach GCD then applying the rate
for cach respective GCD to cach aquifer grid. This reallocation
will cause the MAG to be spread uniformly across cach aquifer
in cach GCD. The model results in Table 2 show that chang-
ing, the location of the pumping while maintaining the MAG
can reduce the value of a calculated DFC by about H0% for
both the Carrizo and Simshoro aquifess. The resules in Table
2, along with che understandings that GAMs are not perfect
predicrors of an aquifer drawdown and thar the furure hydro-
geological conditions are unknown, are substantial reasens why
a MAG may not be a reliable indicator of whether a DFC will
be achicved if the MAG is pumped on an annual basis.



50

Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

Emerging Issues

Because of HB 3059 becoming law and the potential impor-
cance of GAMs to GCDs’ management decisions, an emerging
issue will be the emphasis placed on developing GAMs for the
purpose of improving their capabilities to support predictions
of localized impact from pumping; evaluarion of permie appli-
cations for production; development of mirigation serategies;
evaluation of DFCs; and implementing curtailmeni of per-
mitted production. A relatively recent advancement with con-
structing, models that will greatly enhance the vtiliey of GMA
is using a groundwater code called MODFLOW 6 (Langevin
et al. 2021}, MODELOW 6 aliows submodels, which cover
amall arcas of interest, to be built into a much targer region-
al madel. GAMs buile using MODFLOW 6 will allow GCD

consultants ta stmightforwnrdly refine and secalibrare GAMs

in one or more well fields of interest.

An cmerging issuc with groundwarer management is
improved coordination among GCDs in a GMA to courdinate
and integrate their design monitoring of well networks, mea-
curement of water levels, and evaluation of compliance with
DFCs. Ideally, the GCDs in the same GMA should have simi-
lar, if not identical, methods for collecting data and evaluating
DEC compliance. The inconsistency in how GCDs in a GMA
collecr and evaluate water level data for DFC compliance can
only work against a GCD trying to demaonstrate a DFC viola-
tion and the need for currailment of production.

As the discussion continues regarding che need to improve
the GAMs, it is necessary to acknowledge that, despite the
known limitations with the current set of GAMs, the GAMs
remain our best available science for developing DECs and
MAGs. Bven wich those limitations, GAMs may be reasonably
good predictors of pumping impacts For some arcas of interest,
To berrer understand GAMs' potential limirations and how
these limitations may be GMA- and problcmwdcpendcnt. the
issue of predictive uncertainty will likely become increasingly
imporrant. The importance of uncertainty is recognized by the
U.S. Code (USC), which is the codification of the statutory
laws of the United Stares. The USC Title 33 § 1321 {a) (27)
(¢) definition of “best available science” includes the require-
ment thar it “clearly documents and communicates risks and
uncertaintics in the scientific basis for such projects” (USC 33
§ 1321, 2023, § 1321 (a) (27} {C)). "The importance of com-

municaring tisks and uncertainties is an important and emerg-

ing issue for GCDs to address soon as they adopr DECs.
RECOMMENDATIONS

We, the authors, recognize that we cach represent different
groundwatmvrflatcd points of view and skill sets. Among these
are legal, hydrogeologic, and policy considerations, The pu-
posc of writing this case study was, in our view, to review and

Henn ‘\:“’f”"ai&_"ﬁ' ?tﬁill!ﬁ"i\

;
Vi

¥

fcarn from what has caken place in GMA 12 related to large-
scake water transfers, current joint planning and modeling lim-
itarions, real world impacts, and mitigation effores. As noted in
this paper, the 88th Legistature has recognized some of these
limirations and impacts and has taken action to address some
of these concerns. We welcome the recent legislative acrion
including the enactment of HB 3059, In the spirit of contin-
ued improvement, in formed by a retrospective review of what
has taken place, and in this case, the lessons learned from the
Vista Ridge Project, we offer recommendations that we feel
could, in total or in part, assist in consideration of additional
large-scale water cransfers in other similarly situated pares of
the state. We recognize that sire- and case-specific consider-
ations may differ. Thus, based on our review of the impacts of
the Vista Ridge Project on groundwater management in GMA
12, we recommend thar the following topics be constdered for
furure discussions:

1. Explore nptions for clarifying the language in TWCSE 36
regarding the balance requirements in TWC § 36,108
(d-2) and TWC § 36.0015 (b} 0 help guide GMAs and
GCDs with accomplishing the invent of the statute;

2. Expand TWDR's role to authorize—only upon petition
by an affected landowner within a GCD—for TWDB
to undertake a limited review of the explanatary report
beyond an administrative review, An expanded review
could include determining whether the GMA and the
explanatory report have, in fact, (1) undertaken substan-
tial review and applicability of the nine factors outlined
in TWC § 36.108; (2) meaningfully and appropriately
evaluared the “balance test” in TWC § 36.108 (d-2);
and (3) adequately addressed the concerns and questions
submitted to a GMA during the public comment periad
on the proposed DECs, This recommendation recogniz-
es the increased transparency requirements of GCDs in
the development, consideration, and adeption of a DEC
as enacred by the Legislature during the 88th legislative
session as HB 3278. The review would not authorize
TWDB to determine the appropriateness of the DFC,
but rather to recommend additional data and analysis
that should be considered by the GCD in developing
a DFC under a process that has been, upon TWDB
review, found ro have not meaningfully considered rhe
nine elements under the TWC;

3, Provide TWDB with appropriate funding to support the
development and improvement of the data and capabili-
ty of GAMs to evaluase the environmental and localized
sociocconomic impacts of proposed DFCs; and

4. TProvide GMAs with funding to improve communica-

rion of the science, improve public pnrticipatiom and
prepare explanatory reports that document a meaningful

consideracion of the nine factors in TWC § 36,108 (d).

0 Bl

bror |




Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

51

Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

REFERENCES

Atlantic Refining Co. o Railroad Conmmission, 340 5. W.2d 801
{Tex. 1961).

Brazos Valley Groundwater Conservation Districr. {2021),
Memo o Post Otale Savannah Groundwater Conservation
District Board of Directors from Stephen Cast, Board
President, Brazas Valley Groundwarer Conservarion Dis-
rrict.  huepsi//posged.orpfwp-con ent/uploads/2022/01/
Draft -Explanarory Report Appcndiccs»f\‘m-X—.pdﬁ

Brazos Valley Groundwater Conservation Districe. (2023).
Rutles of the Brazos Valley Groundwater Conservation Dhis-
trict. hrtps:ffbramsvallcygzcd.mg.’ﬁ!cs/?catid:l‘)’3.

Coyote Lake Ranch LLC v City of Lubbock, 498 W. W. 3d 53
{Tex. 2016).

Daniel B. Stephens & Associates, Ground Water Consul-
rants, LLC, & INTERA Incorporated. (2020). Presenta-
don o GMA-12: §-7 Results for GAM 2018 and GAM
2020, heps:/lposged.org/wp-content/uploads/ 2020/ 1 0/
GMA12 Ocr 22 GAM2020 Cmmp;u'ism].‘udf.

Danicl B. Stephens & Associates, INTERA Incorporated, &
Ground Warer Consuleants, LLC, (2022). Desired Future
Condition Explanatory Report for Groundwater Man-
agement Area 12, January 28, 2022 hetps://posged.org!
wpw‘ontcntfupioads/ZOZE/O1/GMA 12 Explapatony-Re-
port_Final 1-28-2022.pdt.

Douglas, E. (2021, August 2). San Antonio built a pipeline to

rural Central Texas to increase its water supply. Now local

landowners say their wells are running dry. The Texas Tri-
bune. https:."/\mmv.texastribunc.o;'ngOZ1/08/02fs;111«;1n1

INTERA Incorporared. (2020, December 4). Desired Future
Condidons Committee update |Presentadion]. FOSGCD
DFC Commitree Mevting.  hitps://posged.orgl/wp-con-
rent/uploads/2020/12/DFC _meeting-Dec_4 final.pdf.

INTERA Incorporated. (2021a, January 15). Submission
of S-10* for GMA 12 Consideration [Presentation].
GMA 12 Mecting. https://posgcd.nrg/wp-contcntf
LiplOﬂdS/EOZUO]/GMA 12.5-10 summzu'}g__ﬁnjLng_d_ﬁ

INTERA Incorporared. (20216, February 12). GMA 12
Desired Future Conditions Presented to GMA 12 |Presen-
tation] GMA 12 Meeting, https:/fposgcd.m‘g/wplcnntc:nd
upluads/ZOZ1/01/GMA12 meeting Feb 12 2021b.pdE

INTERA Incorporated. {2021¢, June 7). Updarte for GMA
12 Desired Future Conditions  |Presentation]. POS-
GCD Board Meeting. llttps:f/posgcd.org)'\vp—contem/
M_)ioadsl'lﬁl1fOGngcnda:ltcnvG.EABom‘d mecting
June 7 202 v3.pdf

Kirkle, S. R., Martinsson, L. K., Schlessinger, S. R., Ovrtiz, A
R., Fowler, P L., Puig-Williams, V., Mazur, [, B, & Vor-
teler, T H. (2023). Commeneary: 88th Texas Stare Legisla-
rure: Summaries of Water-Related Legislative Action. Texas
Water Journal, 14(1), 105-135. hups://doi.org/] 0.21423/
nwivl4il,7167.

Langevin, C. D, Hughes, J. D., Banta, E. R, Provost, A, M.,
Niswonget, R. G., & Panday, 5. (2021). MODFLOW 6
Maodular Hydrologic Mode] (Version 6.2.1). U.S. Geolog-
ical Survey. htpsi/doi.org/1 0.5066/P9FLLCCE,

Lost Pines Groundwarer Conservacion District. (2023). Rules
of the Lost Pines Groundwarer Conservation District.

https:waw.iostpiﬂcswatcr.orgﬁ9 1/Discrict-Ruldes,

togio-warer-supply-ru ral-wells/.

Edwards Agquifer Auth. V. Day, 369 5. W. 3d 814 (Tex. 2012).

Ellis, ]., Knight, J. E., White, J. T., Sneed, M., Hughes, J. D.,
Ramage, J. K., Braun, C. L., Teeple, A, Foster, L. I,
Rendon, S. H., & Beands, J. T. (2023). Hydrogeology,
land-surface subsidence, and documentation of the Gulf
Coast Land Subsidence and Groundwater-Flow (GULF)
model, southeast Texas, 18972018 (Professional Paper
1877). U.S. Geological Survey. llttps:”dui.urg/]0.%1")%/
ppl877.

Groundwater Management Arca 12 (2021), Groundwater

Management Area 12 Mecting Minutes for January 13,
2021,  hrepsi//posged.orglwp-con teng/uploads/2021/12/
GMA-12-Minytes-01.15.2021-Signed.pdf.
Houstan & T.C. Ry, Co. v Easr, 81 SW. 279, 281 {Tex. 1904).
Toxas House Comumittee on Natural Resources. (2022, August

24). House Committee on Narural Resources Hearing
[Videol. https://{lclmusc.gmaaicus.com/f\/lcdia[’laycr.
phpiview id=468&¢dlip id=23448.

Mace, R L., Petrossian, R., Bradiey, R., & Mullican, W. F, 1.
(2006, May 18-19). A streetcar named desired future con-
ditions — the new groundwater avaitability for Texas. State
Bar of Texas, 7th Annual Changing Face of Warter Rights
in Texas, San Anronio, T, Uniced Stawes. hoepsi/faquit:
eralliance.org/wp-content/uploads/201 4/01/Desired-Fu-
rure-Conditions-03-1 _mace.pdf.

Mace, R. E., Petrossian, R., Bradiey, R., Mullican, W. E, I &
Christian, L. (2008, May 8-9). A strectcar named desired
future conditions (revised). State Bar of Texas, Changing
Face of Warer Rights in Texas, Bastrop, TX, Unired Staces.
hetps:/f wivw. tweb.texas gov/groun dwater/docs! Strectcar,
pdf.

Pecos County Water Cosntrol e Improvement District Ne. 1 v
Williams, 271 5. W.2d 503, 505 (Tex. App. 1954)

Post Oak Savannah Groundwarer Conservation Districe,
(2021a, fune 7). Post Oak Savannab CGroundwarer Con-
servation Districts Board of Direcrors Meeting Minutes.
hteps://posged.orghwp-content/uploads/2021 107/ June-7-

2021-Board-Meeting-Minutes.pdf.




52 Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale
Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

Post OQuk Savannah Groundwater Conscrvation  Discrict.
(2021h). Post Oak Savannah Groundwarer Conservation
Districr position paper on GMA 12 proposed DFCs for
the 3rd joint planning cycle. hups://posged.org/wp-con-
rent/uploads/2021/07/Position- Paper-on-GMA-12-Pro-
posed-DECs 13.pdf.

Post Ouk Savannah Groundwater Conservation Districe,
(2021¢, June 24). POSGCD discussion regarding pro-

g £ F
posed desired Future condirions. |Presentation] GMA 12

DFC Planning Meeting, hteps://posged.orglwp-content/
upluadstOZUOG;’ZOEl 12 June 24 GMAIL2 v9-2.pdf.
Post Oak Savannah Groundwacee Conservation District.
{2023a). Rules of the Post Oak Savannah Groundwater
Conservation  Districe, 11ttps://posgcd.oz‘g/v.'p«cuntmt."
uploads/2023/09/App roved-Rules-4-11-2023 pdf.
Post Oak Savannah Groundwater Conservation District.

(2023b), GMA 12 Agenda & Minures. hups://posged.

orglagendas-minures/gma-1 2-apendas-minutes/.

Rubinstein, C., & Puig-Williams, V. (2023). Improving water
planning in Texas: the critical but overlooked Fink berween
desired future conditions and the state water plan. Envi-
ronmental  Defense Fund. 11ttps:/lwww.cdﬁm'g/sircs.’
defaulefAles/documents/ Improvins%20Warer% 20Plan-
ning%20in%20Texas 0.pdf.

Terrill & Waldrop. (2020, November 10). Memo o Gary
Westbrook, GM, POSGCD from Paul M. Terrill 111

Thompsaon, ]. C., Kreitler, C. W., & Young, M. H. (2020).

Explosing groundwarer recoverability in Texas: max-

imum  cconomically recoverable  storage. Texas Warter
Journal, 11(1}, 152-171. hetps://doi.org/10.21423/rwi.
vilii, 7113,

Texas Water Development Board, (2022}, 2022 State Water
Plan. https:/!\\rww.rwdb.texa.s.gov!warcrplﬂnningf
swp/2022/index.asp.

Texas Warer Code § 36. (2023). hups://statutes.capitol.texas.

gov/Dacs/ WA/hem/WA.36.hom.

United States Code 33 § 1321, (2023). hups://codes.find-
law.camius/title- 3% -navieation-and-navigable-wa-
ters/33-usc-sect-1321/.

White, J. T, Hung, R ), Ficnen, M. N.. & Dohenty, |. E.

(2020). Approaches to highly parameterized inversion:

PEST++ version 9, a software suite for parameter estima-
tion, uncereainty analysis, management optimization and
sensitivity analysis (Techniques and Methods 7-C26). US,
Geological Survey. hteps://doiorg/10.313 37 C26.

Wise, S. (2021). Leteer 1o Board of Dircctors Brazos Valley
Groundwater Conscrvation Disorict ht{ps://posgcd.org/
wp-content/ uploads/ 2024/02/Comments._ Wise-to-BVG-
CD DFCs-GMA12 2021 01 19.pdL

Young, S., Jigmond, M., Jones, T., & Ewing, T. (2018).
Groundwater availability model for central portion of the

Sparta, Queen City, and Carrizo-Wilcox aquifers. Texas

Water Development Board. https:f{'wvmv.{wdb,{cms.gov/
groundwarter/ models/gam/crwx o/Updated CWQCST
GAM_ voll _all.pdf2d=15131.300000071526.

Young, S., Kushnereit, R., Donnelly, A., & Seiferr, J. (2020).
GMA 12 update to the groundwarer availability model for

the central portion of the Sparta, Queen City, and Car-
riza-Wilcox aquifers: update to improve representarion of
the transmissive properties of the Simsboro Agquifer in the
vicinity of the Vista Ridge well ficld. Texas Water Devel-
opment Board. h'ttps:/}'www.twdb.tcxas.gov/ eroundwarer/
models/gam/cewx ¢/ PE Repore GMA12 final octo-
ber 2020 merge.pdfid=151 31.300000071526.

Young, 5., Kushnereit, R., White, J., & Beal, L. 2021). The
future is here: comparing projected and actual impacts of
Vista Ridge Project |Prescntation]. Milam and Burleson
Counries Groundwarer Summit, 2021, August 12, 2021.
51ttps://vimco.com/siwwcasc/?éﬁﬂ)ZOE.




Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

53

Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

ATTACHMENT A: GROUNDWATER OWNERSHIP IN TEXAS

Although the sule of caprure has been the law in Texas since
1904 and has been consistently described as a property right
incident to ownership, the courts were never required to define
the exact nature of the right until regulation of these rights
became authorized through groundwater conservation dis-
tricts. Beginning with Howston o T'C. Ry Co. n East (1904).
the courts described the rule of capture as a right but never
clearly defined when or if the vight Is a vested real property
right protected by the constitutional prohibition against a gov-
crnmental taking without compensation. In Houston & TC.
Ry Co. v. East (1904), the Texas Supreme Court, citing, New
York Iaw, stated: “So the owner of fand is the absolute owner
of the soil and of percolating water, which is a part of, and not
different from, the soil” (Hozston ¢ T.C. Ry Co. v Easgt (1904),
p. 4). Similarly, in Pecos County, the El Paso Court of Appeals

stated:

“It seems clear to us that pereolating or diffused and
percalating, waters belong to the Tandowner, and may
be used by him ar his will . ... These cases seem o
hold that the landowner owns the percolating water
under his kand and thar he can make a non-wasteful
use thereof, and such is based on a cancept of prop-
crey ownership” (Pecos County Water Control ¢ Ini-
provenieit District. No. I v Williams, 1954, p. 1)

The nature of the groundwarer right and whether it was vest-
ed remained hotly debated yet unresolved until che Supreme
Court's decision in Edwards Aguifer Authority v. Day (2012).
On February 24, 2012, the Supreme Court issued a 50-page,
unanimous opinion confronting and answering for the fest
time the question of whether a landowner's groundwater rights
are a vested real property right protected by the Texas and LS.
Constitutions' prohibitions against uncompensated  taking,
The opinion bcgins with a succiner summary of the issuc pre-
sented in the decision:

“We decide in this case whether landownership in-
cludes an interest in groundwarer in place  that
cannot be taken for public use without adequate
compensation guaranteed by Article 1, § 17()
of the Texas Constirution. We hold thac it docs”
(Edwards  Aquifer Authority v Day, 2012, p. 21.

The court noted that while it had never addressed the issue

regarding groundwarer, it had done so long ago with respect fo
oil and gas, to which the rule of caprure also applies. The coerr,
quoting ifs previous decisions, noted that the right to the oil
and gas beneath a landowner's properry is an exclusive and pri-
vate property right inherent in landownership, which may not
be deprived without a taking of private property.

The Supreme Court found that there was no basis in the
differences cited between groundwater and oil and gas ta con-

e §'n:ﬁ$"§'&:ii, %

clude that the common law recognized a vested ownership of
ail and gas in place but not groundwater. Specifically, the court
explained:
“I'n our stage the landowner is regarded as having abso-
Jute tide and severalty to the oil and gas in place beneath
his tand. The only qualification of that rule of owner-
ship is that it must be considered in connection wich
the law of capture and is subject to police regulations.
The oil and gas benearth the soil are considered a part of
the realty. Each owner of land ;wns separately, distinct-
ly and exclusively alf the oif and gas under his fand and
is accorded the usual remedies against trespassers who
appropriate the minerals or destroy their market value,
We now hold that chis correctly stares the com-

non !L‘l“’ ['Cgﬂl’dil'ig thtf Owncrship Uf gl‘(ﬂ.llld“’ft‘

ter in place” (Ediwards Aquifer. v Day. 2012, p. 2.
The court cited the legislative revisions te TWC § 36.002

demonstrating the Legistature’s understanding of the interplay

berween groundwater ownership and groundwarer regulation.

The apinion in Edwards Aquifer Authority v Day resolved
decades of conflict concerning the nature of the ownership
right held by landowners in groundwarer in Texas. By applying
the case law applicable to oil and gas, the Supreme Court has
determined that groundwarer is “owned in place” in Edweards
Aguifer v Day (2012, p. 9) by rthe landowner and chat this
ownership right can supporta claim for uncampensated taking
under the state and federal constitutions.

The Supreme Court furcher signaled that it would rely on
its over 100 years of decisions applying the absolure ownership
rule to oil and gas disputes in resolving groundwater issues in
its decision in Coyote Lake Raneh LLC v City zy‘lz-tﬁ!mck (2016).
The City of Lubback had purchased and held the groundwater

rights under the Coyote Lake Ranch for years. New owners of
the property objected to plans announced by the city o drill
60+ wells on the ranch to produce and transport groundwacer
to the city. On review of a judgment favorable to the landown-
er, the Supreme Courr determined thae the severed ground-
water right was, like a severed mineral interest, the dominant
estate, with the right to use the surface to access the groundwa-
ter, However, the court ruled that, like in oil and gas law, the
Accommodarion Doctring applied to the exercise of this right.
In summary, this means the groundwarer estare, in exercising
it rights, must act with due regard for the surface OWNSES use,
This decision indicates thar the courts will likely consider
its decisions in disputes involving minerals on lssues arising
in groundwater disputes involving permitting, The ownership
rights must be considered and addressed by groundwarer dis-
tricts in striking the appropriate balance beeween conserving
and protecting the groundwater resources within their ju risdic-



54

Case Study of Groundwater Management Issues at the Forefront of Large-scale

Production from a Confined Aquifer: The Vista Ridge Project

tion while recognizing the vested property rights of the land-
owners subject to 1'(*gu§;1tiun.

The courts’ decisions make clear two fundamental principles:
(1) that groundwarer rights arc a vested property right protect-
ed from governmental action that constitutes a raking of that
right without just compensation; and (2) that the coures will
consider case law in disputes involving oil and gas in deciding
conflicts regarding groundwater.

Groundwater districts need to be mindful of the judicial
precedents established in evaluating oil and gas regulatory pro-
grams and impaces on landowners' vested rights in the minerals
below ground. One imporrant and likely relevant concepr is
that regulation cannot unreasonably deprive the landowner of
their fair share of the managed resousce (Atlgnric Refining Co. v

Railroad Commission, 1961). Whike the goals and consequenc-

es of groundwater management are distinetly different than
in mineral development, the courts will consider oil and gas
precedents in deciding whether regulatory decisions made by
groundwater districts limit the landowners” groundwater own-
ership rights ro the extent that a constitutionally prohibired
taking has occutrred.

This tension is particularly acure when  disericts protect
existing usc by limiting or preventing future use. The Rule of
Caprure, as a legal principle, provides no protection for histor-

! iy

aurnsl, Yobhane 19

ic use. Landowners who have conserved the resource by not
producing from it can have their rights limited to protect the
resource and historic use, but the coures will consider oil and
gas decisions in derermining if limiting those rights rises to the
level of a taking. At the same time, they must consider how the
goals of groundwater regulation differ trom the goals of regu-
lation of oil and gas. As the Supreme Court nated in Edioards
Aquifer Anth. v Day (2012):

“The principal concerns in regulating oil and gas pro-

duction are to prevent waste and to provide a fand-

owner a fair opportunity to extract and market che oil

and gas beneath the surface of the properry. Ground-

water is different in both its source and uses. Unlike

oil and gas, groundwater in an aquifer Is often being,

replenished from the surface, and while it may be sold

as a commuodity, its uses vary widely, from irrigation,

to industry, to drinking, to recrearion. Groundwarer

regulation must take into account not only historical

usage but future needs, including the relative impor-

cance of varlous uses, as well as concerns unrelared

to use, such as environmental impacts and subsid-

ence” (Edwards Aquifer Anth, v, Day, 2012, p. 18).

How this balance will be struck will be the subject of fueure

court decisions.

Ahambes




Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District
Mitigation Fund Manager’s Report
July 2024

No work assignments for the month.




Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District
Field Technician Report
July 2024

On July 1*, I obtained a water well level at Michael Furrh’s location on FM 1682 west of Moulton, TX. Then, 1
went to determine an open or closed status on the Saltwater Disposals in the Shiner area.

On July 2", T went to the Golden Cresent in Victoria, Tx to acquire a Gonzales County map.
On July 8™, I came into the office to map well locations on the Gonzales County grid map.

On July 9%, I completed inspections of new well areas in Luling and Waelder and attended the monthly
GCUWCD meeting.

On July 10", 1 designated well locations on the Gonzales County gr1dm

On July 11%, I monitored a new well development done by Dc_hﬁif@e Dnlhng for Mr. Duffin at 671 Crockett
Lane Luling, Tx. Then, I went to monitor a new well development done by Hazelett Drilling for McMillian
Partnership on CR 428, Waelder, TX. "

On July 12", T observed and documented new well dé’v.'e_l_bpment at the Duffin well
Luling, Tx. L -

On July 15" 1 performed spot checks on well 1 cations for Hazel rilling, WB Southé'f}n Drilling, and Friedel

Drilling.

On July 16™, 1 went and monitored new well deﬁeibpmeﬁt'e:;dbne by WBSouthem Drilling for Mr, Henry
Schmidt at CR 443 Waelder, T2

On July 17%, T observed new well develoﬁfﬁ‘ent done by WB Southern ﬁ;illing for Mr. Schmidt at CR 443,

Waelder, Tx.

On July 18", I mon
for Mr. Schmi_d

nting for the well done by WB Southern Drilling

On July 22", 1 momtored new well developm nt

for Mr. Brian Geiger done by WB Southern Drilling at Lot
#21 Johnsons Farms Ha wood, Tx.

On July 23", T observed n well development for M. Geiger done by WB Southern Drilling at Lot #21
Johnsons Farms Harwood, Tx. -

On July 25" T observed new well development at J-Bar-B done by Friedel Drilling in Waelder, TX.

On July 26", I monitored new well development for Mr. Floyd Neeley on CR 443, Waelder, Tx and the new
well development by the J-Bar-B plant in Waelder, Tx done by Friedel Drilling.

On July 27", I monitored new well development at J-Bar-B in Waelder, Tx.

On the 31%, I monitored new well development done by Drillink for Holmes Food at CR 447 Waelder, TX.



RECEIVED JUL 3 1 2024
July 1-31, 2024

New well developments / Monitoring and observing at:
Deharde/ Duffin @ Luling , TX

Hazelett/ McMillan@ Waelder, Tx

Southern Drilling/ Schmidt@ Waelder, Tx

Southern Drilling/ Geiger @ Harwood, Tx

Southern Drilling/ Neely @Waelder, Tx

Friedel Drilling/ J-Bar-B@ Waelder, Tx

Drillink/ Holmes Food inc.@ Waelder, Tx



RECEIVED JUL 2 9 2024

Office: (830) 672-2879
PO Box 867 Fax: (830) 672-8345

Gonzales Texas 78629 Email: gonzcad@gvec.net
www.gonzalescad.org

CERTIFICATION OF 2024 APPRAISAL ROLL
FOR GONZALES COUNTY UWCD

I, JOHN H. LIFORD, Chief Appraiser for the Gonzales Central Appraisal District,
solemnly swear that the attached is that portion of the approved appraisal roll of Gonzales
County UWCD, which lists properties taxable by the Gonzales County UWCD and
constitutes the appraisal roll for the Gonzales County UWCD on all properties within the
boundaries of the Gonzales Central Appraisal District.

¢ el FgA

Joﬁ;?h. LIFORD, Chief Kppraiser

Gon'zales Central Appraisal District

) 7// 2 b//;?/ﬁz"/

Date



2024 CERTIFICATION - FOR REFERENCE

REAL/PERSONAL o **New O **New
MARKET MIUP MARKET _ _3u3<m3m3m _an«o,..mamam
(INCLUDING NEW  (INCLUDING 2024 NET _<_m..xm~ <m_:m xmm_ _<_mw_$~ <m_:m
ENTITY VALUES) NEW VALUES) | TOTAL MARKET TAXABLE m&mﬁm L MIUP
GONZALES COUNTY 6.299,504,060 | 5845425840  12,144,929,900 | 7,351,348,865 . ”__mwﬁmﬁmmo m_moﬁmd,”m_m_o
CITY OF GONZALES 726,033,070 197,765,230 923,798,300 710,820,484 - 14,135,160
CITY OF NIXON 102,207,940 35,782,650 137,990,590 117,539,210 _qu,\..%o___
CITY OF WAELDER 58,384,290 23,924,040 82,308,330 58,908,070 mﬁ owo
CITY OF SMILEY 25,298,970 967,390 26,266,360 18,725,810 k_mm %

GONZALES ISD

3,487,432,650

2,228,419,300

5,715,851,850

3,114,292,737

Nﬂ moq pmo :

WAELDER I1SD 779,860,140 152,466,460 | 932,326,600 308,132,117 3 wom qwo s Hm wE NB
MOULTON ISD 173,321,220 344,421,830 | 517,743,050 357,618,815 mmm omo _ . w.\.m@.m&o:
CUERO ISD 87,456,040 273,914,420 | 361,370,460 | 266,919,016 __H_Mu_h.wo_ |

NIXON-SMILEY CISD 1,523,407,960 | 2,136,678,740 | 3,660,086,700 | 2,223,950,245 | | Epwmoo H& NS owow
SHINER ISD 182,063,090 556,732,050 | 738,795,140 566,843,653 wﬁm&o | ._ ._ .__ So mqo ﬁo______
YOAKUM ISD 60,757,750 152,794,090 | 213,551,840 146,894,093 | Sw Hmo | ww md Nwo
(GONZALES COUNTY ESD#1 6,204,298,850 | 5,845,425,840 | 12,139,724,690 | 7,341,471,445 63, k_% mmo o mmo 817 mmo”___._
GONZALES COUNTY ESD#2 6,294,298,850  5,845,425,840 | 12,139,724,690 | 7,341,471,445 _______ | _mw pmb mmo_____ 860,817,

GONZALES COUNTY UWCD

5,502,948,820

3,433,151,120

8,936,099,940

4,942,013,207

GONZALES HEALTHCARE SYSTEMS

5,169,760,530

4,947,460,420

10,117,220,950

6,127,149,708

NIXON HOSPITAL DISTRICT

881,717,480

174,929,130

1,056,646,610

391,386,040

57639740 403,360290

699,858,530

YOAKUM HOSPITAL DISTRICT

60,757,750

154,028,230

214,785,980

149,434,853

*SEE THE ATTACHED RECAPS FOR VALUE BREAK DOWNS.

**THE NEW VALUE COLUMNS ARE INCLUDED IN THE TOTAL MARKET. YOU DO NOT ADD THEM IN.

39,977,230




2024 Certified History Recap
Gonzales Central Appraisal District

(65) - UNDERGROUND WATER CONS

Land
Homesite *)
Non Homesite (+)
Productivity Market (+)
Income (+)

Total Land (=}

Ag/Timber *does not include protested

Timber Gain (+)
Productivity Market )
Land Ag 1D )
Land Ag 1D1 -)
Land Ag Timber Q)
Productivity Loss (=)

improvements
Homesite {+)
New Homesite (+)
Non Homesite (+)
New Non Homesite (+)
Income 1e]
Total Improvement (=)

Personal

Homesite (+)
New Homesite ()
Non Homesite (#)
New Non Homesite (+)

Total Personal (=)

Mineralfindustrial/Utility/Personal Property

Minerals/Oil & Gas {+)
industrial Real (+)
Industrial/Utility Personal Property  (+)

Total Mineral Market Value (=)

Total Rea! & Personal Market {+}
Total Mineral/Industrial Market (+)
Total Market Value (=)

20% MIUP Circuit Breaker Limitation (-)

10% Homestead Cap Loss (-
20% Circuit Breaker Limitation (=)

Total Market Affer Cap(=)
Land Timber Gain {+)
Productivity Loss (-)

Total Market Taxable (=)

Value # of tems Exempt Losses Real-Personal Value # of ltems MIUP Value #of ltems
70,723,580 3,310 0 Exempt Property 297,161,610 858 7,264,420 155
354,006,060 8,682 88,311,950 Under $500/$2500 10,200 15 328,760 6,836
3,447,087,720 7,916 0 Abatements 508,050 1 0 0
0 0 0 Freeport 0 0 4,446,210 5
3,871,797,360 19,808 88,311,850 Goods In Transit 0 0 0 0
Protested Value g 0 G 0
0 0 Chapter 313 Value Limitation 0 0
Mineral Unknown 0 0
m_ﬁ.wbmﬂ_.\.wm Nm:w interstate Commerce 0 0
52,805,670 7,916 Foreign Trade 0 0
0 0 MultiUse o] 0
SolarANind Power 87,750 1
3,394,262,050 7,916 Vehicle Leased for Personal Use 0 0
TCEQ/Pollution Control 867,700 5 (includes New Pollution Control
575,611,200 3,382 0 Allocation 0 0 Value of 47,220)
8,605,470 98 0 Historical 0 0
887,323,930 7,816 203,579,010 Disaster Exemption 0 0
34,329,150 282 2,516,730 Community Housing 0 0
0 0 0 Childcare Facility 0 0
1,505,869, 750 11,578 206,095 740 298,635,310 12,039,390
Total Losses (includes Frod. Loss & Cap Loss) (=) 3,974,608,433
19,133,980 401 0
385,980 14 0 Total Appraised Value (=) 4,961,490,507
88,775,640 2,072 2,603,680 . Val 4 of it
16,986,110 291 150,240 Iosmmﬂmmg mxﬂ.:vn_o:m alue of items
125,281,710 2,708 2,753,920 Homestead H,S Q) 0 0
Senior S (+} 0 0
Disabled B {+) t] 0
2,672,356,960 44,202 DV 100% (+) 17,046,370 92
180,797,710 a7 Surviving Spouse of a Service Member (+) 0 0
579,096,450 1,392 Survivng Spouse of a First Responder (+) 0 Q0
3,433,151,120 45697 Total Reimbursable (=) 17,846,370 92
Local Discount &) o] 0
5,502,948,820 34,194 .
3433151120 45691 w_wmwww Mmmaam MHW 930,830 KN
8,936,099,940 79,885 Local Disabled {+) 0 0
208,976,697 12,824 State Homestead (+) 0 0
27,135,806 1,719 Disabled Vet Donated Home (Charity) (+) 0 0
33,560,180 1,832 Surviving Spouse Ported Amounts +) 0 1]
8,686,427,257 Total Exemptions (=) 19,477,300
0 0 Total Exemptions® (-} 19,477,300
3,394,262,050 7,916

5,272,165,207

712312024 9:55:20AM

Page 50 of 82




@ 2024 Certified History Recap
R A4 Gonzales Central Appraisal District
| . . e . - (65) - UNDERGROUND WATER CONS

Count of Homestead : Sl . ; H - Homestead D - Disabled Oniy
. S . Qver 65 W - Widow
H S F B8 (3] w o] DV DV100  $$ First Resp $S Sve Member E - Disabled Widew O - Over 85 (No HS)
L1708 1,803 0 140 Y 0 o 189 92 0 0 B - Disabted DV - Disabled Veteran
RS . i o~ . DV100 {1, 2, 3) - 100% Disabled Veteran
. . . : 4 (4B, 4H, 48) - Surviving Spouse of a Service Member
Total Parcels*: 66,170 Parcet count is figured by parcel per ownership 5+ (8B, 5H, 58) - Surviving Spouse of a First Responder

Total Owners: 19,570
Total ltems: 79,885

Special Certified Totals.
Exempt Value of First Time

Absolute Exemption $330,210
Exempt Value of First Time
Partial Exemption $1,136,840
New AG/Timber Industrial/Utility/Personal Property New Value
Market $743,870 Taxable $437,040
Taxable $5,520
Value Loss $738,350
New Improvement/Personal Grand Total New Value
Market $57,630,740 Taxable $57,717,570
Taxable $57,280,530
[Average Values (includes protested exempt valle) s L
Average Homestead Value A* Parcels Total Homestead Value A*

Market $165,893 2,141 Market $355,178,570
Taxable $156,888 Taxable $335,898,134
Average Homestead Value A" and E* Parcels Total Homestead Value A* and E*
Market $178,327 2,928 Market $522,141,980
Taxable $169,834 Taxable $497,272,834
Average Homestead Value A* and E* and M1 Parcels Total Homestead Value A* and E* and M1

Market $162,458 3,334 Market $541,637,100
Taxable $154,097 Taxable $513,760,504
Average Homestead Value M1 Parcels Total Homestead Value M1
Market $48,017 406 Market $19,495,120
Taxable $40,610 Taxable $16,487,670

T123/2024 9:55:20AM Page 51 of 82




2024 Certified History Recap
Gonzales Central Appraisal District

_mmq GZUmWOWOCZU <<>._.m% CONS

2,516.0993 74,370,990 74,370,990 468,295,360 mam mmm 350 518,510, mmh
678.6170 17,391,560 17,391,560 22,272,540 39,664,100 34,729,380
._o mmm A.mo 10,564,800

10,510 10,885,560

,_m,.ao

_.wmo

mom mowa

52,805,670
248,286,790

wn.qm;&_m.a
255,972,090

52,805,670

156.566.010 146,562,300

5696.6323 51,110,640 61,110,640 95,456,270
8,260.2628 91,092,390 91,092,390 264,751,650 356.844.040 339,663,140
2843011 3,728,140 3,728,140 7,859,300 11,587,440 10,288,670

wmm .wmo 328, .\.mo

205 437170

906.1347 .ﬂ. Aoﬂ 290 0 158, omw mmo

906.1347 47,407,290 ] 47,407,290 158,029,880 0 205,437,170 199,243,150
1,221.8768 15,631,770 0 15,631,770 1,300,520 180,797,710 197,730,070 195,133,930
1,221.8763 15,631,770 0 15,631,770 1,300,580 180,797,710 197,730,070 195,133,930

2, mmq Amm 200
m wmm 400

2,657, A@M 200
6,983, 400

.\.: muo

( 0 7,380 0 1.700, '960 1,711,670
0.0000 o 0 0 0 45,752,910 45,752,810 45,752,910
0.0000 0 0 0 0 11,673,140 11,673,140 11,673,140
£.0000 0 0 ¢ o 45,647 050 45,647,050 45,647,050
J5A 21 0.0000 0 0 0 0 35,291,500 35,291,500 35,285,140
5 793 0.0000 0 ) 0 0 192,813,030 192,813,030 192,813,030
A 1 0.0000 0 0 0 0 50,000 50,000 50,000
37 5 0.0000 0 0 ) ) 2,221,670 2,221 670 2.221,670
J8 7 0.0000 0 0 0 0 1,587,260 1,587,260 1,587,260
J8A 3 0.0000 0 0 0 0 221,370 221,370 221,370
i 4385 ; o 36,958/89 336,969,600 ,
L1 526 0.0000 0 0 0 0 0 51,335,630 0 51,335,630 51 335,630
L1 526 0.0000 o 0 o 0 0 51,335,630 0 51,335,630 51,335,630
L2A 28 0.0000 0 0 0 0 0 0 16,468,950 16,468,950 16,468,850
128 1 £.0000 0 0 0 0 0 0 50,000 50,000 50,000
L2C 42 0.0000 0 0 0 0 0 0 39,011,730 39,011,730 34,571,880
L2D 8 0.0000 o o 0 0 0 0 914,810 914,810 914,810
L2F 1 0.0000 0 0 0 0 0 ) 2,125,000 2,125,000 2,125,000
126 124 0.0000 0 0 0 0 0 0 154,506,780 154,506,780 154,254 830
L2H 39 0.0000 0 o ) 0 0 0 3,704,390 3.704,390 3,704,360
Page 52 of 82

71232024 9:55:20AM




2024 Certified History Recap
Gonzales Central Appraisal District

530,000 530,000 530,000

62,922,100
4,604,860
721,830

4,604,860
721,830

0 0

0 0 3,181,250 3,181,250 3,181,250
0 0 1,183,540 1,183,540 1,183,540
0 0 11,867,450 11,867,450 11,867,450
G 0 4,828,300 4,828,300 4,828,300
0 0 4,665,360 4,665,360 4,665,360
0 0 243,037,560 243,037,560 238,345,760
.o. 0 24 - .&_,w w“ 9
0 65,966,080

0

0

0 0 0 0 236,830 0

0 0 0 0 ) 620,450 620,450 o

XCA 3 9.4840 193,580 0 0 193,580 7,520 0 ) 201,100 0
XCH 3 0.7768 44,190 0 0 44,190 971,040 0 0 1,015,230 0
XCO 4 2.1950 70,110 0 o 70,110 0 0 0 70,110 0
XJ 1 1.6700 26,790 0 0 26,790 377,520 0 0 404,310 0
XL1 3 0.0000 0 0 0 0 0 289,090 0 289,090 0
5 0 0 0 0 0 1,429,040 ) 1,429,040 0

1 0 ) 0 0 0 52,120 0 52,120 0

2 191,300 0 0 191,300 169,410 0 0 360,710 0

0 0 87,785,980 204,570,250 300,371,200 0

87,785,980
11,960 ] » : 37,63 305,056,680
TOTAL: 71,465 564,264,011 424,729,640 52,805,670 3,447,067,720 477,535,310 1,505,869,750 125,281,710 3,433,451,120 5,541,837,890

4,942,046,167

7/23/2024 9:55:20AM Page 53 of 82




RECEIVED JUL 2 4 2024

CALDWELL COUNTY APPRAISAL DISTRICT

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF CALDWELL

Property Tax Code, Section 26.01 (a)

CERTIFICATION OF 2024 APPRAISAL ROLL

I, Shanna Ramzinski, Chief Appraiser for the Caldwell County Appraisal District,
solemnly swear that the attached is that portion of the approved 2024 Appraisal Roll of
the Caldwell County Appraisal District which lists property taxable by Gonzales
CountyUnderground Water District and constitutes the 2024 appraisal roll for Gonzales
CountyUnderground Water District.

Tuly 23, 2024 Shauwnnow Rouwnginski

Date Shanna Ramzinski

Chief Apprajser
G724 [2024 7~ i Q)\A N\&@A m \
Date Received Uecdved by \)

Approval of the appraisal records by the Caldwell County Appraisal Review Board
occurred on the 19" day of July, 2024.

211 Bufkin Ln
P.0O. Box 900
Lockhart, Texas 78644
United States

PHONE  (512) 398-5550

FAX (512) 398-5551

E-MAIL  general@caldwellcad.org
WEB SITE www.caldwellcad.org




RECEIVED JUL 2 4 2024

Caldwell County 2024 CERTIFIED TOTALS As of Certification
WGCU - Gonzales Coutty Underground Water Consv District
Property Count: 2,793 ARB Approved Totals 712312024 12:30:35PM
fLand Vaiue |
Homesite: 29,439,190
Non Homesite: 105,396,263
Ag Market: 639,713,258
Timber Market; 1,626,780  Total Land (+) 776,175,491
7 { Improvement Value |
| Homesite: 86,814,395
§ Non Homesite: 102,443,878  Total Improvements (+) 180,258,373
| Non Real Count Value |
Parsonal Property: 58 21,697,060
Minerat Property: 1,063 1,922,000
Autos; 0 0  Total Non Real +) 23,619,060
Market Value = 089,052,924
T Ag Non Exempt Exempt |
Total Productivity Market: 641,340,038 0
Ag Use: 4,198,282 0 Productivity Loss =) 637,126,608
Timber Use: 17,150 0 Appraised Value = 351,926,318
Productivity Loss: 637,126,606 0
Homestead Cap () 18,800,495
23.231 Cap (=} 822,287
Assessed Value = 332,303,536
Total Exemptions Amount ) 16,483,844

{Breakdown on Next Page)

Net Taxable = 315,819,692

APPROXIMATE TOTAL LEVY = NET TAXABLE * (TAX RATE / 100)
10,024.12 = 315,619,692 * (0.003174 1 100)

Certified Estimate of Market Value: 989,052,924
Certified Esfimate of Taxable Value: 315,819,692
Tax Increment Finance Vaiue: o]
Tax Increment Finance Levy: 0.00

WGCU/M140682 Page 438 of 479



Caldwell County

Property Count: 2,793

2024 CERTIFIED TOTALS

WGCU - Gonzales County Underground Water Consv District

ARB Approved Totals

As of Cerlification

712312024 12:31:04PM

Exemption Breakdown

rl“:xemptmn Count Local State Total
DVA 8 0 65,000 65,000
Dv3 4] G 56,000 56,000
DV4 17 o] 141,283 141,263
DVHS 16 0 5,712,733 5,712,733
EX-XR 8 0 7,697,750 7,697,750
EX-XV 15 0 2,628,783 2,628,783
EX366 817 ¢] 38,851 39,851
SG 9 142,464 Q 142,464
Totals 142,464 16,341,380 16,483,844

WGCUM 40682 Page 439 of 479



Caldwell County

2024 CERTIFIED TOTALS

WGCU - Gonzales County Underground Water Consv District

As of Cerdificaticn

Properly Count: 16 Under ARB Review Tolals 712372024 12:30:35PM
| Land Value |
Homesita: 1,305,422
Non Homesite: 3,640,810
Ag Market: 1,277,630
Timber Market: 0  Total Land {+) 6,223,862
{ Improvement Value |
Homesite: 517,313
Non Homesite: 1,255,083  Total Improvements (+) 1,773,296
"Non Real Caount Valle |
Personal Property: 0 0
Mineral Properly: 0 0
Autos: 0 0  Total Non Real () 0
Market Value = 7,997,158
{Ag Non Exempt Exempt |
Total Productivity Market: 1,277,530 0
Ag Use: 6,140 0 Productivity Loss (-} 1,271,380
Timber Use: 0 {0  Appraised Value = 6,725,768
Productivity Loss: 1,271,390 0
Homestead Cap -) 414,180
23,231 Cap {-) 0
Assessed Value = 6,311,588
Totat Exemptions Amount { 8]
(Breakdown on Next Page)
Net Taxable = 6,311,588
APPROXIMATE TOTAL LEVY = NET TAXABLE * (TAX RATE / 100)
200.33 = 6,311,588 * (0.003174 / 100)
Cerlified Fstimate of Market Value: 6,424,685
Certified Estimate of Taxable Value: 5,249,633
Tax Increment Finance Value: 0
Tax increment Finance Levy: 0.00

WGCUM 40682 Page 440 of 478



Caldwell County

2024 CERTIFIED TOTALS
WGCU - Gonzales County Underground Water Consv District

As of Cerfification

12:31:04PM

Exemption Breakdown

Examption

Count

Totals

Local

State

‘Total

WGCU/140682

Page 441 of 479




Caldweli County 2024 CERTIFIED TOTALS As of Certification
WGCU - Gonzales County Underground Water Consv District

Property Count: 2,809 Grand Totals 712312024 12:30:35PM
f Land Vaiue |
Hemasite: 30,744,612
MNon Homesite: 109,037,173
Ag Market: 640,090,788
Timber Markst: 1,626,780  Total Land {+) 782,399,353
f Tmprovement Value |
Hemesite: 87,331,708
Non Homesite: 103,699,061 Total Improvements (+) 191,031,662
| Non Real Count Value |
Personal Property: 58 21,697,060
Mineral Property: 1,083 1,822,000
Autos: ¢ 0 Total Non Real (+} 23,619,060
Market Value = 997,050,082
[ Ag Non Exempt Exempt |
: Tatal Productivity Market: 642,617,568 0
Ag Use: 4,202,422 0  Productivity Loss ) 638,397,956
Timber Use: 17,150 0 Appraised Value = 358,652,086
Productivity Loss: 638,397,996 o]
Homestead Cap () 18,214,675
23.231 Cap - 822,287
Assessed Value = 338,615,124
Total Exemptions Amount 8] 16,483,844

{Breakdown on Next Page)

Net Taxable = 322,131,280

APPROXIMATE TOTAL LEVY = NET TAXABLE * (TAX RATE / 100}
10,224.45 = 322,131,280 * (0.003174 / 100}

Certified Estimate of Market Value: 995,477,609
Certified Estimate of Taxable Value: 321,089,325
Tax Increment Finance Value: 1]
Tax Increment Finance Levy: 0.00

WGCU/140682 Page 442 of 479



Caldwell County 2024 CERTIFIED TOTALS As of Cerlification
WGCU - Gonzales County Undesground Water Consv District
Property Count: 2,809 Grand Totals 712312024 12:31:04PM
Exemption Breakdown
| Exemption Count Local State Total |
DV1 8 0 65,000 65,000
DV3 6 0 56,000 56,000
Dv4 17 0 141,263 141,263
DVHS 16 0 5,712,733 5,712,733
EX-XR 8 0 7.697,750 7,697,750
EX-XV 15 0 2,628,783 2,628,783
EX366 617 0 39,851 39,851
le] 9 142 464 0 142,464
Totals 142,464 16,341,380 16,483,344
WGCU/M140682 Page 443 of 479



Caldwell County

Property Count; 2,793

2024 CERTIFIED TOTALS

WGCU - Gonzales County Underground Water Consv District
ARB Approved Totals

As of Certification

712312024  12:31:04PM

State Category Breakdown

rstate Code Description Count Acres New Value Market Value Taxable Value ]

A SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE 86 76.2048 $137,850 $12,180,639 $11,089,026
C1 VACANT LOTS AND LAND TRACTS 31 56.6710 36 $2,526,550 $2,484,179
D1 QUALIFIED OPEN-SPACE LAND 893 62,305.6471 $0 $641,340,038 $4,186,315
D2 IMPROVEMENTS ON QUALIFIED OP 263 $229,760 $9,245.411 $9,186,597
E RURAL LAND, NON QUALIFIED OPE 1,030 6,199.3312 $10,013,620 $277,296,186 $253,383,842
F1 COMMERCIAL REAL PROPERTY 10 20.8390 $216,490 $3,427,530 $3,427,530
G1 Ol AND GAS 457 $0 $1,879,184 $1,800,449
J3 ELECTRIC COMPANY (INCLUDING C 5 $C $3,074,990 $3,074,990
J4 TELEPHONE COMPANY (INCLUDI 4 $0 $156,060 $156,0680
Js RAILROAD 1 $0 $2,003,210 $2,003,210
Ja PIPELAND COMPANY 12 $0 $14,755,540 $14,755,540
L1 COMMERCIAL PERSONAL PROPE 20 $0 $1,598,860 $1,598,880
L2 INDUSTRIAL AND MANUFACTURIN 4 %0 $99,090 $99,090
M1 TANGIBLE OTHER PERSONAL, MOB 121 $451,990 $8,528,370 $8,117,880
Q RESIDENTIAL INVENTORY 8 21.1660 30 $562,250 $456,024
X TOTALLY EXEMPT PROPERTY G40 887.8830 $15,820 $10,378,016 30

Totals 69,667.7421 $11,085,530 $986,052,924 $315,819,692

WGCUM40682 Page 444 of 479



Caldwell County 2024 CERTIFIED TOTALS As of Cerlification

WGCU - Gonzales County Underground Water Consv District
Property Count: 16 Under ARB Review Totals 71232024 12:31:04PM

State Category Breakdown

i State Code Description Count Acres New Value Market Value Taxable Value 1
A SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE 1 1.0000 $0 $214,830 $214,830
D1 QUALIFIED OPEN-SPACE LAND t 120.0400 $0 $1,277,530 $6,140
n2 IMPROVEMENTS ON QUALIFIED OP 1 30 $1.690 $1,690
E RURAL LAND, NON QUALIFIED OPE 14 317.7590 $370,680 $6,458,548 $6,055,946
M1 TANGIBLE OTHER PERSONAL, MORB 1 $0 $44,560 $32,082
Totals 438.7990 $370,580 $7,997,158 $6,311,588

WGCUM40682 Page 445 0l 479



Caldwell County

Properly Coun: 2,809

Grand Totals

2024 CERTIFIED TOTALS
WGCU - Gonzales County Underground Water Consv District

As of Certification

7123/2024 12:31:04PM

State Category Breakdown

I State Code Description Count Acres New Value Market Value Taxable Value l
A SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE 87 77,2048 $137,850 $12,395,469 $11,303,856
cA VAGANT LOTS AND LAND TRACTS 3 56.6710 30 $2,526,550 $2,484,179
D QUALIFIED OPEN-SPACE LAND 894 62,425.6871 $0 $642,617,568 $4,192,455
B2 IMPROVEMENTS ON QUALIFIED OP 264 $229,760 $9,247,101 $9,188,287
£ RURAL LAND, NON QUALIFIED OPE 1,044 6,517.0902 $10,384,200 $283,754,734 $259,439,788
F1 COMMERCIAL REAL PROPERTY 10 20.8390 $216,490 $3,427,530 $3,427,630
G1 OIL AND GAS 457 30 $1,879,184 $1,800,449
J3 ELECTRIC COMPANY (INCLUDING C 5 $0 $3,074,990 $3,074,990
J4 TELEPHONE COMPANY (INCLUDI 4 30 $156,060 $156,060
J5 RAILROAD 1 30 $2,003,210 $2,003,210
J6 PIPELAND COMPANY 12 $0 $14,755,540 $14,755,540
L1 COMMERCIAL PERSONAL PROPE 20 $0 $1,598,860 $1,508,860
(3 INDUSTRIAL AND MANUFACTURIN 4 $0 $99,080 $99,090
M1 TANGIBLE OTHER PERSONAL, MOB 122 $451,980 $8,673,930 $8,150,962
Q RESIDENTIAL INVENTORY 9 21.1660 $0 $562,250 $456,024
X TOTALLY EXEMPT PROPERTY 840 887.8830 $15,820 $10,378,016 $0

Totals 70,008.5411 $11,436,110 $997,050,082 $322,131,280
WGCU/140682 Page 446 of 479



Caldwelf County 2024 CERTIFIED TOTALS Ag of Cerlification

WGCU - Gonzales County Underground Water Consv District
Property Count: 2,793 ARB Approved Totals 7/23/2024  12:31:04PM

CAD State Category Breakdown

l State Code Description Count Acres New Value Market Value Taxable Value i

Al RESIDENTIAL SINGLE FAMILY 61 41.0398 $119,850 $7.897,138 $6,957,2563

A2 RESIDENTIAL MOBILE HOME ON OW 24 35.1650 $0 $4,009,130 $3,870,075

A9 RESIDENTIAL MISC / NON-RESIDENTI 17 $18,000 $274,370 $261,698

c VACANT RESIDENTIAL LOTS ~ INSI 10 17.9240 30 $960,850 $960,850

Ct VACANT RESIDENTIAL LOTS - OUTS 21 38.7470 30 $1,565,700 $1,523,329

D1 RANCH LAND - QUALIFIED AG LAND 891 62,217.3221 30 §$639,967,863 $4,432,040

D2 NON-RESIDENTIAL IMPRVS ON QUAL 263 $229,760 $9,245,411 $9,186,597

D4 TIMBERLAND - QUALIFIED AG LAND 3 111.3170 $0 §1,626,780 $8,880

E RESIDENTIAL ON NON-QUALIFIED A 544 1,183.6112 $8,559,830 $153,168,741 $135,067,254

E1 NON-RESIDENTIAL ON NON-QUALIF 310 112,3430 $862,530 $10,577,689 $10,165,589

E2 MOBILE HOMES ON RURAL LAND 412 797.7547 $589,880 $41,393,956 $36,368,857

E3 RURAL LAND NON-QUALIFIED AG 268 4,072.7303 $980 $71,801,195 $71,627,538

F1 REAL - COMMERCIAL 10 20.8380 $216,490 $3,427,530 $3,427,5630

G1 OlL, GAS AND MINERAL RESERVES 457 $0 $1,879,184 $1,800,449

43 ELECTRIC COMPANIES (INCLD CO-O 5 30 $3,074,990 $3,074,990

J4 TELEPHONE COMPANIES (INCLD CO 4 $0 $156,060 $156,060

Jb RAILRCADS 1 $0 $2,003,210 $2,003,210

: J6 PIPELINES 12 30 $14,755,540 $14,755,540
: 11 COMMERCIAL PERSONAL PROPER 5 30 $1,300,600 $1,300,800
: L2 INDUSTRIAL PERSONAL PROPERTY 4 $0 $99,000 $99,090
E L3 LEASED EQUIPMENT 6 $0 $63,270 $63,270
; Lh VEHICLES - INCOME PRODUCING CO g 30 $234,990 $234,990
: M1 MOBH.E HOME ONLY ON NON-OWNE 121 $451,580 $8,529,370 $8,117,980
; O REAL PROPERTY INVENTORY - RES 9 21.1660 50 $562,250 $456,024
X EXEMPT 640 887.8830 $15,820 $10,378,016 $0

Totals  69,567.7421 $11,065,530 $989,052,924 $315,819,693

WGCU/140682 Page 447 of 479



Caldwell County 2024 CERTIFIED TOTALS As of Certification

WGCU - Gonzales County Underground Water Consv District
Properly Count: 16 Under ARB Review Totals 712312024 12:31:04FM

CAD State Category Breakdown

[ State Code Description Count Acres New Value Market Value Taxable Value

Al RESIDENTIAL SINGLE FAMILY 1 1.0000 $0 $212,840 $212,840

A9 RESIDENTIAL MISC / NON-RESIDENTI 1 30 $1,990 $1,990

D1 RANGCH LAND - QUALIFIED AG LAND 1 120.0400 30 $1,277,530 $6,140

D2 NON-RESIDENTIAL IMPRVS ON QUAL 1 50 $1,6090 $1,680

| E RESIDENTIAL ON NON-QUALIFIED A 9 38.4720 $325,760 $2,409,803 $2,286,238
E1 NON-RESIDENTIAL ON NON-QUALIF 5 $44,820 $115,079 $99,154
’ E2 MOBILE HOMES ON RURAL LAND 4 20.9390 $0 $717,506 $454,394
i £3 RURAL LAND NON-QUALIFIED AG 7 258,3480 $0 $3,216,160 $3,216,160
: M1 MOBILE HOME ONLY ON NON-OWNE 1 $0 344,560 $32,982
: Totals 438.7990 $370,580 $7.997,158 $6,311,588

WGECUIM40682 Page 448 of 479



Catdwell County

Property Count: 2,809

Grand Totals

2024 CERTIFIED TOTALS
WGCU - Gonzales County Underground Water Consv Diistrict

As of Certification

712312024 12:31:04PM

CAD State Category Breakdown

| State Code Description Count Acres New Value Market Value Taxahle Value 1
A1 RESIDENTIAL SINGLE FAMILY 62 42.0398 $119,850 $8,109,979 $7,170,093
A2 RESIDENTIAL MOBILE HOME ON OW 24 35.1650 $0 $4,008,130 $3,870,075
A9 RESIDENTIAL MISC / NON-RESIDENTI 18 $18,000 $276,360 $263,688
C VACANT RESIDENTIAL LOTS - INSI 10 17.9240 $0 $960,850 $960,850
C1 VACANT RESIDENTIAL LOTS - OUTS 21 38.7470 $0 $1,565,700 $1,523,329
D1 RANCH LAND - QUALIFIED AG LAND 892 62,337.3621 $0 $641,245,393 $4,438,180
D2 NON-RESIDENTIAL IMPRVS ON QUAL 264 $229,760 $9,247,101 $9,188,287
D4 TIMBERLAND - QUALIFIED AG LAND 3 111.3170 30 $1,628,780 $8,880

E RESIDENTIAL ON NON-QUALIFIED A 553 1,231.9832 $8,885,500 $155,578,544 $137,353,492

E1 NON-RESIDENTIAL ON NON-QUALIF 315 112.3430 $907,750 $10,692,768 $10,264,743
E2 MOBILE HOMES ON RURAL LAND 416 818.6937 $589,880 $42,111,462 $36,823,251
E3 RURAL LAND NON-QUALIFIED AG 275 4,331.0783 $980 $75,117,356 $74.743,608
F1 REAL - COMMERCIAL 10 20.8390 $216,490 $3,427,530 $3,427,530
G1 OIL, GAS AND MINERAL RESERVES 457 $0 $1,879,184 $1,800,449
J3 ELECTRIC COMPANIES (INCLD CO-O b $0 $3,074,990 $3,074,990
J4 TELEPHONE COMPANIES (INCLD CO 4 50 $156,060 $156,060
J5 RAILROADS 1 $0 $2,003,210 $2,003,210
Ja PIPELINES 12 $0 $14,755,540 $14,7565,540
L1 COMMERCIAL PERSONAL PROPER 5 $0 $1,300,600 $1,300,600
L2 INDUSTRIAL PERSONAL PROPERTY 4 $0 $99,080 $99,080
L3 LEASED EQUIPMENT 6 30 $63,270 $63,270
L5 VEHICLES - INCOME PRODUCING CO 9 30 $234,990 $234,0890
1 MOBILE HOME ONLY ON NON-OWNE 122 $451,990 $8,573,930 $8,150,962
Q0 REAL PROPERTY INVENTORY - RES 9 21.1660 $0 $562,250 3456,024

X EXEMPT 640 887.8830 $15,820 $10,378,016 30

Totals 70,006.5411 $11,436,110 $997,050,082 $322,131,281

WGCU/140682 Page 449 of 479



Caldweli County 2024 CERTIFIED TOTALS As of Certification
WGCU - Gonzales County Underground Water Consv District

Property Count: 2,809 Effective Rate Assumption 712312024 12:31:04PM

New Value

TOTAL NEW VALUE MARKET: $11,436,110
TOTAL NEW VALUE TAXABLE: $11,412,080

MNew Exemptions

I_Exemptlon Description Count !
EX366 HOUSE BILL 366 12 2023 Market Value $3,522
ABSOLUTE EXEMPTIONS VALUE LOSS $3,622

| Exemptioh Description Count Exemption Amount |
Dv3 Disabled Veterans 50% - 69% 1 $12,000
PARTIAL EXEMPTIONS VALUE LOSS 1 $12,000
NEW EXEMPTIONS VALUE LOSS $15,522

Increased Exemptions

Exemption Description Count Increased Exemption Amount

INCREASED EXEMPTIONS VALUE L.OSS

TOTAL EXEMPTIONS VALUE LOSS $15,522

New Ag ! Timber Exemptions

2023 Market Value $6,330,289 Count: 33
2024 Ag/Timber Use $62,530
NEW AG / TIMBER VALUE LOSS $6,267,759

New Annexations

| New Deannexations

Average Homestead Value

Category A and E

| Count of HS Residences

Average Market

Average HS Exemption

Average Taxable |

393

$274 519
Category A Only

$48,004

$226,515

| Count of HS Residences

Average Market

Average HS Exemption

Average Taxable |

23

$294,954

$47.370

$247 584

WGCU/140682

Page 450 of 479



Catdwell County 2024 CERTIFIED TOTALS As of Certification

WGCH - Gonzales County Underground Water Consv District
Lower Value Used

i Count of Frotested Properties Tatal Market Value Total Value Used

16 $7,997,158.00 $5,249,633

WGCLU/140682 Page 451 of 479



Gonzales County UWCD

Amended 2023-2024 Budget/Proposed 2024-2025 Budget

GCUWCD EXPENSES

23-24 23-24 23-24 23-24 2425
ESTIMATED TO BUDGET BUDGET AMENDED PROPOSED
CATEGORIES DATE AMENDMENTS BUDGET BUDGET
001 Payroll Expenses
Directors' Salary $8,550.00 $9,500.00 $9,500.00( $ 12,500.00
Manager Salary $75,589.11 $90,706.95 $90,706.95| $ 93,428.16
Office Aide Salary $29,367.46 $26,000.00 $35,490.46| $ 37.811.03
Temporary (Office Aide) $0.00 $2,170.00 $2,170.00|f $ 2,170.00
Part Time Field Technician $21,494.67 $29,705.20 $25,000.00( $ 25,750.00
Well Mitigation Manager $28,538.13 $67,897.60 $67,897.60| $ 69.934.53
FICA (SS & Medicare) $12,510.79 $16,394.70 $16,394.70| $ 17,359.66
State Unemployment $500.93 $4,071.89 $4,071.89| $ 4,311.55
\Workers Compensation $0.00 $2,143.10 $2,143.10}| $ 2,269.24
GCUWCD Retirement Match $2,984.64 $4,758.14 $4,758.14| $ 4,900.88
Employee Health Insurance $0.00 $0.00 $0.00ff $ 21,000.00
~_Payroll Expense Total|| $179,535.73|| $253,347.57 $0.00f $258,132.84|| $ 291,435.05
002 Operating Expenses
Association Dues $125.00] $2,500.00ji $2,500.00 $2,500.00
Education $636.01 $700.00 $700.00 $700.00
Audit Fees $2,866.68 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00
Marketing/Advertisement $0.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00
Office Maintenance(Pest/Janitorial/AC) $900.46 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00
Building Repair $5,303.84 $0.00 ($5,350.00) $5,350.00 $1,500.00
Office Utilities (Trash/Water/Elec) $2,012.13 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00
Office Building Insurance $3,389.00 $3,000.00 ($400.00) $4,000.00 $4,000.00
Employee Insurance (TML/Dubose) $4,316.56 $3,500.00 ($850.00) $4,320.00 $4,500.00
Equip. Rental (Ricoh Copy/Scan/Fax) $3,353.49 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00
Equip Maintenance $0.00 $300.00 $300.00 $0.00 $0.00
Internet Access GVTC $1,014.50 $1,980.00 $1,980.00 $1,980.00
Software Upgrades (ESRI/Quickbook) $3,359.88 $2,800.00 ($600.00) $3,400.00 $3,500.00
IT Service (Virtualis Soltuions) $8,829.00 $11,000.00 $11,000.00 $11,000.00
Electronic Data Storage (DropBox) $146.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00
GoToMeeting (Online Meeting Host) $144.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00
Consultant $21,569.09 $30,000.00 $5,000.00 $25,000.00 $30,000.00
Legal $39,957.07 $60,000.00 $60,000.00 $60,000.00
Lobbying $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00
Hearing Procedures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00
Legal SOAH GBRA $123,758.06 $0.00|| ($160,000.00)]f $160,000.00 $0.00
Legal CRWA $1,300.00 $0.00 ($1,300.00) $1,300.00 $0.00
Office Supplies $972.88 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00
Postage $598.64 $500.00 ($100.00) $600.00 $700.00
Published Notices $4,921.95 $500.00 ($4,500.00) $5,000.00 $3,000.00
Telephone/Cell Phones $3,336.76 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00
Travel and Meetings $405.00 $7,500.00 $5,000.00 $2,500.00 $7,500.00
Vehicle Mileage $4,731.02 $15,000.00 $1,300.00 $13,700.00 $15,000.00
\Website Maintenance $457.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00
Database Hosting (Halff/Standen) $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00
Cash on Hand to Cover Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $70,000.00 $70,000.00 $0.00
Operating Expense Total|| $273,904.02|f $194,680.00| -$90,000.00f $425,250.00 $216,280.00
003 Capital Outlay Expenses
Lab/Field Equipment $2,804.39 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00
Office Equipment $0.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00
Reference Materials $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Capital Outlay Expense Total $2,804.39 $6,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $6,000.00
004 Project Expenses
Groundwater Testing & GW Fair $4,024.33 $11,000.00 $11,000.00 $6,000.00
WL Recorder Equip. & Maintenance $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00
Well Plugging Program $0.00 $75,000.00 $75,000.00 $0.00 $650,000.00
Well Inspection Program $0.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00
Election Expenses $6,210.77 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00
Post Modeling VS Actual Report $0.00 $30,000.00((In Progress $30,000.00 $29,000.00
Eastern Drawdown Report $0.00 $40,000.00}(In Progress $40,000.00 $40,000.00
Subsidance Probability $0.00 $20,000.00{In Progress $20,000.00 $20,000.00
Leased Property Audit $0.00 $12,000.00||In Progress $12,000.00 $11,000.00
) Project Expense Total $10,235.10|| $210,000.00 $87,000.00| $123,000.00 $768,000.00
005 Tax Expenses _
Appraisal District Budget Share/Tax Expense " $2,461 .so” $3,271.83 “ $3,271 .83” $3,397.28
Tax Expense Total $2,461.50 $3,271.83 $0.00 $3,271.83 $3,397.28
TOTAL ALL EXPENSES __ $468,940.74]]_$667,299.40] $0.00] $812,654.67]] $1,285,112.33
- GCUWCD INCOME
23-24 23-24 23-24 2324 24-25
ESTIMATED TO BUDGET BUDGET AMENDED PROPOSED
CATEGORIES DATE AMENDMENTS BUDGET BUDGET
006 Tax Collection Um il
Current Tax $140,237.28 $144,942.12 $144,942.12 $148,113.15
Delinquent Tax $1,953.96 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Penalty & Interest $1,725.77 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Less Commission ($1,872.76)|  ($2,000.00) ($2,000.00) ($2,000.00)
Less Tax Refunds $198.18 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Tax Collection Total|| $142,242.43( $142,942.12 $0.00( $142,942.12 $146,113.15
007 Fees, Interest, Reimbursement
Miscellaneous Income $1,129.23 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Permit Fees $377.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Export Fee $ 214,362.73 $186,314.26 $186,314.26|] $1,128,995.51
Interest Earned $42,937.89 $10,500.00 $10,500.00 $25,000.00
Fees and Interest Total|| $258,806.85| $196,814.26 $0.00|| $196,814.26| $1,153,995.51
008 Transfer From Prior Year FundS™ _
Transfer Total $0.00 $0.00]| $0.00 $0.00
TOTAL ALL FUNDING|[ $401,049.28| $339,756.38]| $0.00f $339,756.38]| $1,300,108.66
DEFICIT/SURPLUS
|| ($67.891.46)] ($327,543.02)| [ (3472,898.29)| $14,996.33
ANTICIPATED CASH ON HAND
o Estimated Cash on Hand FYE 23-24| $2,223,778.30
Cash on Hand to Cover Expenses ($70,000.00)
Budget Surplus/Deficit FY 24-25 $14,996.33
Total 2024-2025 FYE|| $2,308,774.63




10:11 AM Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District

08/09/24 Transaction Detail By Account
Accrual Basis October 1, 2023 through August 9, 2024
Type Date Num Name Memo Class Cir Split Debit Credit Balance

002 Oper Exp.
Building Repair

Check 05/07/2024 McCoy's Numbers for Address Operating Acco... 17.97 17.97

Check 05/07/2024 7977 Native Arbor Care VOID: Estimate #264 X Operating Acco... 0.00 17.97

Check 05/21/2024 7984 John Facile-Native Arbor Care VOID: X Operating Acco... 0.00 17.97

Check 05/30/2024 8009 ME Plumbing Estimate #2909 Operating Acco... 1,948.50 1,966.47

Check 05/30/2024 8009 ME Plumbing Estimate #3080 Operating Acco... 2,604.37 4,570.84

Check 06/17/2024 8015 T-Electric Repair Operating Acco... 300.00 4,870.84

Check 06/20/2024 8016 John Facile Contractor Services N... Operating Acco... 433.00 5,303.84

Total Building Repair 5,303.84 0.00 5,303.84

Total 002 Oper Exp. 5,303.84 0.00 5,303.84
TOTAL 5,303.84 0.00 5,303.84

Page 1



| abed

TvLOL
“dx3 JadQ Z0o [eyoL
|efa |ejoL

12yi0 - [efia [BloL

LL'86E0L1 000 LL'86E°0LL
21°86€'0LL 000 £1°86€'0LL
L1°86€'0L) 000 £1'868'0LL
LLOPeE'GE 000 LLope'st
LLove'SH 00°608'Z
LL°GES'TL LL'GES'2E
90'8G.'€Z} 000 90'85L'¢Z
90'8G.'€Cl 0szeL'L
95°GZ0'9LL 00°528
95°002'GLL - TAA
80°Z.8'L04 80°¢E8'Y
0¥'8€0°€0} L0'€81'92
6£'658'9L 00°0S+
6£'504'9L 0005+
6£°655'9L 00°095
6E'G66'GL gz'gse'0l
£1'28L'69 8.'L9¥
GE'692'59 GR'LLE
0G°286'F9 00°2¥S'S
05°GL¥'6S 05°8v9'2e
00°£9.2°9€ 000
00°/92'¢€ 000
00°£9L'9E 00°€80'¢
00'+89'EE Sy 9ES'y
G5 LY L'6T 067202
S9'6£6'8C 06°L02
SLLeL'8T 00'LLS'Y
G20ZL'¥T 18'0258'S
88'665'0C 00°059'L
g8'676'8L 00'5.2
88v/9'8L 00'LLE'Y
88°¢0E'V1L 0G°'L€6
ge'zie'el 00°055'Ct
9€'Ze8 8e'zee
00°00€'L 000 00°00€‘L
00°00¢'L 00°00€'L
00°000'0€ 000 00°000'0€
00°000'0€ 00°000°0E
aouejegd ngaa

00y Bunesedo £20Z 990-€202100  Od Wwild meT Si3 ND 9c08 ¥202/60/L0 procliie]
00y Bunesedo ¢zoz Jequisidag-gzoz ANF Od wiid meT SITND 8¥6.L $Z0Z/20/¥0 %0349

Jay)o - [eba

vdao0 [E10L
o0y Bunesado /9EBOZ0# SOI0AU| SSOMUDS [BUOISSBJ0Id " suaudals g [BIuE ¥508 ¥20z/LE/L0 3o8UD
00y Bunesedo $£6,9Z04 S0I0AU| SSOISS [BUOISSSJ0ld T susydels "g 1Blueq ¥508 ¥Z0Z/1€/20 patllte]
00y Bugessdo fuuesH 2520 PaISAIUO) YHED  TWRY 0 S0UO 9IBIS 2508 $20Z/1€/L0 peCllie]
00y BunesadQ BulEsH 280 PRISAlUo) YHED  TWPY JO SOWO SIEIS 5e08 ¥202/60/L0 PeClite}
ooy Bunessdo W uBwpaLd  UIA UBAIINS ACKZON Ze08 ¥20Z/60/L0 308D
90y Bunesado Buueay Joj sieveads g 2N ss|eueD UMEN 008 $202/L0/90 308UD
o0y Bunessdo BuueaH Joj s1exeads B O sajeur) UMBN £008 ¥202/£0/90 pieCllte}
oy bunessdo [BlUSY JIBYD  UOWEIOoSSY SpiEmp3 Z008 ¥202/£0/90 3oayQ
00y Bujessdo v uBwpaly N UBAlNG ACJFON oLoe ¥20Z/0£/50 ¥o8uo
*00y BugessdO fuueaH as) PRISSIU0) YHED  UWPY 0 SO0 SIEIS §/6L  ¥2OTIFLISO piteClile)
00y Bunessdo BulesH ase) PAISAIUOD YHED WPV JO 30O SlelS ¥l6L  ¥2OTI¥LISO pecliie}
00y Bupesedo W 'UBWPSLY Z.l6L ¥Z02/¥1/50 prolVie]
00y Buieredo 'Y ‘uewpalid 1IN UBAIIING AoJ[Z0I o¥6. ¥202/20/%0 308U
00y Bugessdo J9S80Z0# 90I0AU] SIOINISS [BUCISS3J0Id T SUBYdalS "g |Blued rheL ¥202/20/%0 ¥o3y9
o0y Bunesado $E6/020# 90I0AU] S30INBG [BUOISSBold T SuBYdRlS “g [Blued yv6.  $EOTEO/F0 }o8uD
00y BunesedQ 'Y ‘UeLpal4 616L FAVAAY) piel=lVlo]
20y Bunesado "y 'uewpaud I ueAyng AoJFoN ¥68. ¥202/10/20 plecllte]
00y Bugesedo Buieay 8587 PaISSIU0) YHED  TWPY JO SO0 i8IS 1682 ¥202/L0/Z0 piscliie]
ooy Buiessdo BuuesH 8SED PAISIIUCD YHED WPV JO B3O SIEIS 9882 ¥20Z/LE/L0 %9349
00y Bugessdo ‘v UBWpaLY N UBAlNG AoSFON 898/ ¥202/60/1.0 %03
00y BunesadQ $E099Z0# 2010AU] SIOIAISS [EUOISSBJ0Id T suBUdalS “g IBIued gogl  $20Z/60/L0 #3420
20y Bunessdo 62099704 SOI0AU| SSOIBG [BUOISSSJ0Id Sudydals "g [BILed Go8L ¥202/60/10 ptille]
00y Buesado S30IBS [BUCISSBJOld 7 Susydals g BIued Sv8L AT ATANA] #o8UD
00y Bunesado y‘uewpsud I UBAIINS AoN3OIN £¥8. AV ArANAN %9349
“-00y Bugesedo W uBwpald N uBAlng Aosi3oN 0z8. €202 LILL ¥o3U9d
20y BupessdQ 'Y ‘uewpald IIN uBAlINS Aot32IN g8l £20ZVLILL 3oaud
00y Bunessdo BuuesH ase) PAISSILOD vHED  TTWPY 40 30O SiBlS €6LL €z0zZ/0L/0} pieCllle]

vyg9

YAMHO [EjoL
00y BuesadQ “d YD Jo) BuleaH Aruiuiald AOMNOD  SSIAY usydals abpnp P¥8L XAV AAN AL 30842

YMYED

saoInag aane|siBe |BloL
o0y Bupessdo annejsibat 6Z0Z-yZ0z  Od Wiid meT sI3 ND L6LL £202/0L/0} 38y

saoinag anne|siba]
1eba

*dx3 12dQ 200
nds OW3N aweN wnN ajeq adAL

|
|

¥z0z ‘6 3snBny ybnoay €20z ‘L 4240120
juno29y Ag |1ejaqg uonoesuel ]

1913SIg UOnEAISUOD Jajep punoibiapun fjunog sejezuoy

siseg [enJooy
¥2/60/80
NV 80:01



| abed

9865 000 97865

¥9°86S 000 ¥9°865

#9869 000 +9'869

9'865 oosvl

AT 89'6

96'Cv¥ €48

£TVEY £l'8 g0y Bupelsado
05°6ev <00y BunesasdQ
0SSy vP'ET g0y BuneisdO
90°20¥ L2 g0y Bunesedo
SE'08E el alv]> a0y BugeladQ
88°6¥C £L'8 00y BupesadO
9L'Lbe LLe 90y Bunesado
SP'BLE (WAL A 00y BunesadQ
v.'LBT 5802 o0y Bupelado
68°9.C LE°0E 00y BunessdQ
25'9re /8'8l 00y BunesadQ
59°.22 0089 90y Bunesado
G9'651 v¥6 90y Bunesado
L2ost alL '8t 20y Bunerado
go0'czol 95’8 <00y BunesadQ
B¥'€6 £6'¥8 00y BugesadO
9568 95’8 90y Bupelsado

souejeg 1paln na2a nds

Elte}

IvLOoL

‘dx3 JedQ 200 [BloL
abejsod [BloL

Buie pauma) 4O Buisingsia Sdsn ¥202/velL0 pclie}
Bue paus) 30 Buisingsig Sdsn ¥202/61/L0 precliio]
Bulrepy pawpe) 0 Buisingsig SdsSN ¥202/04/L0 %9349
Buliey payNed 301038 [BISCd SN ¥202/82/90 ¥o8uD
-gBE-NI# 9010AU] ‘6GZLEH JOWOISND  "TORN|OS SJWO [BISOD 1162 YZ0E/¥L/IS0 peiite}
£g0t-NI Bunse JSIBA PUNOID SdN TORNIOS 20O [E3S00 91:72 ¥202I¥1/50 peCli o)
710¥-NI BuRsa| JojeAn PUNOID SdN ORNIOS 3DWO [EISOD Li6L ¥Z0Z/¥1/S0 pre=lVie]
866-NI Bunsa] J8)EAA PUNCID SdN ORNIOS SO [BISOD LLBL ¥Z0Z/LISO peclite)
Buey payay O Buisingsia sdsn $202/E0/¥0 3o3yD
1/2¢-N1 Buisa] Jsjepn pUnoi SAn - TORNIOS S0WO [EISCD £r6L ¥202/20/70 %8y
zz.6-N| Bunsa] Jelep punois Sdn - "TORNIOS SOWQO [BJS0Q £y6L ¥202/20/%0 #23Y9
ceoe-NI Bunsal Joiep) PUNCID SdN  OINIOS OO 18100 e¥6L ¥20Z/20/70 petllle]
919g-N| Bunsa JslepA punois Sdn - OIN|0S SJWO [B1S0D £6. ¥Z02/20/70 399UQ
Bunsal JeIBA) PUNCID SdN  TTORNIOS SJWO [EISOD 1264 ¥20Z/2hIE0 peclite)
sdweig 201MBS [BISOd SN ¥202/L0/E0 %oy
Buiey pauaD 201Ma8S [BISOd SN ¥20Z/L0/E0 ¥o8UD
abelsod 30 Buisingsig S4SN $202/10/2Z0 psCllie]
BUIIIBIAl 4O S1E0UI3D SdSN I As|eH ‘saxels y98. ¥202/60/10 peEliie)
x3apsad T susydals g jRlueq S8L €20Z/ZLITL ¥osud
Buiiey payued 201MBS [BISOd SN £202/LE/0} pleclVie]
abejsod

-dx3 12dO 200

sse|n owa aweN wnn ajeq adA1

$z0z ‘6 3snBny ybnoayy £20Z ‘I 4990320
Juno929y Ag |iejeq uondesueld]
19L13S1g UOI)BAIaSUOD J8JBAA punoibiapun Ajuno sa|ezuon

siseg |eNI22Y
2/60/80
NV 80-01



| abeq

G6'LZ6'Y 00°0 S6°LZ6'Y TYL0L
G6°126'F 000 66126y 'dx3 JedQ 200 lejoL
G6'LZB'Y 000 G6'LZ6'F S92ON pPays!idnd [eoL
S6'LEZE'Y 09'LgL 08 # Junoooy Buesado 1S0d qOf UBPIUYDSL TN Jaunbu| ss|ezuon £L08 $20Z/0£/S0 pieClite]
SE'008'Y 00°6LZ 08 # Junoooy Bugersdg 1504 qor uBolYda L Pl “siBay-isod HEYooT z108 ¥202/0E/50 preCllte}
GE'S8S'Y 05'gez *08 #1uno29y Bujessdo 1504 gor ueiuyda) T sifay-1sod HewooT] 664 ¥202/20/50 petllle]
G8'8YE'Y 05°9¢2 08 # Junoooy Bunesado 1504 qor ueioluyos]  “sifay-lsod HEeYyooT] 6161 ¥202/L0/50 pEli)
SEZTLL'Y 00°€06 “°0g # Juno20Y Buiessdo uonoa|g Jo epiQ  “sIBaN-1s0d HEooT 6.6. ¥202/L0/S0 piecilie]
GE'602'E 002 ysen fnad 201j0u JO} YseDd Auno [lampleD ¥202/L0/50 pieI=llo]
ceL0Z'e 00'2LE 08 # Junoooy Bunesado 1504 qOr UBIOIUYDS] N Jalinbu| s8[ezuo9 8/6. $202/L0/S0 pieClile)
GE'GER'T 05'6EL 08 # Juno2oy Bugessdo uonos(g J0 JBpIQ N Jauinbul SBBZUCD Ly6L ¥202/20/70 precite}
Gg8'S6L'T 00°€06 *0g # Junoooy Bunessdo uoos|3 JoJspi0  sIBaY-isod Hewoo] GY6L ¥202/20/%0 peCllie]
el XAT A 00'v 08 # Juncody Bunesado Qv9D90 924 B0ION N AsleH ‘saxels GlLB.L ¥20Z/Z 10 ¥osuD
G8'88Z'} 002 08 # Junoooy Bunesado avoD @94 Bunsod eine ‘uen eLBL $Z0Z/ZLIE0 30840
58'98¢2'} 4=3-7% Cog# unoooy Bunessdo BuuesH ollgnd  'sIBay-sod HeyooT 082 $202/60/10 preClite}
NNl 00°%vE *0g # Junoooy Buiesado 10/|eg Joj uoneoiddy  siBay-1S0d HEUMO0] 048L $202/60/10 302U
££'898 sz ovh 08 # 1uno29y Bupelado BuueaH olgnd "N JaJinbul SB[BZU0D 698. ¥202/60/10 308U
80'82L 00°8€2 08 # Junoody Bunessdo 10|/29 UO 89| Jo} uoyedlddy N Jaunbuj s3[eZU0D 6982 ¥202/60/10 Pelite)
8006 00 *08 # Juno2oy Bupesado avoo @94 801oN lignd eine ‘uipep 1982 ¥202/60/10 ¥o8uD
80°./8¥ 009 08 # Junoooy Bupesado BuuesH dland jo sojoN  “ddy Aunc) leMpIED £202/02/ZL petlle}
80°L8Y 00’9 08 # Junoody Bunesado BuuesH ollgnd Jo aonoN  “ddy Aunod [[empled £20Z/6LICL peCllie]
80'GL¥ 00°90€ "0 # Junoooy Bujessdo () s9onON BuuesH dllgnd "N JaJinbu| sa[ezU0D 818L SZ0T/VLILL %0349
80'69L Y0 LL 08 # Junoooy Bujessdo ez/bL/LL BuesH aand " sIBay-1s0d HEWO0T 5182 £ZOZIFLILL prelit]
¥0'26 ¥0'LL 08 # Juno2oy Buessdo ¢z/2/L) BuuesH olang " 'SIBaY-1SOd HEWO0T g18.L £Z0Z/FL/LL peclite]
00°GL 006 “*0g # Juno20y Bunessdo S0I1ON QV2D eine ‘uen [4%:7] €20Z/FL/LL petllls]
00'9 009 08 # Juncooy Bunesedo SOION QVJ2 BINET ‘UHEN G844 £2Z0Z/01/0L pEllg)
S9O1ON pays!iand
*dx3 12d0 200
ajuejeg ypaid Hngeq ydg 119 owa aweN wnn ajeq adfL

$z0zZ ‘6 3snBny ybnoay} £20Z ‘I 49903100 siseg [enIooy

JuUno29y Ag |lejog uonoesuel] ¥2/60/80
1oL]SIQ UORBAISSUOY Jajepn punoibiapun funon ssjezuon Y 80:01



| abed

88°65E'E 587089} €L 0v0°s IvYL0L
88°65E'E S8'089'L £L'0¥0'S ‘dx3 J2dQ Z00 [EYoL
88'65E'E Gg'089't €L 0v0's SOUBUSIUIEIN 31EMUOS [BJOL
88'6GE'E ¥9'L2 o0y Bupesado *1uosqng AJYIUOIY Z# 9SUS0S!| 300pY "0U| 300PY ¥20TIVT/L0 %9349
¥Z'8EE'E 912 00y Bupesado | *0U| 3GOPY $202/¥2i90 pacllte]
0ggle'e y9'12 o0y Bunessdo 110SGNS AJUIUOI Z# SSUSISI| BQOPY "ou| 3GOpPY ¥Z0Z/¥Z/S0 3o3Ud
96°162'S ¥5'Z0L o0y Bunessdo “gueyug £1Z00EY 01d/SH00qD HNU njuj ¥Z0Z/EL/S0 PeClie)
Tr'T6S'T zz'ol 00y Bunesado *1198gng AJYIUOIN Z# SSUSDS|| 3qOPY "0U| 3qopY ¥20Z/%2I¥0 %08y
02°9/5'C zZzol ooy Bugessdo “-uosgng AIYIUO[N Z# SSUS0SI| 300PY "0u| 390OPY $202/52/E0 33y
966552 6L°LCL 00y BunesedQ [EMBUSY JUNOODY [ENUUY xogdoig $202/70/€0 pieclite}
6L°2EY'T zZz'ol 00y Bunessdo ~1105qNS AJYIUOI Z# SSUSISI| 3qOPY "oU| 3GOPY ¥202/92/20 peEliie]
L6°5L¥'T 09'2.5 o0y Bunesedo “:oUBYUT £1200E9 01d/SH00qD HNjU| Ny ¥202/10/20 ysodeq
15'886°C 86°086'L 00y Bunessdo -oueyul €LZ00EY 0Jd/S300qD N unul $202/10/20 petilte]
65°200'L 09'2.8 00y Bugessdo “gueYUT £1Z00ES 01d/SH00qD K| Nl ¥202/LE/L0 pCllte}
686 VEY zzgl 00y BupessdQ ""u9sqng AJYIUOIN Zi# 9SUSDS!| 3qOPY "ou] 3qopy ¥202/52/10 piezllig)
LU8LY av'8s o0y Bunessdo “+oueyUT £LZ0O0ES 01d/SHOOTD MY Hmuy| ¥20Z/Z1/10 pretllte]
Le'09¢ zz9l g0y Bunesado “110SqNG AJUIUOIN Z# 9SUSSI| SqOPY "0u| 3GOPY £20Z/92/2} peclite)
60°¥E GZ'80L'L  1@ie Asuon weawhedi2AQ ANN&TY 14S3 £Z0zZ/SLIEL ysodaqg
yeZ5¥'L 9’8 00y Buiesado “ouBYUT ELZ00ES C1d/$000D Hmu| | STAVTATANAL %29yD
88'€6E't zzol 00y BupesadQ Z# 9SUB0S!| 3GOPY "0u| 2q0pY £20z/L2/LL preCllle}
99248} $L'89L 20y BupesadQ 25U828]| 3qOPY "0U| 300PY £2Z0E/GLILL 308y
z6'802'} 96°LS 20y Bunesedo “oUBYUT €1L200EQ 0Jd/SH00qD HMu| Hmuy £Z0Z/EL/LL PeClite]
96°95L'L L8y o0y Buiessdo “-ouByYUT €1Z00EY 01d/SHOOqD HNjU nnj £z0z/eL/0L petitie}
GZ'80L°L SZ'80L'L 00y BunesadQ gousuie|y dopisaq [enuuy SI901Y 1453 S6.L £202/04/0L petille}
JIJUBLUJUIE 2IBMIOS
dx3g 42dQ 200
ajuejeg upaid ngaa nds 110 SSE[D oW aweN wnN ajeq adf)

$20z ‘6 3snbny ybnoays £20Z ‘I 1290100
Juno29y Ag |1E19Q UOIESURI]L
1913SIg UOnEAIaSUOD Jajep punoibispun fjuno) ssjezuon

siseq [en1ooy
+2/60/80
INV 0L:01



| abed

957 9LE'Y 00°0 95'9LEY
95'9LE'Y 000 95'9le'y
9g'9LE'Y 000 95'9LE'Y
959lE'Y 0541 00y BunesadQ
90'6EL'Y 05'LLL 02y Bunelado
95'L96'E 05241 0oy BunesadQ
90'v8L'E 009t 90y BunesadQ
90'€T9'e 90'ez9'c 00y BuneladQ
aoueleg npa1n HLETl nds

410

Iv.ioL
"dx3 JadO 200 [el0L

aafojdw3-aoueinsy| [EJOL

sse|n

LESFIEH 2100AU] ‘001LZBELY "8 H ‘USMBIL aoueInsu| asogng 8664 ¥C0Z/LE/SO ple=lle)
8EGF9CH 2010AU| ‘0LB6S0.9 "D'8 'SSEID souelinsuy| esoqng 8664 ¥20Z/1E/S0 384D
¥.E79E# S0I0AU| ‘0G1LZRELS "8 JRIIIN aoueinsu| esoqng 866. ¥20¢/1€/50 o3y
*su] Ayjiqer pue eoueinsu| dwoQ SIaIoM anbea [ediolUN SEXS L LigL e€2oeivliiL ®oayd
“su| ANjIger] pue oueINsu| dWoD SISNIOM anbea [eddiuniy SexaL 9644 €20Z/0L/0L peclle)
aafojdw3-aoueinsu|

"dx3 12dO z00

owsay aweN wnn ajea adAL

$z0z ‘6 1snBny ybnoay} €20z ‘L 4240390
jUNno929y Ag |1e}eg uonoesuel |

1913S1J UoBEAISSUOY J3JBA\ punoibiepun Ajuno) ssjezuon

siseg [enJosy
+2/60/80
NV LL0k



| abed

00'68¢'E 0070 00'68¢'E IVLOL
00'68€'E 000 00°68¢'E ‘dx3 JedQ 200 [BI0L
00'68€'€ 000 00'68¢' Buipjing-soueinsu| [g}0]
00'68E'E 9’8oy 1921108 # unodoy Bunesado soueinsy| Buipjing @ouRINsu| asogng 9/6L  $Z0Z/L0/S0 3o8UD
¥1°026'C ¥1026'C 1921108 # uncooy BupessdQ soueinsu| buipjing soueInsu| asogng 9€6.  $TOZ/L0/¥0 plLeclle]
Buipjing-asueinsu|
*dx3 J2do z0o
aoueleg Hnpain 3ngaa nds t._m sse|D oW aweN wnN ajeq adf]

¥20Z ‘6 3snBny ybnouy £20Z ‘I 1290300
1UNo29y Ag [Ielag uonosesuel |

19LIISIg UOIJBAISSUOY J3JeAA punoibilapupn fAuno) ssjezuon

siseqd [enJady
¥2/60/80
WY L0



$136,913.97 (24-25 No-New Revenue Rate
$148,113.15 (24-25 Voter Approval Rate 1.058% increase)

$166,883.62 (23-24 Tax Rate)

Tax Year Tax Rate Taxable Value Taxable Value/100 Tax
0.000000 $4,949,013,207.00 $49,490,132.07 $0.00
Tax Rate 23-24 0.002935 $4,949,013,207.00 $49,490,132.07 $145,253.54
Gonzales County 0.003000  $4,949,013,207.00 $49,490,132.07 $148,470.40
0.003125  $4,949,013,207.00 $49,490,132.07 $154,656.66
0.003150  $4,949,013,207.00 $49,490,132.07 $155,893.92
0.003174  $4,949,013,207.00 $49,490,132.07 $157,081.68
0.003500  $4,949,013,207.00 $49,490,132.07 $173,215.46
0.003735  $4,949,013,207.00 $49,490,132.07 $184,845.64
0.003947  $4,949,013,207.00 $49,490,132.07 $195,337.55
0.003999  $4,949,013,207.00 $49,490,132.07 $197,911.04
0.004000  $4,949,013,207.00 $49,490,132.07 $197,960.53
0.004500  $4,949,013,207.00 $49,490,132.07 $222,705.59
0.004600  $4,949,013,207.00 $49,490,132.07 $227,654.61
; 0.004700  $4,949,013,207.00 $49,490,132.07 $232,603.62
Tax Year Tax Rate Taxable Value Taxable Value/100 Tax
0.000000 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $0.00
Tax Rate 23-24 0.002935 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $9,269.31
Caldwell County 0.003000 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $9,474.59
0.003125 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $9,869.37
0.003150 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $9,948.32
0.003174 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $10,024.12
0.003500 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $11,053.69
0.003735 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $11,795.87
0.003947 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $12,465.40
0.003999 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $12,629.63
0.004000 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $12,632.79
0.004500 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $14,211.89
0.004600 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $14,5627.71
0.004700 $315,819,692.00 $3,158,196.92 $14,843.53
Tax Year Tax Rate Taxable Value Taxable Value/100 Tax
0.000000 $5,257,832,899.00 $52,578,328.99 $0.00
Tax Rate 23-24 0.002604 $5,257,832,899.00 $52,578,328.99
Gonzales/Caldwell 0.002817 $5,257,832,899.00 $52,578,328.99
Combined 0.002900 $5,257,832,899.00 $52,578,328.99 $152,477.15
0.002925 $5,257,832,899.00 $52,578,328.99 $153,791.61
0.002950 $5,2657,832,899.00 $52,678,328.99 $155,106.07
0.002990 $5,257,832,899.00 $52,578,328.99 $157,209.20
0.003000 $5,257,832,899.00 $52,578,328.99 $157,734.99
0.003125  $5,257,832,899.00 $52,578,328.99 $164,307.28
0.003150  $5,257,832,899.00 $52,578,328.99 $165,621.74
0.003174  $5,257,832,899.00 $52,578,328.99
0.003500 $5,257,832,899.00 $52,578,328.99 $184,024.15
0.003735  $5,257,832,899.00 $52,578,328.99 $196,380.06
0.003947 $5,257,832,899.00 $52,578,328.99 $207,526.66

(24-25 No-New Revenue Rate
(24-25 Voter Approval Rate 1.058% increase)

(23-24 Tax Rate)



gz'1/8'¢0r $ 15666'82L°LS g\ALe]]

00/06c $ Z02SL'GL ¢ GL/I0ZGLSL S9F Co I 334 190dX3 VIOV
00'LYP'ZOL $ GLZ9Y'L8 $ 006/29rL8  00S¢ 334 1H0dX3 vHED
00'zse'6Ck § - $ 0 0 S 334 THOdXE VMYV
002b1°26 $ 9G'LLL'Z€C $ 0€9GLl/2.eT L'96CL Seess s 434 1H0dXS YMED!
87'8c2'L6  $ ZL'€G6'W9E $ 00ZLES6PIE 002l 334 140dX3 SMVS
0089L'c6 ¢ Lo9Li6Zr $ €9009l.6CF S /8LEL 334 1H0dX3a 99188

¥20Z-£2029°4
Modx3g

6202-¥Z0¢ suojjes }j-oe ajewil}s3y
804 podx3 podx3 ¥20Z




2024 Governing Body Summary #1A*
Benchmark 2024 Tax Rates
Gonzales Co. Underground Water Conservation District

Date: 08/06/2024 02:03 PM

DESCRPTIONOFTAXRATE | | TAXRATEPER$100 | TWISYEARSTAXIEVY'S |  ADDITIONALTAXLEVY
Using the 2024 Adjusted Taxable Value o R i . I . *This column is figured
of: $5,253,032,535 - RN Multiplied by this Rate will Gen?':te this TaX | ith the NNR Levy as the
) ) vy base
No-New-Revenue Tax Rate $0.002604 $137,051
One Percent $100 Tax Increase*** $0.002630 $138,419 $1,368
One Cent per $100 Tax Increase*** $0.012604 $663,359 $526,308
De Minimis Rate $0.000000 $0 %0
R NOT adjusted for Unused

VA T adjusted for Unus $0.002817 $148,261 $11,210
Increment Rate
VAR adju for Unu Increme

djusted Unused ement $0.002817 $148,261 $11,210
Rate
Last Year's Tax Rate $0.003174 $167,050 $29,999

**Calculated as a Special Taxing Unit**

*These figures are provided as estimates of possibie outcomes resulting from varying the tax rate. Please be aware that these are anly estimates and should
not be used alone in making budgetary decisions.

#£Tay |ovies are calculated using line 21 of the No-New-Revenue Tax Rate Waorksheet and this year's frozen tax levy on homesteads of the etderly or disabled.
**4Tay increase compared to no-new-revenue tax rate.

Terms:!
No-New-Revenue Tax Rate (NNR) — (last year’s levy minus lost property levy) divided by (current total value minus new property value].

Voter-Approval Tax Rate ~ equad to the No-New-Revenue maintenance and operations tax rate times 1.035% PLUS current debt PLUS any unused
increment rate.** For special districts, the voter-approval tax rate provides 1.08%, PLUS current debt, but does not add the unused increment
rate,

2023 Adjusted Value as of 06/30/2024 $4,267,205,290

2024 Certified Taxable Value $5,257,832,899 (Gonzales = $4,942,013,207 / Caldwell = $315,819,692)
2024 Protested Value $ 5,249,633 (Gonzales = $0.00 / Caldwell = $5,249,633)

2024 Net Taxable Value $5,263,082,532

2024 New Improvement Value $68,692,610

2024 No New Revenue Tax Rate 0.002604

2024 Voter Approval Tax Rate 0.002817

*The above rates were calculated under the provision of Texas Property Tax Code Section 26.04(c}(2)A “Special Taxing Units.”
Please see Voter-Approval Tax Rate Term Listed above.



2024 Tax Rate Calculation Worksheet
Taxing Units Other Than School Districts or Water Districts

Gonzates Co. Underground Water Consecvation District

T.n.t.ihg Unit Name Phone forea code onid numbe.r.J.
427 81 George Ste 100, Gonzales, Taxas 78629 www.co.gonzales.x.us

Taxing Ynit’s Addiess, City, State, ZIF Code Taxing Lnit's Wﬂhsiln.l\;if..'iless

GENERAL INFORMATION: Tax Code Section 26.04(c) rexuires an officer or employe designated by the governing body to calculate the no-hew-revenue {NNR) fax rate and
voler-appraval Lax tate for the taxing enit, Fhese tax rates are expressed in dotlars pes 5100 of taxabliz value catculated. The calcutation process stants after the chief appsaiser
delivers to the taxing unit the certified appraisat roll and the estimated values of properlies under protest. The designated officer o emnployee shall certify that the officer or
employee has accurately calculated the tax rates and used values shown for the coetified appraisal cofl o certified estimate. The officer or employee submits the rates to the
governing body by Aug. 7 or as saan thereafter as practicable,

School districts do not use this form, but instead use Compualier foum S0-859 Tax Aare Caleulation Worksheel, School District without Chapter 313 Agreements or Comptroller Form
50-884 Tax Rate Celculation Workshect, School Disteict with Chapter 313 Agreements.

Water districts 3s defined under Water Code Section 49,001(1) do net use this form, bet imstead use Comptrollet Form 50-858 Water District Voter-Approval Tax Rate Worksheet for
Low Tax Rate ond Developing Districts o1 Compteolier fForm 30-860 Beveloped Wates Divieict Votee-Approvel Tax Rate Worksheel,

The Comptratler's effice provides this worksheet to assist taxing wnits in detemining tax rates. The infosmation frovided in this workshaet is offered as technical assistance and not
legal advice. Taxing units should consult legai counsel for inteepeetations of law mgarding tax eate preparation and adapticn.

The NNR tax rate enailes the public te evaluate the relationship between taxes for the prior year and for the current year based on a tax sale that would produce the same amount
of taxes ino aew taxes) il appliad to The same properties that are taxed in Bt years. Whan appraisal values increase, the NNR tax rate should decrease,

The NN tax rate for 2 county is the st of the NMA tax eates calewlated for each type of 1ax the county lovies

while uncomman, it Is possitie for a taxing unit to provide an exemption for only maintenance and spetatiens taxes. le this case, the taxing wnit will need o calculate the MNA tax
rate separately for tie malntenance and operations 1ax ard the debt tax, then add e tvo components together.

1, Prior year total taxable vatue. Enter the amount of the price yeat laxzble vabue an the prior year Lax ol today. include any adjustments since last
year's certification: exclude Tax Code Section 25.25(d) one-fourth and one-thitd over-appratsal consections from these adjustatents, Exclude any
property value subject 4z an appeal under Chapter 42 as of July 25 {will add undisputed vatua in Line 8), This lotat includes the taxable value of
homesteads with 1ax ceilings (wili deduct in Line 2} and the caplured value for tax increment financing {adjustment is made by deducting TiF laxes,
as reflected in Line 7). 4 4,267,205,280

2.  Prior year tax ¢eilings. Counties, cities and juning coltege districts. Enter the prior yeas total taxable value of homesteads with tax celiings.
These Include tire homesteads of homeowners age 65 or older o disibled. Other taxing units enter 0. 1f your taxing vnit adopted the tax ceiling

provision last year or a prior year for homeowners age &5 or aider or disabled, use this step? 50
3, Prelimimary prior year adjusted taxable value. Sublract Line 2 from Line 1, § 4,267,205,290
4. Prloryoar total adopted tax rate, § 0003174 ss100

5. Prior year taxable value lost because court appeals of ARB declslons reduced the prier year's appraised value.

A, Original prioryear ARB valuess. .....oooinnn. e e e . 5 0
B. Prior year valuas resulting from final court decistonst. ... s e e L. s ®
€. Prior year value foss, Subtmct 8 from A 50

6. Prior year taxable value subject to an appeal under Chapter 42, as of July 25.

A. Peior year AR certiffied value: ... s e Cereien e ¢ 1:395860

B. Prioryear disputed VAIIES .00 e .5 1-‘63-079 )

€. Prioryear undisputed value, Subtract B from ALY ¢ 732,590
7. Prior year Chapter A2 related adjusted values. Add Line 5C and Line 6C 5 232,590

*Ten. Taa Cade 52601201401
< Tar, Tax Code 5256 03214
t ez, Tax Code 526 1IN
¢ Ty, Tax Cocte $76.01100Y

Forr deyelnped s orngrtisiter S sl Arronitty rapery Lo Adan e e Loeronils

comptrollerieras govitakesiproparty-tax
S0-B5G e 82401



2024 Tax Nate Calculation Worksheet ~ Taxing Unlts Othar Than School Distylcts or Water Districts Form 50-856

8. Prior year tanable value, adjusted for actual and potential court-ordered adjustments, Add Uine 3 and Une 7. 5 4,267,437 680

9, Prior year taxable value of property in territory the taxing ustit deannexed after Jan, 1, 2023, Enter the privg year value of propetty in
dearnexed territory. o ¥

18, Prlor year taxable value lost becanse property fiest qualified for 2n exemption in the current year. i the taxing unit increased an original
exemption, use the difference between the original exempted ameunt and the increased exempted ameunt. Do not in¢iude value lost due 1o
freeport, goods-in-transiy, terporary disaster exermptions. Note that toweting the amount of percentage of an existing exemplion in the current
year does not create & new exemplion or reduce taxable value.

A. Absolute exemptions. Use prlo year market vallies ... ¢ 3378
B. Partial excmptions, Current year exemptiohs amount or current year pescantage exemption
times prior yeaz value: ....... e e e e vevere a5 L1ABBAU
€. Valueeloss, Add Aand8.” o 1482672

1. Prior year taxable value lost beeause property {irst qualified for agricultural appraisal (1-d or 1-d-1), timber appralsal, recreational/
scenlc appraisal or public access alrport special appraisal In the current year. Use only properties that qualified for the first time in the cue-
rent year; do not use properties that qualiied in the prios year,

A. Prioryear marketvalues ... TR e e e e e 5 1.074,150
B, Currentyear productivity or special appralsed value:........... e e e v g 880N
£. Valuelpss, Subuiact B from A7 ¢ 1006109

$2. Total adjustments for lost value. Add Lines 9, 10C and 1€ 4 B,A98,681

13, Prior year captured value of property in a TIF. Enter the total value of the pror year captured appraised value of propetly taxable by a tax-
ing unit in a tax increment financing zone for which the pries year taxes were deposited Into the taxincrement fund. *If 1lse taxing unit bas po

captused apptaised vajue in line 180, enter 0. 4 0
14.  Priot year total value. Sublract Line 12 2nd Uine 13 from Line 8. o 4258440, 198
15, Adjusted prier year tatal levy, Muliiply Line 4 by Line 14 and divide by $100. ¢ 135179

16. Taxes refunded for years preceding the prior lax year. Enter the amount of taxes refunded by the taxing unit for tax years preceding the
prics tax year. Types of refunds include count decisions, Tax Code Section 25.75(b} and (<) correttions and fxx Code Section 31,13 payment
errors. Do not include refunds for ihe prior tax year, This line applies only Lo 1ax years preceding the pror tax yesr, ! , 125

17.  Adjusted prior year levy with refunds and TIF adjustment. Add Lines 15and 16, ¢ 135,309

18, Total current year taxable value on the current year certified appraisal roll today, This value includes only certified values or cortified estis
mate of values and includes the to1al taxable value of homesteads with 1% cetlings {will deduct in Line 204, These hormesteads inciude homa-
owzness age 65 or older or disabled. ™

A, Certified valuess, ............. T PRSP SPUROPR TR 5 5.267.83280
B. Counties: Include railioad refling stock valuas certified by the Comptrollersaffice: ..o 1 5

€. Pollution control and energy storage system exemption: Deduct the value of pioperty exempted

for the current tax year for the first time as pollution control of energy storage system propenty. L 5 8
D. Taxincrement financing: Deduct the curtent year captured appraised vilue of property taxable by 3 taxing
unil in a tax ingement financing zane for which the cutremt year taxes will be deposited into the taxincrement
fund. Do net include any new property value that will be included ia Line 23 below. L PP 5
E.  Total current year value. Add A and B, then subdtract CandD, 5 5.257.832.609

' Tex Tax Cace #28 120451
*fer Tax Code §26012{15)
“Tax. Tas Code 325012015}
1Tax Tax Cadt 72603
*Ta Tan Coda §260120 0

2 Tet. Tad Code BRI D1 NIH

" Tey, Fad Code 16 12, 28841}
+ Tpy Tar Cods hl601ig

Fop wdeinanal conien vttt campteofleeteesn gowtasediprpiaty B Dragir



2024 Tax Rate Cafculation Worksheet - Taxing Unlts Other Than School Districts or Water Districts Form 50-856

19, Total value of properties under protest or not included on certified appraisal refl.

A, Currentyear taxable vafue of properties under protest. The chief appraiser cenifies a list of properties still
under ARE protest, The ist shows the appraisat district’s value and the taxpayer’s claimed value, If any,
ar an estimate of the value if the taxpayet wins. For each of the preperties under protest, use the lowest
of these vaiues. Enter the 1ofal vadue under protes, L PPN 5 5,248,633

B,  Currantyoar value of properiies not under protest or included on certified appraisal rol. The chief
appraiser gives Laxing units o fist of those taxable properties inat the chief appralser knows about but
ace not included in the appraisal ioil certificalion, These properties also are not or the list of properties
that are stitl under pratest, On this list of propedies, the chief appraiser includes the market value,
apptalsed valun and exemptions for the preceding year a3 reasonable estimate of the market vatue,
appeaised vatue and exemptions for the current year, Use the lower matket, appraised or taxable value
(as appropriate), Enter the total value of property not on the certified ol " ... I, v 0

€. Totalvalue under protest or not certified. Add A and B. g 5,249,633

20, Current year tax ceifings, Counties, zities and juniar colleges enter cusrent year total laxable value of homesteads with tax ceilings, These
inciude the hemisteads of homeowners age 65 or older or disabled. Gther taxing units enter 0. #f your taxing unit adopted the tax ceiling prowi-
sion in the prier yeac or a previous year for homeowness age 63 of older or disabled, use tisis step.'” 58

31, Current year total taxable value, Add Lines $8E and 1%, Subtract Line 20. v 5 5,262,082.532

72, Total current year taxable value of properties in territory annexed after Jan, 1, of the prior year. include both real and personal property.
Enter the cursent year vaue of prapesty in teritary annexed. 5 0

23, Total current year taxable value of new improvements and new personal property located in new improvements. New means the
ftern was nof on the appraisal tali in the pror year. An improvement is a building. steucture, fixture or fenca erected on or affixed to Jand. New
additions ta existing improvements may be included if the appraised value can be determined. New parsonal property in a new improvement
mest have been brought into e taxing unit after Jan, 1, of Whi prior year and be located in & new improverment. New improvements do inciud

property on which o tax dbaterem agreeaent hiss cxpired for the current year, ™ , 50,602,610
24, Total adjustments to the current year taxable value, Aditt Lines 22 and 23, ¢ 60,682,610
25, | Adjusted current year taxable vatue, Subdtract Line 24 from Line 21, o 5.194,380,22
26, Current year NNR tax rate, Divide Lise 17 by Line 25 and muitiply by $100. 2 4 0.002604 5100
27.  COUNTIES ONLY. Add together the NNR tax sates for each type of tax the county tevies, The totatis the corrent year counly NNR taxrate. 5 100

The voter-approval tax rate is thr bighest tax sate that a taxing unil may adopt without holding an efection to seak voter approval of the rate. The voter-approval ax rate s spli¢
intg tyo separate rates:

1. Maintenance and Operations (M&0) Tax Rate: The MEQ postlan is the tax rate that is needed to raise the same amount of taxes that the (axing umil fevied in the prior year
plus the apglicable percentage allowed by liw. This rate accounts far such things as salasies, wtilities and day-lo-day operations.

7. Deht Rate: The debt rate includes the debt service necessary 1o pay the taxing unit's debt payments in the coming year, This rate accounts for principal and interest on bonds
and ather debt secured by property 1ax revenue,

The valer-agproval tax rate for a county is the sumof the yotee-approval Lax rates calculated for each type of tax the county levies. In most cases the voter-approval tax rte
excends the no-new-tevenue lax rte, but occasionally deceases in 4 Laxkig unit's debt service will cause the NNR tax rate to be higher than the votes-approwal tax rate,

F6100

26,  Prior year M&D tax rate, Enter the prior year MEO tax sate. § 0.003174

29, Prior year taxahle value, adjusted for actual and potantlal court-ordered adjustments. Enter the amount in Lina & of the No-New-Raveoue
Tox Rate Worksheet. ¢ 4,267,437.880

o Tow, Tax Code Y26 11 ind id)
i Teg, Tax Code §26 011

* Jex. Tad Code $26 10

i fex. Tax Tode 52601206/

** fox. Tac Cotte 26016

* Juk. an Cnde 438812017

' Tek. Jax Code 216013117)
 Fex, Tag Code 136 04¢]

i Yoy, Tax Code 526.044d}

Fo aehiiional copben vial compltroliertexas.govitxes/property-tax [IRTHE



2024 Tax Rate Calculation Worksheet - Taxing Units Other Than School Districts or Water Distrlcts Form 50-B56

oter-ApprovatTox Rate Worksheet.

30, Total prior year M&O levy. Multiply Line 28 by Line 29 and divide by $100. o 136,448

31, Adjusted prior year fevy for calculating NNR M&O rate.

A NRO taxes refunded for years preceding the prior tax year, Enter the amount of M&Q taxes
refunded in the preceding year for 1axes before that year. Types of refunds include cournt decisions,
Tax Code Sectinn 26.25(b) and (¢} corrections and Tax Code Section 31,11 payment errots, Do not
include refunds for tax year 2023, This line applies anly te lax years preceding the prigr tak yean......... p4 125

B.  Prior year taxes in TIF, Enter the amount of taxes paid into the 1ax increment fund for a reinvestiment
zone as agreed by 1he taxing unid, If the taking unit has no cuent yeat captured appralsed value in
Line 180, enterD.............. e PR ST et U 5 0

€. Prior year transferred funetion. If discontinuing all of & departnent, function ar activity and
transfesring it to another Laxing unil by written conteacl, enter e amount gpent by the taxing
unil discontinuing the lunction in the 12 months preceding the month of this calculation. ifthe
taxing unit did not operate this function for this 12-month period, use the amount spent in the fast
fuil fiscal year in which the taxing unit opersted the function. The Laxing unit Siscontinuing the unction
wilt subtract this amaunt in D betow. The taxing unit 1oceiving the function will add this ameunt in
D below. Other Tadng UaIts 8RBT DL . oo e e g @

B.  Prior year M&O levy adjustments, Subtract 8 from A For tazing umit with €, substract il

discontinuing function and add if recenving function.... ..., [ DT . 5 128
E.  Addiine 30t 31D, , 135,573
32,  Adjusted current year taxable value, Enter the amount in bine 25 of the Yo-New-Revenoe Tax Rate Worksheet. ; 5,104,289,922
33, Currentyear NNR MBO rate (unadjusted], Divide tine 31E by Line 32 aned smuttiply by 5100, 3 D.002609 L4100
34, Rate adjustment for state criminal justice mandate. ©
A, Current year state criminal justice mandate, Enter the amount spent by o county in the previeus 12 months
providing for the maintenance and operation cost of keeping inmates in county-paid facititivs alter they
have been sentenced, Do aot Include any state teimbursement received By the county for the same purpose, % b
B.  Prior year state criminal Justice mandate. Enter the amaount spent by a county in the 12 menths pries to
the previous 12 months providing for the mainienance and aperition cost of Keeping inmates i
county-paid facitities after they have been sentenced. Do net inclutle any stale reimbursament recoived )
by the caunty far the same pitpose. Enter zero if this is the first time the mandate apphies, ..o 5 0
C.  Subtract B from A and divide by Line 32 and multiply by 5100 ... 4 G.000000 5108
D, Enter the rate calculated in C.1f not applicable, enter &, 4 0.E0T000 15100
35, Rate adjustment for indlgent health care expenditures.
A.  Current year indigent health care expenditures. Enter the amount praieh by a taxing unit providiag for the
matntenance and operation cosi of prowiding indigent health care for the period hrginsing en
Ity 1, of the prior tax year and eading on June 39, of thir current tax year, bess any slate assistance recalved
for tHe SaMe PUIPOSE.. (v errreern.nns TR, f e OSSN 5 8
B.  Prioryear indigent health eare expenditures, Enter the amount paid by a taxing unit providing for
the maintenance and operation cost of providing indigent health caze for the period beginning
on July 1, 2022 and ending un June 30, 2023, less any state assistance received
for the same puipose....... s e T R 4 0
€, Subtract B from A and divide by Line 32 and modtiply by $100., ..o e 5 0.000000 75100
D, Entet the rate calcubated in G, If not applicable, entes €. ; 0.00C000 16160

“ [Reservad for expansion;
# Tex. Tax Code 536044
“ i, Laz Code 526.0441

Popradibrienal sopees vidl comptiiluntesmgowitivasipropes ty-1i Ptaycge o



2024 Tax Rate Catcutation Worksheet — Taxing Units Other Than School Districts or Water Districts Form 56-856

36. Rate adjustment for county indigent defense compensation.

A, Current year indigent defense compensation expenditures, Enter the amount paid by a county o provide
appeinted counsel for indigent Individuals and fund the operaticns of a public defender’s office under
Article 26,044, Code of Crminat Procedure for the period beginning o July 1, of the pricr 1ax year and ending on
June 30,0f the current tax year, less any stale grapts received by the county for the same purpose, ... 6 0

B.  Prior year indigent defense compensation expenditures. Enter the amount pivied By o county to provide
appointed counsel forindigent Individuals and fund the operations of a public defender’s office smder
Article 76.044, Code of Criminal Proceduse for the period beginning on July 1, 2022 and ending on

June 30, 2023, less any state grants received by the county for the same purpose. i 50
€. Subtract B from A and divide by Line 32 andt multiply by 100 o ; 000000 #5100
D.  Multiply B by 0.05 and divide by Line 32 and mulliply by $100. oo 5 0.006400 5400
E.  Epterthe lesser of Cand D, I not applicable, entee O, 5 0.800000 /5100
37, ' Rate adjustment for county hospital expenditures. *
A.  Currantyear cligible county hospital expenditures, Ente: the amount patd by the county or municlpslity
to maintain and operate an eligible county hospilal for the period beginning on July 1, of the pricr tax year and
ending on June 30, 0f thE CUITERL LXK YOI, ... ..ot ittt e e st e s s B
B.  Prior year cligibte county hospital expenditures. Enter the amount paid by the county or municipality
10 maintain and operate an eligible county haspital for the period beginning on July 1, 2022 and
endingon June 30,2023, Lo e 50
€. Subtract B from A and divide by Line 32 and multiply by S100. .. 3 Q.O00000 %140
D, Multiply 8 by 0.08 and divide by Line 32 and multiply by $100. ..o 5 (000000 75100
E.  Enter the lesser of C and D, if applicable. if nat applicable, enter 0. 4 0.000000 r5100
18, Rate adjustment for defunding municipality. This adjustment ooly apgplies Lo & municipalily that is considerad (o be a defunding municipal:
ity for the cureent tax year under Chapler 109, Local Gavernment Code. Chapter 102, Local Government Code only applies to municipatities with
a poputation of more than 250,000 and includes 2 writlen determination by the Office of the Governor, See Tax Code Section 26.0444 for mare
infarmation,
A.  Amount appropriated for public safety in the prior year. Enter the amount of money appropniated for
public safety in the budget adopted by the municpality for the preceding fiscalyear. o 5 0
8.  Expenditures for public safety in the prios year, Entet the amount of money spent by the municipality
for public safety during the preceding fiscal year ... e e s 0
€. Subtract B from A and divide by tine 32 and multiply by ST00 e § LUGOI0D S0
0, Enter the rate caleutated in CHf not applicable, enter 0. 5 0000000 4100
39, Adjusted current year NNR MEO rate, Add Uines 33, 340, 35D, 36E, and 37E. Subtract Line 32D, o (L0008 IO
40.  Adjustment for prior year sales tax specifically to reduce property taxes, Cities, counties and hospital districts that collected and spent
additional sales 1ax on M&O expenses in Lhe prior year should complete this line, These antitias will deduct the sates tax gain tate for Ut current
year in Section 3. Other laxing unily, enler zeio.
A.  Enter the amount of additional sales tax collected and speat on MEO expenses in the prior year, if any.
Counties must exclude any amount 1hat was sgent for econamic develupment grants fram the amount
BF 8218 LK SPBMT ..o oot et maeee st e e U 5 @
B, Divide Line 404 by Line 32 and multiply by $100. ... B, e g DBRBGGD /5100
€. Add line 408 to Line 39. 5 L.00260Y 15150
41. Currentyear voter-approval RO rate, Enter the rate as calculated by the: approgriate scenatio below.
Special Taxing Unit, If the taxing unit qualifies as a special taxing urit, multiply Line A0C ty 1,08,
Sor-
Other Taxing Unit. if the taxing unit dees not quatify as & special taring unit, muttiply tine A0C by 1035, 5 0002817 4100

= Tax. Taw Codde J26 047
* Tey. TaxCoda 4760443

Lot cemiptrsilenteas gouity essproprty ta Lage




7024 Tax Rate Calculation Worksheet - Taxing Units Other Than School Districts or Water Districts Form 50-856

D41,  Disaster Line 47 (D41): Curcent year voter-approval M&O rate for taxing unit affected by disaster declaration, if the taxing unitis
located in an area declared a disaster area and at least one persen Is granted an exermption under Tax Code Section 11,35 for property located
in the taxing unit, the governing body may direct the persen caleulating the voter-approval tax rate to cakulate in the manner provided fora
special taxing unit. The taxing unit shalt continue o calculate the veter-approval tax rate in this manner until the earliee of:

1} the first year in which total taxable value on the certified appraisal rall éxceeds the total taxable value of
the tax year in which the disaster occurrad; of
7) the third tax yeat after the tax year in which the disaster occurred.

If the taxing unit qualifies under this scenario, multiply Line 40C by 1,08, 7 §f the taxing unit does not gualify, do not complete

Disaster Lin 41 (Line DA1). § 0000000 sss00
42, Tolal current year debt to be paid with property taxes and additional sales tax reventie, [Jebt means the tnterest and principal that will
* be paid on debts that:
{1} are puid by property taxes;
{2} are secured by property Laxes;
(3) are scheduled for payment over a periad longer than one year; and
{4} are not classiffed in the taxing unit's budget as M&Q expenses.
A. Debt also inclutles conlractual payments to other taxing units that have incured debts on behalf of this taxing unit, if those debts
meel the four conditions above. Indude only amounts gat wilk be paid from property tax revenue, Da not include appraisal district
budget payments, if the governing hody of a taxing unit authorized or agreed 1o autharize 2 bond, wareant, cectificate of obligation, or
other evidence of indebtednass on or after Sept. 1, 2023, verily if it meets the amended definition of debt befora including it here, #
ELET OB BITHOUMY 1o 1 s -+ ee s vaesssserensmeme b ta i rr e tam e s b ra e ar s na s st r b e e e s 0
B. Subtract unencumbered fund amountused to reduce total debt. ... -5 0
C, Subtracl certified amount spent from sales tax to reduce debt (enter zere if nonie) ..o -g 0
D. Subtract amount pald from GUBEr [ESOUICES . ou.uuseere et crsarrresr s e s s bbne s -5 0
E. Adjusted debt. Subtract B, C and D from A, 4 0
43. . Certified prior year excess debt collections. Enter the amount certified by the colfector, # 50
44, Adjusted current year debt. Subtract Line 43 from Line 4JE. 5 0
45, Current year anticipated collection rate,
A Exter the current year anticipated collaction rate certified by the collecton ¥ o.co %
B,  Enterthe prior year ACI0al COUBLUOR LB, .. L..uuuuisy e cienne oot i 0.9 ) %
€. Enles the 2022 2ctunl COBBEHON (A8, . ovyeeeteerrrsscinareesneaieesmeen s arrrras e s s st 0.00 %
D, Enterthe 20271 2ctual ColECON [LE. . vvvver e vetsiuiuisrere s n e s b a st iy 008 2%
£.  ifthe anticipated collection rate in A s lower than actual collection rates in B, Cand B, enter the lowest
collection rate from 8, € and D. If the anticipated rate in A s higher than at least one of the rates in the
prior three years, enter the rate from A. Note that the rate can be greates than 100%, ! 0.00 @
46, Currenl year debt adjusted for collections. Divide Line 44 by Liné 45E ¢ 0
47, Current year total taxable value, Enter the amount gnLine 21 of the No-New-Revenue Tax Rate Worksheet. 4 5,263,082,532
. 48, Current year debt rate. Divide Line 46 by Line 47 and multiply by $100. ¢ 0.000000 5100
49. Current year voter-approval M&QO rate plus current year debt rate, Add Lines 41 and 48. 4 0.002617 /5100
D49, Disaster Line 49 {D49): Current year voter-approval tax rate for taxing unlt affected by disaster declaration, Complete this line if the
taxing unit calcutated the voter-approval tax rate in the manner provided for a special Laxing unit on Line D41,
Add Line D41 and 48, 5 0.,000000 /5100

“ Tax, Tax Code 926.042{0)

* Tex, Tax Code 926012(7)

@ jx, Tax Code §2601 2130} snd 16.04b
“ Jax. Tax Cotle 526.040)

* Tox, Tax Codn 5620041, 1h-1) 2nd -2}

Foe achditional cOpin, st comptrolientas.govitages/propaiy-tax Faged



2024 Tax Rate Calculation Worksheat - Taxing Unlts Other Than School Districts or Water Districts Form 50-856

Approval TaxRate Worksheat

nihate

50. ° COUNTIES ONLY. Add together the voter-approval tax fates fof pach type of tax the county levies, The total is the current year county voter-appov-

: al tax rate. 5 0.000000 4100

Citles, counties and hospital districts may levy 2 sales tax specificalty to reduce property taxes. Local voters by election must 2pprove imposing or abelishing the additional sales
tax. If approved, the taxing unit must reduce its NNR and volerapprovel Lax @ies to offset ihe expected sales lax revenue,

This section should only bie completed by a county, city or baspita district that is requireds to adjésst its NNR tax rate andfor vater-approval tax rate because it adopted the

additional sates tax,

 Bidditional Satbs ind Use Tak Workshee

51. Taxable Sales. For taxing units that adopted the safes tax In Hovembor of the prion tax year or May of the cusrent tax year, enter she
Comptrollar’s estimate of taxable sales for the previous four quarters. Estimates of taxable sales may be obtained thiough the Complrollers
Allecation Historical Summary webpage.

Taxing units that adoptad the sales 1ax before November of the prics yeas, einecd.

4 0
52, Estimated sales tax revenue. Counties exclude any amount that is or will be spent for sconomic develspment grants frans the amourt of uste-
mated sales tax teveoug.
Taxing units that adepied the sales tax in November of the prior tax year or in May of the current tax year, Multiply the amount on
Line 51 by the sales tax rate (.01, .005 or 0025, a5 applicabte) and multiply the 1esult by 95"
~of-
Taxing units that adopted the sales tax before November of the prior year, Enter the sates Lax revenue for the previous fout quanters.
Do not multiply by 95, g 0
53, Currentyear total taxable value. £nter the amount from Line 21 af the No-New-Revenie Tax Rate Worksheel, 5 5.263.082,532
54, Sales tax adjustment rate. Divide Line 32 by Line 53 and multiply by $1C0. o 0000000 4100
55, Currentyear NNR tax rate, unadjusted for sales tax. ™ Enter the rate from Line 26 of 27, a5 agplicable, on the No-New fevenus Tux Rale
Worksheer. o 9.002604 5100

§6. Currant year NAR tax rate, adjusted for sales tax,

Taxing units that adopted the sales tax in November the prior tax year or in May af the current ax year. Subitract Line 34 from Line

55, Skip to Line 57 H you adopted tha additional sales tax bietoe November af the prior taxaar, 5 0.002504 Hi00

57. Currentyear voter-approval tax rate, unadjusted for safes tax.” Enter the rate fram Ling 49, Line 49 (disaster) or Lise 5S¢ {counties) a3

applicabile, of the Voter-Approval Tax Rate Worksheet, 5 0002817 /5100

58, Current year voter-approval tax rate, adjusted for sates tax. Subteact Line 54 from Line 57.

5 $.002817 5100

A taxing unit may raise its rate for MRQ funds used 1o pay for a facllity, device o mnthiod for the contec! of air, witer o land peliuticn, This includes any land, structuse, building,
installation, excavation, machinery, equipment ar device that is used, constructad, acquired of installad vrholiy o partly 1o nwet or exceed poliulion costrol requirements. The
Laxing unit’s expenses are those necessary to meel the requirements ol a permit issued by the Texas Comenissien on Envirahmental Quality {TCEQ), The laxing ugil must provide
the Lax assessol with a copy of the TCEQ fetter of datermination that states the potlion of the cost of the installation for pollution contrel.

This section should only be completed by a taxing unit thal uses M&C funds to pay for a fadility, device oc methiod for the contral of air, water or land poliution.

Line Voter-Approval Rate Adjustment fo

59, : Certified expenses from the Texas Commission on Environmental Guality (TCEQ). Enter the amount certilied in the determination letler
feor TCEQ. ¥ The Vaxing unit shall provide its tax assessoz-collector with a copy of tha letter, * ¢ 0

60, © Current year toltal taxable value. Enter the amount from Line 21 of s No-New-Revenue Tax Rate Worksheet, 5 5,263,082,532

61.  Additional rate for pollution contral, Divide Line 59 by Line 60 and muitiply by $100, 4 0.000000 /5100

M fow Vo Code 526 G430}
" Tey. fox Code 260410}
" rex. laxCoda 626 0410
 fer Tax Code 426,000
= Tou, Tax Cade £26.04{)
Y Lex, Yax Code 526 4454d]
 Tex, Tox Code 426.0454)

Foyr aeiditioenal crehes it camptrailion e gov s e s prapizely-ton g ¥
i ¥ 3]



2024 Tax Rate Calculation Warksheet — Taxing Units Other Than Scheol Districts or Water Districts Form 50-856

e st fo Poluton Conr

62. Current year voter-approval tax rate, adjusted for pollution control. Add Line 61 to one of the following lines (3s applicablie): Line 43, Line
D49 {disaster), Line 30 lcounties} or Line 58 {taxing units with the additional sales tax), 5 0.002837

0

The unused increment rate is the rate equal to the sum of tee prior 3 years Foregone Revenue Amounts divided by the cusrent taxable valu he Fategone Revenue Amount for each
yaar is equal to that year's adopted tax rate subtracted from that yodt's votes-approval Wax rate adjusted 10 remove the umnsed inrement rate sultipdicd by thal year's current total
value, ®

The difference belween the adopted tax e and sdjusted voter-apgroval tax rate Is considered zero in the following scenarios:
« atax year in which a taxing unit offected by a disaster declaration cifeutates the tax rate under Tax Code Section 26.042; ©

ataxyeay In which the municipality s a defunding municipality, as defined by Tax Cade Section 25.0501(a% * of

. after fan, 1, 2022, a tax year in which the comptrolles determines that the county implemerted 3 budget reduction ar reallocation described by Locat Government Code
Sectian 120.002{a) without the required voter approval, "

This section should only be completed by 2 taxing unit that does not meet the definitiop of a special 1axing vnit, *

63, Year 5 Foreganc Revenue Amount. Subtract the 2023 unused increment rate and 2023 actval tax rate fram the 2023 voter-approval
tax rate, Multipty the result by the 2023 current totat value

A vVotes-apgioval Lk rate {Ling 67} . 5 0003174 50D
8. Ynused increment rate {Line 58) . 5 0.006000 500
CoSubtract Bfram Ao I 5 0003174 25100
D Adepted Tax Rate. oo 74100
Esubtact Dftom Coonun o, . #5100
FoH2Y oral Takable Value (e 80) ..o i P AP N N § 4,574,316,720
G, Multiply E by F and divide the results by $300. 4 the numbiet 15 less than 2000, 8ARIIEO.L oer i e o 50

64, Year 2 Foregone Revenue Amount. Subtract the 2022 unused increment rate and 2622 actual tax rate from the 2022 voter-approval

tax rate, Multiply the result by the 2022 current totat value

A Voler-approvat tax rate tline 675, ... oo . ‘ 5 0.004042  s5100
i, Unused increment rate {Line 56} .. X § 0.000000 #1ed
C, Subtracy B from A, I § 004042 15100
0. Adopted Tax fate. ... . . § D.003738 3108
B SUBIEITT DIROM C o et e ee e e et e e rr e e et e e ea et e e ‘ § 4.000307 /5100
Fo2002 Tatal Taxable Yalue fline 80) ..o oo oo e B N 5 3.725,592,786
G, Multiply E by  and divide the rsults by § 160, 1 the siumber 15 l2ss than 1250, RIF 2210 oeern ¢ VLATY

85, Year 1 Foregone Revenue Amount. Subtract the 2021 vnused Increment rate and 2021 actual tax rate from the 2021 voler-approval
tax rate, Multiply the result by the 2021 curreat total value
- Noter-approval tax rate lLine 673 ..., TP UP PP UPP PP PP T , § 0.005329 3100
B. Unused increment rate {Line é6).......... § 4.002000 5100

CoSablel BIom A, ..o § ¢.005529 /3160
D, AP TAX AMEL e e eereee bbbt 4 0.005354 810
o SUBIAEY D ETOMY €, sttt ens s e s b e et ettt r e e a e e . $ 0,000175  si00
F. 2021 Total Taxable Vaiue (Line GO} 4 2,735,246,721
G. Multiply £ by £ and divide the results by $100,1f the aumber is less it Zoro, etes Ze1o. 5 4.786

66. Total Foregone Revenue Amount. Add Lines 636, 64G and 635G 50 160

67, 3024 Unused increment Rate, Divida Line 66 by Line 21 of the No-Neve-Reverue fale Worksheet. Multiply the result by 100 4 0.000000 5100
¥ U R L

68, Total 2024 voter-approval tax rate, including the unused incremaent rate. Adet Line 67 to one of the followiing lises las applicable): Line 49,

Line 50 {counties, Line 38 {taxing units with additional sales tax) or Line 62 {taxing units with pollution} 5 0002817 5180

" fer. Ta Code 126 01 330

5 Tex, Yoo Code 226 00101 & 61 B awd (23
“ Tos, Yo Codde 426 SUGUNALanil 26 04200
< fen, Tas Cuder 426 AN aned (6

tTep. Lacal Gow't Code H12007(4)

= Ted Loaal Gov't Cagde (125 LT}

tooomptrotlentesasgovitanis progerty 153




§
;
3
z

2024 Tax Rate Caleulation Worksheet - Taxing Units Qther Than School Districts or Water Districts Form 50-856

the de minimis rate is the rate equal ko the sum of the no-new-reveniie malatenance and operations eate, the mte that will mise $500,000, and the current debt rate for a taxing unit, **

This section should only be completed by a taxing unit that is a municipatity of less than 30,000 or a taxing unit that does not meet the definition of a special taxing unit,

¢ Minimis fate Workshe - Amount/Rat
9. Adjusted current year NNR M&O tax rate. Enter the fate from Line 39 of the Voler-Approval Tax Rate Worksheet. 5 0002609 s5q09
70. Ct;rrant year total t.axablt.z value, éntcr tt.w amount on Line 21 of the No-New-Revenue Tax Rate Worksheel, 5 5,203,002,532
71, Rate necessary to impose $500,000 in taxes. Divide $500,000 by Line 70 and multiply by 5100. 5 njoogsuu T
72.  Currentyear debt rate. Enter the rate from Line 48 of the Voler-Approval Tax Rate Worksheet. 5 U.UUOQOO ,,w;“
73, Deminimis rate, Add Lines 69,71 and 72, ¢ 0000000 /5100

In the tax year after the end of the disaster calcutation time pericd detailed in Tax Code Sectien 26.042(a), a laxing unit that calculated its voter-approval tax smte in the manaer
provided for a special taxing unit due to a disaster must calculate its emergency revenue rate and reduce it vater-approval tax sate foe that year

Simitarly, if a taxing unit adopted a (24 rate that exceeded its voter-approval 1ax rate, calcolated normally, without holding an election to respond ta a disaster, a5 allowed by fax
Cade Saction 26.042(d), in the pricr year, it mest also reduce Its voter-approval tax rate for the current tax yoar, ¥

This section will apply 1o a taxing unit other than a speciad taxing usit that:
» directed the designated officer or employee to calculate the voter-approval 1ax rate of $he taxing unitin the mavner provided for a speclal {axing unit in the prior year; and

+ the current yearis the first tax year In which the total taxable value of property tasabla by the laxing upit as showe on the appraisal roll for the taxing unlt submitted by the
assessor for the taxing unit 1o the governing body exceeds the Lotal taxabie value of property taxable by the taxing unit on January 1 of the tax year in which the disaster
accurzed o the disaster accurred four years ago.This section will apply to a taxing unit tn a disaster area that adopted a tax rate greater thaw its voter-approval tax rate
without hetding an election in the priar year,

Note: This section does not apply if a 1axing unit is continuing to calculate its voter-approval tax rate in the manner provided for a spedial taxing unit trecause itis stll within the
disaster calculation time period detailed in Tax Code Section 26.042(3) because it bas not mat the conditions in Tax Code Section 26042011 or (2),

74. 2023 adopted tax rate. Enter the rate in Line 4 of the Mo-New-Revenue Tox Rate Worksheet. 5 0003174 5400
75, Adjusted 2023 yoter-approval tax rate, Use the taxing unit’s Tax Rate Calculation Worksheets fram the prior year(s) to complete this Hine,

If a ctisaster accurmed in 2023 and the laxng unit calculated s 2023 voter-approval tax rate ysing a multiplies of 1.08 an Disaster Line 41 D41}

af the 2023 worksheet due to a disaster, complete the applicable sections or lines of Forn 50-856-a, Adjusted Yoter-Approval Tax Rate for lading

Units in Disaster Area Calculation Worksheet.

-or-

if a disaster occurred prior Lo 2023 for which the taxing unit continued to calculate its voler-approval Tax rate using a multiplier of 1.08 an

Disaster Line 41 [D41} in 2023, complete fonm 30-856-a, Adjusted Voter-Apgroval Tax Rate for Taxing Units in Disaster Area Calculation Worksheel 1o

recalculate tie vater-approval tax rate the taxing unit would have calcylated in 2023 i it had generated revenue tased on an adopted tax rate

using a meltiplier of 1,035 i the vears following 1he disastar. ** Enter the firal adjusted 2023 voter-approval tax rale from the workshaet,

_of-

If the taxing unit adopted a tax rate above the 2023 voler-approval tax rate without calculating a disaster Lax rate or holding an election due 1o

a disaster, no fecaleulation is necessary. Enter the voter-approval tax rate from the prior year's worksheet, 4 0.00C000 /51t
76. Increase in 2023 tax rate due to disaster, Sublract Line 75 from Line 74, 5 0.000000 4100
77. Adjusted 2023 taxable value. Enter the amount in Line 14 of the No-New-Revenue Tax Rate Worksheet. 5 4.258,849,180
78. Emergency reveaue, Multiply Line 76 by Line 77 and divide by $100. G0
79, Adjusted 2023 taxable vatue. Enter the amaunt in Line 25 of the No-New-Revenue Tax Rute Yorksheet. 5 5.194,399,922
80. Emergency revenue rate. Divide Line 78 by Line 79 and muliply by $100. ¥ 4 0006000 5100

 Fer. Tae Coedn §26 410 TER)

= fee. T34 Code 3760127
“ T TaxLude 336
= Tes, Taelotie §16042:0;
= Tpa Taefede RGN
¥ Tes. Tyx Code $78 04710
U Tex, TreCode §28040b;

seowhtaa Cnpeds it comptrollernteas Govitaes i proper e iay



2024 Tax Rate Calculation Worksheet - Taxing Units Olher Than School Districts or Water Districts Form 50-856

81. Current year voter-approval tax rate, adjusted for emergency revenue, Subtract Line B0 from one af the foltowing lines (as applicable):
Line 49, Line D49 (disaster}, Line 50 {counties), Line 58 (taxing units with the additional sales tax), Line 62 {laxing units with pollution contral) or
Lirie 68 {Laxing units with the voused increment rate).

s 0.002817 500

indicate the applicable total tax rates as calculated above.

NO-NEW-TEVENUE 13X FALE. L.\t s nnenyoenenesont tinniaraenensaneeses PR e $ 0.002604 #5100
As applicable, enter the cutrent year NNR tax rate fram: Line 26, Line 27 {counties), or Line 56 {adjusted for sales sax).

indicate the line number wsed: 26

Yoter-approval LI EITe. ..ot U PP P PR PP 5 0.0028%7 /5160
As applicalile, enter the current year voter-appioval tax rate oy Line 49, Ling D49 (disaster), Line 50 {counties), Line S8 (adjusted for sales tax),

tine 62 (adjusted for poliution control}, Line 68 {adjusted for unused increment), or tine 83 {adjusted far emergency revenue),

indicate the ling number used: 4%

DB THEIELES FALE. -+ oo v et ee e e e e e s ee e e s ae s e et th 24 e s et e e e e dE A ke n e a e e e et e e 5 0.000000 ioypo

If applicable, entet the current year de minimis rate from Line 73,

Enter the name of the person preparing the tax fate as authorized by the governing body of the taxing ueit. By sigoing below, you cettify that you are the designated officar or
employes of the taxing unit and have accurately caloulated the lax rates using yalues that are the same a4 the values shown in the taxing unil's certified appraisal rol or certified
estimate of taxable value, in accordance with requirements in the

print
here & Ciryswat Cedillo

Printed .‘!anu.;.ef.la:ing Uit Regeosentative
sign
here »

Taxing U Representatee Oate

grar el comptiroflion IRas. goviia s prnp ety 1as REISER Y



Gonzales County UWCD
2023-2024 Amended Budget
2024-2025 Proposed Budget

Western Mitigation Fund

GCUWCD EXPENSES

23-24 23-24 BUDGET 23-24 23-24 24-25
ESTIMATED BUDGET AMENDED | PROPOSED
CATEGORIES TO DATE AMENDMENTS BUDGET BUDGET
002 Operating Expenses
Audit Fees $2,866.66 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00
Legal $0.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $0.00
Operating Expense Total $2,866.66 $5,500.00 $0.00 $5,500.00 $3,000.00
003 Capital Outlay Expenses
Field Equipment $0.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $0.00
Office Equipment $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $0.00
Capital Outlay Expense Total $0.00 $3,500.00 $0.00 $3,500.00 $0.00
004 Project Expenses
Ground Water Testing $0.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $0.00
Well Mitigation (contractors) $0.00 $300,000.00 $300,000.00 || $170,000.00
Project Expense Total $0.00 $302,500.00 $0.00 | $302,500.00| $170,000.00
TOTAL ALL EXPENSES $2,866.66 $311,500.00 $0.00 || $311,500.00 | $173,000.00
GCUWCD INCOME
23-24 23-24 BUDGET 23-24 23-24 24-25
ESTIMATED BUDGET AMENDED | PROPOSED
CATEGORIES TO DATE AMENDMENTS BUDGET BUDGET
005 Export Fee Surcharges
CRWA $58,223.20 $35,058.52 $0.00 $0.00
SSLGC $64,518.06 $71,195.51 $0.00 $0.00
SAWS $61,352.21 $59,234.73 $0.00 $0.00
Initial Payment Total| $184,093.47 $165,488.76 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
007 Fees, Interest, Reimbursement
Mitigation Fund MM $1,913.28 $200.00 $0.00 $1,500.00
Interest Total $1,913.28 $200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00
Transfer Total l |
TOTAL ALL FUNDING $1,500.00

DEFICIT/SURPLUS

($171,500.00)

Estimated Cash on Hand FYE 23-24
Budget Surplus/Deficit

TOTAL 2024- 2025 FYE

ANTICIPATED CASH ON HAND

$166,970.31
($171,500.00)

-$4,529.69




Gonzales County UWCD
2023-2024 Amended Budget
2024- 2025 Proposed Budget

Eastern Mitigation Fund

GCUWCD EXPENSES

23-24 23-24 23-23 4 23-24 24-25
ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET AMENDED || PROPOSED
CATEGORIES TO DATE AMENDMENTS || BUDGET BUDGET
002 Operating Expenses
Audit Fees $2,866.66 $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00
Legal $0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00
Operating Expense Total $2,866.66 $5,500.00 $0.00 $5,500.00 $3,000.00
003 Capital Outlay Expenses
Field Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Office Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Capital Outlay Expense Total $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
004 Project Expenses
Groundwater Testing $0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00
Well Mitigation (contractors) $13,355.20 | $310,000.00 $0.00 | $310,000.00 | $282,000.00
Project Expense Total| $13,356.20 | $312,500.00 $0.00 | $312,500.00 || $282,000.00
TOTAL ALL EXPENSES $13,355.20 | $318,000.00 $0.00 | $318,000.00 || $285,000.00
GCUWCD INCOME
23-24 23-24 23-23 4 23-24 24-25
ESTIMATED BUDGET BUDGET AMENDED | PROPOSED
CATEGORIES TO DATE AMENDMENTS || BUDGET BUDGET
006 Export Fee Surcharges
ARWA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
GBRA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Export Fee Surcharge Total $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
007 Fees, Interest, Reimbursement
Mitigation Fund MM $4,370.30 $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,500.00
Interest Total $4,370.30 $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,500.00
TOTAL ALL FUNDING $1,500.00
DEFICIT/SURPLUS

($283,500.00)

Estimated Cash on Hand FYE 23-24
Budget Surplus/Deficit

TOTAL 2024 - 2025 FYE

ANTICIPATED CASH ON HAND

$282,600.99
($283,500.00)

-$899.01




%02 | %02 L {%0T'L - %021 |- - %S1L s9jezuo9) yueg [euoneN )siig
%¥.L€E %8L°E %LV %Ly ¥ %l¥ Y |%89Y %89V |%SLV No4 syoolg ydjopuey
%08°¢ - - - %Se'e |- - %SZ'¢ yueg Ajuadsold
- - - - - - - %0G ¥ yueg jeyde) abeg
- - - - - - - obie4 s||loM
%0G'¢ %G2'E |%SL'E %0G'¢ %0Z¢ |- - %GE'C jueg Jejg ynog|
. _ $202Z ‘€1 3snbny
ES PN D ) » @ B BIBIEmATEE b clite. U@
8 B B

- %85°E |- %EL'E %8LE€ |%6SY |- S9|BZUOS Yueg |euoneN }sild
%89'¥ %89'¥ %LV ¥ %Ly ¥ %l¥y |- - No4 syooig ydjopuey
- %SCE |- - - %006 |- yueg Ajiadsold
- %00°S |- - %SL'S |- - yueg jende) abeg
- %861 |%9l ¥ - %.9% |- - %¥9¥ oble s|IoMm
%GE'C %0E'E |- %SGZ ¥ - %.9Y |- - yueg Jejg yinog
#20Z ‘€l 3snbny




RECEIVED JUL 17 2024

July 16, 2024
Board of Directors
Gonzales County Underground
Water Conservatioh District
P 0, Box 1918
Gonzales, TX 78628
Re: Permit Renawal

Permit GCP-01-06-02

Dear Board of Directors:
As owners we respectfully request renewal of our PermitG Cp-01-06-02 at the original pumping rate of
1000 gpm.  We greatly appreciate your attention to the renewal of our permit,

Thank you,

Sincerely,

M ﬁwﬂ

Mark Ploeger
P, 0. Box 26
Gonzales, TA 78629

LS/V\/ Ploe
PO, Box 173
San Marcos, TX 78667

Aoy MK/LWL%

Mary y Ann Mennmg
5104 FM 466
Cost, TX 78614




Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District

522 Seint Matthew Street
P.O. Box 1919

Gonzales, TX 78629
Phone: 830.672.1047
Fux: 830.672,1387

Drilling and Production Permit
For Irrigation Well
Permit No.: 01-06-02
GCUWCD Well ID: P018

Permit Issued To: Dorothy B. Ploeger Estate

Mailing Address: P.0O. Box 522
Gonzales, TX 78629

Telephone Number: 361.550.8711

Date Original Application Filed: March 25, 2002

Date of Public Hearing on Oviginal Application: June |1, 2002
Date Original Permit Granted: June 11, 2002

Date Extension Filed: May 16, 2003

Date Extension Request Granted: June 10, 2003

Date Second Permit Renewal Request Granted: July 14, 2009

Date Third Permit Renewal Request Granted: August 12,2014
Date Fourth Permit Renewal Request Granted: September 10, 2019

Production Permit Provisions: Total production is litaited to 1,387 acre-feel per year

The rate of production from aell or well field may vary throughout the year; however, the totl production i
a calendar yeear begivming on January 1st and ending on December 31st shall not exceed the permitied
production for that year, Individual well production rates are allowed to increase up to 150% of the permitted
production rate during peak demand periods

Aquifer Production Allocation: 1.0 acre-foot pet acre in the Carrizo Aquifer

Pumping Capacity of Water Well: 1440 gpm by the maximum well-to-property boundary offset distance
in Rule 18.A

Term of Productios Permit: 5 years

A permittee holding a drilling and production permit due fo expire shall file a writfen request to reissue the
perniit to the General Manager no later than 30 days prior (o the expiration date of the permit. The permit
shall remain effective until final Board action on the veissue of the permil. Requiesis to reissue a permit shall be
subject to review for subsiantial compliance with the rules of the Disirict by the General Manager.

Any permit subject to reissue shall after due consideration and an affirmative vote by the Board be reissued
for a period of five years in accordeaice fo the rules in effect at the time of reissue.
a. is delinguent in paying a fee required by the district;




b. is subject to a pending enforcement action for a substantive violation of a district permit, order, or
rule that has not been settled by agreement with the district or a final adjudication; or

¢ has not paid u civil penalty or has otherwise failed to comply with an order resulting from a final
adjudication of a vielation of « disfrict pernil, order, or ride.

An application for renewal of a permit that also requests a major amendment is subject fo notice and
hearing, and finad approval by the Board. Duying consideration of a contested renewal application, the
permit shall remain effective until final Board action on renewal of the permit.

Additional Conditions Applicable to Drilling and Production Permit:
A. General Conditions

Acceptance of the permit by the person to whom it is issued constitutes acknowledgment of and agreement to
comply with all of the terms, provisions, conditions, limitations, and restrictions of these rufes including, but
not limited to, the following:

1. Permits are granted in accordance with the provisions of the Texas Water Code and the Rules,
Management Plan and Orders of the District, and acceptance of the permit constitutes an
acknowledgment and agreement that the permittee will comply with the Texas Water Code, the
District Rules, Management Plan, Orders of the District Board, and all the termns, provisions,
conditions, requirements, limitations and restrictions embodied in a permit.

2. A permit confers no vested rights in the holder, and it may be revoked or suspended, or its terms may
be modified or amended pursuant to the provisions of the District’s Rules.

3, The operation of a well for the authorized withdrawal must be conducted in a nop-wasteful mannet.
In the event the groundwater is to be transported a distance greater than one-half mile from the well,
it must be transported by pipeline to prevent waste caused by evapotation and percolation.

4, The permittec must keep records of the amount of groundwater produced and the purpose of the
production and such records shall be available for inspection by District representatives. Immediate
written notice must be given to the District in the event production exceeds the quantity authorized
by a permit, or the well s either polluted or causing pollution of the aquifer. You must supply
written documentation of your water usage monthly to the Distriet,

5 A well site must be accessible to District representatives for inspection, and the permittee agrees to
fully cooperate in any reasonable inspection of the well and well site by District representatives.

6. Applications for which a permit is issued are incorporated in the permit and thus permits are granted
on the basis of and contingent upon the accuracy of the information supplied in the application and

any amendments fo the application. A finding that false information has been supplied is grounds for

immediate revocation of a permit. In the event of conflict between the provisions of a permit and the
contents of the application, the provisions of the permit shall control.

7. Suspension or revocation of a permit may require immediate cessation of all activities granted by the
permit.

8. Violation of a permit’s terms, conditions, requirements or special provisions is punishable by civil
penalties provided by the District’s Rules.

9. Where ever special provisions in a permit are inconsistent with other provisions or District Rules, the
special provisions prevail.




10. Changes in the withdrawal and use of groundwater during the term of a permit may not be made
without prior approval of a permit amendment authorizing the change issued by the District.

B. Change of Ownership

An operating permit may be transferred to another person through change of ownership of the well provided
all permit conditions remain in compliance with District Rules and the District is notified, in advance, of the
proposed change in ownership. The General Manager is authorized to effectuate the permit transfer,

C, Enforcement of Rules

All Rules duly adopted, promulgated and published by this District shall be enforced as provided for under
Chapter 36, Texas Water Code.

1. The District may enforce Chapter 36, Texas Water Code and its Rules by injunction, mandatory
injunction, or other appropriate remedy in a court of competent jurisdiction,

2. 'The Board by rule may set reasonable civil penaities for breach of any rule of the District not to
exceed $10,000 per day per violation, and each day of a continuing violation constitutes a separate
violation in'accordance with Chapter 36.102 of the Texas Water Code.

3. A penalty under Chapter 36, Texas Water Code or the District’s Rudes is in addition to any other
penalty provided by the law of this state and may be enforced by complaints filed in a court of
competent jurisdiction in Gonzales County.

4. If the District prevails in any suit to enforce its Rules, it may, in the same action, recover reasonable
fees for attorneys, expert witnesses, and other costs incurred by the District before the court. The
amount of the attorney’s fees shall be fixed by the court.

5. The Board shall notify the appropriate person or entity alleged to have committed a violation
of the rules of the District by certified mail return receipt requested or by publication in a
newspaper of general circulation in the District of the date of the public hearing to hear
testimony about the circumstances regarding the enforcement action. Notice must be provided
at least ten (10) days prior to the public hearing.

6, The Board, either on its own motion or upon receipt of sufficient written complaint, may at
any time, after due notice to all interested parties, cite any person operating a well within the
District to appear before it and require them to show cause why their operating authority or
permit should not be suspended, canceled, revoked or otherwise restiicted or limited for
faiture to comply with the Rules or Orders of the Board, any permit issued by the Board, or
any relevant State statutes. A decision on suspending, cancelling or revoking permit authority
may be contested under Rule 25.

Bruce Tieken
President
Gonzales County UWCD

09-1Q-2.019
Date




i§

RECEIVED AUG 12 2024

LOCAL GOVERNMERWNT CORPORATION

August 9, 2024

Laura Martin

General Manager

Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District
P.O. Box 1919

Gonzales, TX 78629

Re: SSLGC Operating Permit Renewal

Dear Laura,

The Schertz Seguin Local Government Corporation (SSLGC) holds a consolidated operating
permit for twelve wells which is set to expire on Qctober 8, 2024. Pursuant to Rule 11 (F) (2),
the permittee is required to submit a written request no later than 30 days prior to the
expiration date. As part of the renewal process, the permittee shall be in substantial
compliance with the rules of the Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District
(District) at time of renewal. SSLGC confirms to be in compliance with the current District
rules pertaining to the renewal of operating permits and hereby requests the renewal of its
consolidated operating permit for all twelve wells.

Please advise us if any further action is needed to complete this process.

Sincerely,

2l LT

Andrew McBride
General Manager

amchride@seguintexas.gov

ce: Patrick Lindner, General Counsel
File

Schestz/Seguin Local Government Corporation = 108 W. Mountain Street  *  Seguin, Texas 78155 +  8§30-401-2409



Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District

920 Suint Joseph Street
P.O. Box I919
Gonzales, TX 78629
Phone: 830.672. 1047
Fax: 830.672.1387

Consolidated Operating Permit
For Public Water Supply Wells #1 - #12
(PO47, PU08, P0O9, PO1O, PO11, PO12, PO16, PO17, PO31, PO32, 033, PO34)
Permit No.: 02-10-19

Permit Issued To: Schertz-Seguin Local Governiment Corporation
Mailing Address: P.O, Box 833
Seguin, TX 78156-0833

Telephone Number: 830.401.2403
Fax Number: 830.401.2481

Date Oviginal Application Filed (Wells #1 - #6): May 14, 2002
Date of Public Hearing: August 13, 2002
Date Permit Granted: August 13, 2002

E
|
1

Date Original Application Filed (Well #8): May 14, 2002
Date of Public Hearing: April 13, 2004
Date Permit Granted: April 14, 2004

Date Originul Application Filed (Well #7); March 23, 2004
Date of Public Hearing: July 13, 2004
Date Permit Granted: July 13, 2004

Date Original Application Filed (Wells #9 - #12): June 6, 2008
5 Date of Public Hearing: April 14, 2009
Prate Permit Granfed: March 16,2010

Date Permits Aggregated (Wells #1 - #12): October 8, 2019
Aggregate Permit Expivation Date: October 8, 2024

Aquifer Operating Alloeation: Not to exceed 1.0 acre-foot per acre from the Carrizo Aquifer

Permitted Operating Amount: Not to exceed 19,362 acre-feet per year

The rate of production from a well or well field may vary throughout the year: however, the total production in
« calendar year beginning on January st and ending on December 31st shall not exceed the permitted
prodiction for that year. Individual well produciion rates ave allowed o increase up fo 130% of the permitted
production rate during peak demeand periods



:
:
]
§
;
E
:
;
,
5
>

Capacity of Water Wells:

Weli No. Maximum Pumping Rate (gpm) Maximum Production {ac-ft/year)
SSLGC #1 1,500 1,613
SSLGC #2 1,500 1,613
SSLGC#3 1,500 1,613
SSLGC #4 1,500 1,613
SSLGC #5 1,500 1,613
SSLGC #i6 1,500 1,613
SSLGC #7 1,000 1,616
SSLGC #8 1,000 1,616
SSLGC #9 1,000 1,613
SSLGC#10 1,000 1,613
SSLGC #11 1,000 1,613
SSLGC #12 1,000 1,613

Term of Production Permit: 5 years

Permittee may file a written request to renew this permit to the General Manager no later than thirty (30) days
prior to the expiration date of the permit. An operating permit subject to renewal shail be administratively
renewed by the District’s General Manager for a period of at feast five (5) years in accordance to the rules in
effect al the time of renewal. Requests to renew a permit shall be subject to review for substantial compliance
with the rufes of the District by the General Manager.

The District is not required to renew a permit under this section if the Permittee:
a. is delinquent in paying a fee requived by the District;

b. is subject to a pending enforcement action for a substantive violation of a District permit, order, or
rule that has not been seitled by agreement with the district or a final adjudication; or

c. has not paid a civil penalty or has otherwise failed to comply with an order tesulting from a final
adjudication of a violation of a District permit, order, or rule.

An application for renewal of a permit that also requests a major amendment is subject to notice and hearing,
and final approval by the Board. During consideration of a contested renewal application, the permit shall
remain effective unti} finai Board action on renewal of the permit.

Additional Conditions Applicable to Operating Permit:
A, Special Provisions
This operating permit was granted by the Board of Directors with the following special provisions:
I. Participation Agreement in the Western Gonzales County Dedicated Mitigation Fuad, by and
between Schertz/Seguin Local Government Corporation and the District, executed to be effective on
March 16, 2010 (Agreement Attached).
2, Monitoring Well System Construction, Operation, and Maintenance Agreement, by and among the
District, Alliance Regional Water Authority, Canyon Regional Water Authority, Schertz/Seguin

Local Government Corporation, and Guadalupe Blanco River Authority executed to be effective on
December 30, 2016 {Agreement Aftached).




B.

General Conditions

Acceptance of the permit by Permittee constitutes acknowledgment of and agreement to comply with all of
the terms, provisions, conditions, limitations, and restrictions of these rules including, but not limited to, the
following:

Permits are granted in accordance with the provisions of the Texas Water Code and the Rules,
Management Pian and Orders of the District, and acceptance of the permit constitutes an
acknowledgment and agreement that the permittee will comply with the Texas Water Code, the
District Rules, Management Plan, Orders of the District Board, and all the terms, provisions,
conditions, requirements, limitations and restrictions embodied in a permit.

A permit confers no vested rights in the holder, and it may be revoked or suspended, or its terms may
be modified or amended pursuant to the provisions of the District’s Rules.

The operation of a well for the authorized withdrawal must be conducted in a non-wasteful manner.
In the event the groundwater is to be transported a distance greater than one-half mile from the well,
it must be transported by pipeline to prevent waste caused by evaporation and percolation.

The permittee must keep records of the amount of groundwater produced and exported and the purpose
of the production, and such records shall be available for inspection by District representatives.
Immediate written notice must be given to the District in the event production exceeds the quantity
authotized by a permit, or the water wef] is either polluted or causing pollution of the aquifer. Reports
of withdrawal amounts shall be filed annually by any permittee with authorized withdrawal up to 3,000
acre feet per year. Reports of monthly withdrawal amounts shali be filed within thirty (30) days of the
end of each month.

A well site and transportation facility must be accessible to District representatives for inspection,
and the permitiee agrees to fully cooperate in any reasonable inspection of the well, well site, and
transportation facility by District representatives.

Applications for which a permit is issued are incorporated in the permit and thus permits are granted
on the basis of and contingent upon the accuracy of the information supplied in the application and
any amendments to the application. A finding that false information hias been supplied is grounds
for immediate revocation of a permit. In the event of conflict between the provisions of a permit and
the contents of the application, the provisions of the permit shall control.

Suspension or revocation of a permit may require immediate cessation of all activities granted by the
permit.

Violation of a permit’s tevims, conditions, requirements or special provisions is punishable by civil
penalties provided by the District’s Rules.

Where ever special provisions in a permit are inconsistent with othet provisions or District Rules, the
special provisions prevail,

. Changes in the withdrawal and use of groundwater or in the amount exported durtng the term of'a

permit may not be made without prior approval of a permit amendment authorizing the change
issued by the District.

. In order to preserve and protect the aquifer(s) of the District, water wells connected or to be

connected (o a common gathering/transportation piping system capable of producing greater than or



equal 1o 3,000 acre-feet of groundwater from permitted wells per calendar year, shall be required to
assess the effects of the project on the aquifer(s). Water quality sampling and analysis shall be
conducted by the well fiefd owner/operator annually in at feast two production wells to assess any
changes in water quality that may be attributed to the large-scale pumping project. Sainples shall be
collected and analyzed by a laboratory, acceptable to the District, for major cations (sodium,
potassium, calcium, magnesium) and anions {chloride, sulfale, carbonate, bicarbonate) and total
dissolfved solids. In addition, specific conductance, pH, and (emperature measurements shall be
made in the field during each annual sampling event. The sampling results shall be submitted to the
District annually.

C. Change of Ownership

This operating permit may be fransferred to another person through change of ownership of the well
provided all permit conditions remain in compliance with District Rules and the District is notified, in
advance, of the proposed change in ownership. The General Manager is authorized to effectvate the permit
transter.

D. Operation Limits

The total amount of production auvthorized under this permit, or production authorized under any Interim
Stage, may be reduced by the Board if the Board finds that the Desired Future Condition for the District is
not being achieved or is in imminen( danger of not being achieved and that the Permittee has caused or
significantly contribuled to the non-achievement or imminent non- achievement of the Desired Future
Condition.

-

/

Bruce 'l‘iekl((ﬁ, President
Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District

Date

Attachments:

Attachment 1 - Participation Agreement in the Western Gonzales County Dedicated Mitigation Fund, by and
between Scherlz/Seguin Local Government Corporation and the Distriet, executed to be effective on March
16, 2010.

Allachment 2 - Moniforing Well System Construction, Operation, and Maintenance Agreement, by and
ameng the District, Alliance Regional Water Aathority, Canyon Regional Waler Authority, Schertz/Seguin
Local Govermment Corporation, and Guadalupe Blanco River Authority exeenfed to be effective on
December 34, 2016,



Gonzales County Underground
Water Conservation District

Board Resclution 2024-08-13a
Resolution for Board Member access to bank information.

WHEREAS, Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District has authorized Mr.
Glenn Glass as Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District Board Member to;

BE IT RESOLVED that M. Glass has authority to access and request bank account information
for reporting purposes.

This Resolution shall become effective on August 13, 2024.

President, Bruce Tieken
Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District

Vice-President, Michael St. John
Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District

Secretary, Barry Miller
Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District

Director, Mark Ainsworth
Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District

General Manager, Ms. Laura Martin
Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District



Gonzales County Underground
Water Conservation District

Board Resolution 2024-08-13b

Resolution Adopting the 2024 Management Plan

WHEREAS, §§36.1071 and 36.1073, Water Code, require the Gonzales County Underground Water
Conservation District to develop and adopt a Management Plan that addresses the following management goals,
as applicable:

(1) providing the most efficient use of groundwater;

(2) controlling and preventing waste of groundwater;

(3) controlling and preventing subsidence;

(4) addressing conjunctive surface water management issues;

(5) addressing natural resource issues;

(6) addressing drought conditions;

(7) addressing conservation, recharge enhancement, rainwater harvesting, or brush control, where

appropriate and cost-effective; and

(8) addressing the desired future conditions adopted by the district;

WHEREAS, §36.1072(e), Water Code, requires each groundwater conservation district to review and re-adopt
the Management Plan at least every five years; and

WHEREAS, after providing notice and holding a public hearing, the Board of Directors of the Gonzales
County Underground Water Conservation District has developed a Management Plan in accordance with the
statutory requirements and utilizing the best available science, attached hereto and incorporated herein for
purposes.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:
1) The Board of Directors of the Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District do hereby
adopt the attached 2024 Management Plan pursuant to §36.1071, Water Code.

2) The General Manager is hereby ordered to file the adopted Management Plan with the Texas Water
Development Board for certification as administratively complete.

3) The General Manager is hereby authorized to take any and all reasonable action necessary for the
implementation of this resolution.

This Resolution shall become effective on

Adopted this 13" day of August, 2024,

Bruce Tieken, President Barry Miller, Secretary
Gonzales County Underground Gonzales County Underground
Water Conservation District Water Conservation District



RECEIVED MAY 30 2024
NS B WATER

DEVELOPMENT BOARD
h 4

P.O. Box 13231, 1700 N. Congress Ave.
Austin, TX 78711-3231, www.twdb.texas.gov
Phone (512) 463-7847, Fax (512) 475-2053

May 30, 2024

Laura Martin-Preston

General Manager

Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District
522 Saint Matthew St.

P.O. Box 1919

Gonzales, TX 78629

Dear Ms. Martin:

We have completed our review of the Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation
District (District) groundwater management plan (plan) adopted by the District on January 9,
2024, and received by the Texas Water Development Board (TWDB) on March 8, 2024. We
reviewed the plan to determine if it contains the information required under Texas Water
Code (TWC) § 36.1071(a) and (e). Based on our review, the plan submitted to the TWDB
Executive Administrator in accordance with 31 Texas Administrative Code (TAC) §356.53,
is not administratively complete, and therefore, is not approved.

1. The plan does not include estimates of the annual amount of recharge from
precipitation to the aquifers in the District (as required by TWC §
36.1071(e)(3)(C) and TAC § 356.52(a)(5)(C)).

2. The plan does not include estimates of the annual volume of water that
discharges from the aquifers in the District (as required by TWC §
36.1071(e)(3)(D) and TAC § 356.52(a)(5)(D)).

3. The plan does not include estimates of the annual volume of flow into and out of
the district within each aquifer and between aquifers in the District (as required
by TWC § 36.1071(e)(3)(E) and TAC § 356.52(a)(5)(E)).

4. The plan does not include a clear explanation of how the water supply needs and
water management strategies from the most recently adopted state water plan
were considered (as required by TWC § 36.1071(e)(4)).

5. The plan does not include evidence of coordination with every surface water
management entity they are required to contact (as required by TWC §
36.1071(a)).

Our Mission : Board Members

Leading the state’s efforts . Brooke T. Paup, Chairwoman | George B. Peyton V, Board Member | L’Oreal Stepney, P.E., Board Member
in ensuring a secure .
water future for Texas  :  Bryan McMath, Interim Executive Administrator



6. The plan does not have time-based and quantifiable management objectives or
performance standards that the district will use to achieve the goal of addressing
precipitation enhancement (as required by TWC § 36.1071(a)(7) and
36.1071(e)(1) and 31 TAC § 356.51 and § 356.52(a)(1-3)).

A district has 180 days from receipt of notice to submit a revised management plan for
review and approval in accordance with 31 TAC § 356.53. We have provided information on
how to correct these deficiencies as an attachment (pages 3-4). To facilitate any final review
of a plan, we encourage you to take advantage of our management plan pre-review process
prior to submitting an adopted plan. Or you may appeal this decision to the Board by
notifying me in writing of your intent to appeal within 60 days of receiving this letter. You can
find procedures for an appeal in 31 TAC § 356.55.

Should you have any questions or concerns, please contact Robert Bradley, Manager of our
Groundwater Technical Assistance Department, at 512-936-0870 or
robert.bradley@twdb.texas.gov.

Sincerely,
Bryan McMath G e

Bryan McMath
Interim Executive Administrator

Attachment

c w/ att: John T. Dupnik, P.G., Deputy Executive Administrator of Water Science &
Conservation
Natalie Ballew, P.G., Groundwater
Stephen Allen, P.G., Groundwater
Abiy Berehe P.G., Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
Peggy Hunka, P.G., Texas Commission on Environmental Quality



Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District
Groundwater Management Plan
Final Submitted Plan Deficiencies, May 30, 2024

This document lists the deficiencies of the administratively incomplete groundwater
management plan submitted by the Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District
(District) on March 8, 2024 and how to resolve these deficiencies. The policies, plans, and
opinions in the groundwater management plan represent those of the District, not those of the
Texas Water Development Board (TWDB).

To facilitate an administratively complete final plan, we encourage you to take advantage of our
management plan pre-review process prior to submitting an adopted plan. Please contact
Stephen Allen (stephen.allen@twdb.texas.gov; 512-463-7217) for questions regarding the pre-
review process or assistance in correcting these deficiencies. We suggest submitting the pre-
review to TWDB within 90 days so that we can review and return it to you in a timely manner.

Groundwater management plan deficiencies

1. The plan does not include estimates of the annual amount of recharge from precipitation
to the aquifers in the District (as required by TWC § 36.1071(e)(3)(C) and TAC
§ 356.52(a)(5)(C)).

To correct this deficiency, please include these values. For a satisfactory plan, we
recommend including the TWDB groundwater availability model report (GAM Run 23-
018) as an appendix and referring to it within the body of the plan. The discussion of
GAM Run 23-018 on page 13 confuses GAM Run 21-018 MAG (the modeled available
groundwater report) with the similarly named GAM Run 23-018 (the groundwater
availability model management plan report).

2. The plan does not include estimates of the annual volume of water that discharges from
the aquifers in the District (as required by TWC § 36.1071(e)(3)(D) and TAC
§ 356.52(a)(5)(D)).

To correct this deficiency, please include these values. For a satisfactory plan, we
recommend including the TWDB groundwater availability model report (GAM Run 23-
018) as an appendix and referring to it within the body of the plan. The discussion of
GAM Run 23-018 on page 13 confuses GAM Run 21-018 MAG (the modeled available
groundwater report) with the similarly named GAM Run 23-018 (the groundwater
availability model management plan report).

3. The plan does not include estimates of the annual volume of flow into and out of the
district within each aquifer and between aquifers in the District (as required by TWC
§ 36.1071(e)(3)(E) and TAC § 356.52(a)(5)(E)).

To correct this deficiency, please include these values. For a satisfactory plan, we
recommend including the TWDB groundwater availability model report (GAM Run 23-
018) as an appendix and referring to it within the body of the plan. The discussion of
GAM Run 23-018 on page 13 confuses GAM Run 21-018 MAG (the modeled available
groundwater report) with the similarly named GAM Run 23-018 (the groundwater
availability model report).

4. The plan does not include a clear explanation of how the water supply needs and water
management strategies from the most recently adopted state water plan were
considered (as required by TWC § 36.1071(e)(4)). As stated in TWC § 36.1071(e)(4),
the district must consider the water supply needs and water management strategies
included in the 2022 State Water Plan. A complete plan includes a discussion



Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District Groundwater Management Plan
Final Submitted Plan Deficiencies
May 30, 2024

demonstrating how the district considered the water supply needs and water
management strategies. To correct this deficiency, please include the groundwater
management plan data report containing 2022 State Water Plan datasets (previously
provided to the District) in an appendix and refer to specific needs and water
management strategies in the fext. In addition, please provide a discussion similar to the
following from another district that addresses these requirements:

Projected water supply needs fisted in the TWDB estimated historical
water use/2022 state water plan dala packet (Appendix B) are primarily
municipal. Municipal needs in Guadalupe Counly exist for the following
waler user groups (WUGS): Cibolo, Crystal Clear WSC, Green Valley
SUD, Luling, Marion, Martindale WSC, New Braunfels, Schertz, Sequin,
Selma, and Waler Services. Additional needs exist in one other WUG:
Manufacturing. From 2020 to 2070, the total needs in Guadalupe County
are projected to increase from 43 AF to 14,765 AF.

Projected water management strategies listed in the TWDB estimated
historical water use/2022 state waler plan data packet, and located within
Guadalupe County are: Municipal Water Conservation (Cibolo, County-
Other, Crystal Clear WSC, Gonzales County WSC, New Braunfels,
Schertz, Seguin, Seima, and Water Services), Drought Management,
(Crystal Clear WSC, Martindale, and Seguin), Carrizo-Wilcox Aquifer
Wells (Canyon Regional Water Authority, and Scheriz-Seguin Local
Government Corporation). From 2020 to 2070, the fotal water
management strategies in Guadalupe...

5. The plan does not include evidence of coordination with all the surface water
management entities the district is required to contact (as required by TWC
§ 36.1071(a)).

To correct this deficiency, please provide a copy of the adopted plan to the surface water
management entities in your district. This can be in the form of a paper copy, electronic
file, or weblink to the plan on your website. Then provide evidence of this coordination
when submitting the plan for administrative completeness review. The surface water
management entities to contact are the Guadalupe Blanco River Authority, City of
Gonzales, and Gonzales County WSC.

6. The plan does not have time-based and quantifiable management objectives or
performance standards that the district will use to achieve the goal of addressing
precipitation enhancement (as required by TWC § 36.1071(a}(7} and 36.1071(e)}(1) and
31 TAC § 356.51 and § 356.52(a)(1-3)).

To correct this deficiency, please develop time-based and quantifiable management
objectives and performance standards to achieve the goal of addressing precipitation
enhancement. If this goal is not applicable, please explicitly state so and explain why it is
not applicable. Goals determined not applicable will not have management objectives or
performance standards.



_RECEIVED MAY 3 0 2024

Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District
Groundwater Management Plan
Final Submitted Plan Deficiencies, June 7, 2024

This document lists the deficiencies of the administratively incomplete groundwater
management plan submitted by the Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District
(District) on March 8, 2024 and how to resolve these deficiencies. The policies, plans, and
opinions in the groundwater management plan represent those of the District, not those of the
Texas Water Development Board (TWDB).

To facilitate an administratively complete final plan, we encourage you to take advantage of our
management plan pre-review process prior to submitting an adopted plan. Please contact
Stephen Allen (stephen.allen@twdb.texas.qov; 512-463-7217) for questions regarding the pre-
review process or assistance in correcting these deficiencies. We suggest submitting the pre-
review to TWDB within 90 days so that we can review and return it to you in a timely manner.

Groundwater management plan deficiencies

1. The plan does not include estiméte.s of the annual amount of recharge from precipitation
to the aquifers in the District (as required by TWC § 36.1071(e)(3)(C) and TAC
§ 356.52(a)(5)(C)).

To correct this deficiency, please include these values. For a satisfactory plan, we
recommend including.the TWDB groundwater availability model report (GAM Run 23-
018) as an appendix and referring to it within the body of the plan. The discussion of
GAM Run 23-018 on page 13 confuses GAM Run 21-018 MAG (the modeled available
groundwater report) with the similarly named.GAM Run 23-018 (the groundwater
availability model management plan report). :

2. The plan does not include estimates of the annual volume of water that discharges from
the aquifers in the District (as required by TWC § 36.1071(e)(3)(D) and TAC
§ 356.52(a)(5)(D)). ‘ - .

To correct this deficiency, please include these values. For a satisfactory plan, we
recommend including the TWDB groundwater availability model report (GAM Run 23-
018) as an appendix and referring to it within the body. of the plan. The discussion of
GAM Run 23-018 on page 13 confuses GAM Run 21-018 MAG (the modeled available
groundwater report) with the similarly named GAM Run23-018 (the groundwater
availability model management plan report).

3. The plan does not include estimates of the annual volume of flow into and out of the
district within each aquifer and between aquifers in the District (as required by TWC
§ 36.1071(e)(3)(E) and TAC § 356.52(a)(5)(E)).

To correct this deficiency, please include these values. For a satisfactory plan, we
recommend including the TWDB groundwater availability model report (GAM Run 23-
018) as an appendix and referring to it within the body of the plan. The discussion of
GAM Run 23-018 on page 13 confuses GAM Run 21-018 MAG (the modeled available
groundwater report) with the similarly named GAM Run 23-018 (the groundwater
availability model report).

4. The plan does not include a clear explanation of how the water supply needs and water
management strategies from the most recently adopted state water plan were
considered (as required by TWC § 36.1071(e)(4)). As stated in TWC § 36.1071(e)(4),



Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District Groundwater Management Plan
Final Submitted Plan Deficiencies
June 7, 2024

the district must consider the water supply needs and water management strategies
included in the 2022 State Water Plan. A complete plan includes a discussion
demonstrating how the district considered the water supply needs and water
management strategies. To correct this deficiency, please include the groundwater
management plan data report containing 2022 State Water Plan datasets (previously
provided to the District) in an appendix and refer to specific needs and water
management strategies in the text. In addition, please provide a discussion similar to the
following from another district that addresses these requirements:

Projected water supply needs listed in the TWDB estimated historical
water use/2022 state water plan data packet (Appendix B) are primarily
municipal. Municipal needs in Guadalupe County exist for the following
water user groups (WUGS): Cibolo, Crystal Clear WSC, Green Valley
SUD, Luling, Marion, Martindale WSC, New Braunfels, Schertz, Sequin,
Selma, and Water Services. Additional needs exist in one other WUG:
Manufacturing. From 2020 to 2070, the total needs in Guadalupe County
are projected to increase from 43 AF to 14,765 AF.

Projected water management strategies listed in the TWDB estimated
historical water use/2022 state water plan data packet, and located within
Guadalupe County are: Municipal Water Conservation (Cibolo, County-
Other, Crystal Clear WSC, Gonzales County WSC, New Braunfels,
Schertz, Seguin, Selma, and Water.Services), Drought Management,
(Crystal Clear WSC, Martindale, and Seguin), Carrizo-Wilcox Aquifer
Wells (Canyon Regiohal Water Authority,-and Schertz-Seguin Local
Government Corporation). From:2020 to 2070, the total water
management strategies in Guadalupe:.. -

5. The plan does not include evidence of coordination w_ith all the surface water
management entities the district is required to contact (as required by TWC
§ 36.1071(a)). 4 : ;

To correct this deficiency, please provide a copy of the adopted plan to the surface water
management entities in your district. This can be in the form of a paper copy, electronic
file, or weblink to the plan on your website. Then provide evidence of this coordination
when submitting the plan for administrative completeness review. The surface water
management entities to contact are the Guadalupe Blanco River Authority, City of
Gonzales, and Gonzales County WSC.

6. The plan does not have time-based and quantifiable management objectives or
performance standards that the district will use to achieve the goal of addressing
precipitation enhancement (as required by TWC § 36.1071(a)(7) and 36.1071(e)(1) and
31 TAC § 356.51 and § 356.52(a)(1-3)).

To correct this deficiency, please develop time-based and quantifiable management
objectives and performance standards to achieve the goal of addressing precipitation
enhancement. If this goal is not applicable, please explicitly state so and explain why it is
not applicable. Goals determined not applicable will not have management objectives or
performance standards.



Jon Niermann, Chairman RECE]VED JUN 2 7 200
Bobhy Janecka, Contmissioner l’!
Catarina R. Gonzales, Comimnissioner

Kelly Keel, Executive Director

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

Protecting Texas by Reducing and Preventing Pollution

June 25, 2024

Ms. Laura Martin-Preston, General Manager

Gonzales County Underground Water Conservation District
PO Box 1919

| Gonzales, TX 78629

Re: Management Plan Compliance
Dear Ms. Martin-Preston,

Texas Water Code, (TWC) Section 36.1072(e}, requires a groundwater conservation district
(GCD) to adopt its management plan no less than every five years and to submit the plan to the
Texas Water Development Board {TWDB) for approval. The Gonzales County UWCD (District)
management plan was due for readoption on January 29, 2024. On May 30, 2024, TWDB
notified the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) that your submitted
management plan was denied. As stated in the letter your district has 180 days to have a
management plan approved by TWDB. Under state law and agency rules, the TCEQ is required
to ensure GCD compliance with the management planning provisions.

Please provide TCEQ with information detailing present District actions that are being taken to
adopt the required management plan, including the anticipated schedule and timeframe for the
District to send the adopted plan to the TWDB. To comply with TWDB rules, your hoard
approved management plan must be submitted to TWDB by September 30, 2024, which is 60
before the revised management plan renewal date of November 30, 2024,

Please mail this information to me at TCEQ, MC-147, P.O. Box 13087, Austin, Texas 7871 1-3087,
or email fo peggv.hunka@tceq.texas.gov .

If you have any questions about state law requirements or this letter, please contact me at 512-
239-5480 or abiv.berche@tceq.texas. gov or contact Peggy Hunka at the above email.

Sincerely,

dthe

Abiy Berehe, P.G.
Team TLead
Groundwater Planning and Assessment Team

cc: Robert Bradley, TWDB

P.O. Box 13087 = Austin, Texas 78711-3087 + 512-239-1000 °* tceq.texas.gov

How is our customer service?  fced.fexas.gov/customersurvey

printed en recyeled paper



